
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




ADRIA Mediation Advocacy Action Plan - September Board Report 


Prepared by Alasdair MacKinnon & Paul Conway 


The ADRIA Task Force was established in April 2014 to examine how mediators are 


compensated and to produce a white paper to document its findings and make 


recommendations. 


The task force explored and researched mediator compensation, how it relates to pro bono 


activities, and its impact on the mediation profession and practices by: 
 examining the value of mediation services by reviewing government, regulatory, and 


community programs, mediation rosters, and private organizations.  
 reviewing relevant studies  
 surveying members of ADRIA and the ADR Institute of Canada, and other professional 


organizations 
 


Following the finalization and presentation of the Mediation Advocacy Task Force White Paper 


to the ADRIA Board of Directors in March 2016, and reflective of the Task Force's primary 


recommendations for outreach and collaboration, a three-phase Communications Strategy was 


adopted by the Board as the preliminary step in creating a multi-year ADRIA action plan: 


Phase 1:   Consultation:  April 1 – Sept 15 
This involved: 


 Developing stakeholder list and communications sequencing 


 Determining type, level and method of communication for each stakeholder type 


 Having the Paper professionally designed for circulation/posting on web 


 Sending the communications out 


 Presentations and meetings as applicable 


 Consolidation by a Board Working Group 
 
Phase 2:  Board review and response to recommendations Sept 15, 2016 – January 15, 2017 
This will involve:  


 Board review of input from stakeholders including identifying areas partners would like 
to collaborate 


 Board determining response to each recommendation (accept in whole or part; reject; 
or review at some point in future)  


 Board determines directions for moving forward including short-, medium- and long-
term initiatives 


 
Phase 3:  Implement and Monitor Actions - January 15, 2017 onward 
 


 


 


WE ARE HERE - SEPT BOARD MTG 


NOVEMBER & 


JANUARY       


BOARD MEETINGS 







Summary of activities to date: 


The White Paper was reformatted and featured on the website, and in multiple ADRIA 


communications with membership.  Stakeholder lists were created and later expanded.  


Template letters were drafted and customized for each recipient.  Close to 100 personalized 


letters were dispatched, and even now some additional letters are being customized and sent.  


Executive summaries were printed and enclosed with each letter.  Feedback was catalogued 


and shared (selectively).  An opportunity to meet with the Minister of Justice was taken up and 


reported to the membership.  Member consultation sessions were announced for September 


13th (Calgary) and 22nd (Edm).  Consolidation efforts have begun with the aim of identifying 


immediate action items and a draft multi-year action plan for Board review in November. 


Summary of feedback to date: 


Most feedback to date has been positive and supportive of ADRIA's aims and objectives, albeit 


very general in nature.  In some cases, there has been a defensive or guarded tone, or 


perspectives that are not entirely aligned with ADRIA's preferred outcomes.  While the meeting 


with the Minister of Justice was certainly positive, and achieved our primary aim of introducing 


ADRIA as as a constructive and collaborative partner, it must be acknowledged that the 


province's economic circumstances will likely preclude any immediate changes to the mediation 


roster compensation levels. 


In addition to the Minister of Justice, we have also had responses from: 


 Robert Wanner, Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 


 John Rooke, Associate Chief Justice 


 Lillian McLellan, Deputy Chief Judge 


 Lynn Varty, Assistant Deputy Minister 


 Danielle Larivee, Minister of Municipal Affairs 


 Stepanie McLean, Minister of Service Alberta 


 Christina Gray, Minister of Labour 


 RCMP, NEB, Health Canada, Law Society, BBB, etc.  


September recommendations to the Board: 


 Encourage participation, and personally attend the Sept membership feedback sessions 


 Actively respond to and follow up on some of the responses received to date 


 Encourage responses from key stakeholders that we have not yet heard from 


 Consider strategies now to influence reinstating the Rules of the Court regarding ADR 


 Augmentation to the Mediation Advocacy Working Group (Board, staff and members) 


 Phase 2 development of DRAFT Action plan recommendations for Nov Board meeting 








 
ADRIC Awareness Sub-Committee – 2016 Projects Brainstorming 
 
Please populate this chart with ideas on potential campaign that will make people (the public, governments, business sector, other organizations) more aware of 
ADR, mediation, and arbitration and the ADR Institute of Canada’s mission.  
 
Note: We would especially like low-cost / no-cost ideas. Please do not include print advertising ideas as ADRIC is no longer utilizing this medium.  
 
Please send your chart back to Monit Sahota (monit@adric.ca)at your earliest. Feel free to insert more rows if you have more ideas. Ideas will be summarized, 
and the "top 10" will be sent to the ADRIC board for final implementation decisions.  We are looking to implement 2-3 campaigns per year. 


 
Member Idea Title Who 


Target 
audience 


and others 
involved. 


What 
Brief 


description (2-
3 sentences). 


When 
Any time 
sensitive 


info. 


Where 
If your idea is 


region specific, 
please provide 


the region.  


Why 
Any additional info on why you 


feel this campaign should be 
implemented. 


Cost 
Provide a ballpark estimate of how 


much the idea will cost. 


Horace King Free Chinese 
flyers/brochures at 
Asian supermarkets and 
Asian malls 


Chinese 
people 


Flyers/brochur
es 


On-going Asian 
supermarket/m
alls 


Over 600,000 Chinese residents in 
GTA, the great majority have 
never heard about arbitration or 
take arbitration for mediation. 


Printing cost 


Horace King $100 up to $500 
discount cards available 
to Costco and Sam’s 
club members 


members Discounts 
cards that 
credit against 
the retainers 
of arbitrators 


On-going Costco and 
Sam’s club 
customer 
service 
counters 


Motivate people to adopt 
arbitration to resolve their 
disputes 


Minimum cost of card making 


Horace King General arbitration 
agreements with 
financial institutions 
(banks, insurance 
companies, etc.) and 
major business 
corporations such as 
Walmart, Costco and 
Canadian Tire, Lowes, 
real estate developers, 
etc. for them to include 
an arbitration clause in 
their clauses with their 
employees and their 
business contracts with 
their clients 


Large 
corporatio
ns 


General 
agreements 


On-going Head offices of 
large 
corporations 


General agreements enable large 


corporations to resort to arbitration 


in settling their disputes with 


clients and their employees 


No cost 


Commented [O21]: Interesting. -Monit 


Commented [O22]: Getting into these stores would likely cost 
money but there may be something here. - Monit 



mailto:monit@adric.ca





Horace King Presentations at senior 
high schools so as 
enhance their 
understanding of ADR  


High 
school 
students 


presentations On-going District school 
boards 


Get them used to resolving their 
dispute through ADR in the 
future 


No cost 


MS Example – “Get Legal” 
TV segment 


General 
public 
interested 
in legal 
info. 


Have an 
ADRIC/ADRIO 
member or 
board member 
appear on a 
local access TV 
program that 
focuses on 
legal info. 


Airs 
every 
Tuesday 
at 
6:00pm 
Eastern. 


Ontario - 
Greater 
Toronto Area. 


Viewers of this show may be 
seeking advice/gaining general 
knowledge, and may not be aware 
of ADR. Potential free word of 
mouth advertising for ADRIC. 


Free. 


MS Free brochures Bora 
Laskin Law Library 
(UofT) 


Potential 
members. 


Place 
“Membership” 
brochures and 
“About Us” 
brochures at 
the UofT law 
library or on 
the library 
bulletin board.  


Ongoing. Ontario - 
Greater 
Toronto Area. 


 Free. 


Kari Hass “Law Days” General 
public 
interested 
in options 
to resolve 
conflict 
(i.e., a 
spectrum 
of options) 


Have an ADRIC 
booth/table at 
the event. An 
ADRIC 
member(s) 
would be there 
to answer 
questions; 
have literature 
available. 


Schedule
d once a 
year at 
the 
courthou
se.  


National 
(courthouses) 


Reaches a wide range of people; 
word-of-mouth (your best 
advertising!)  


Free 


Kari Hass “Captive Audience: 
Catch them before they 
graduate” 


Students 
enrolled in 
negotiatio
n/mediatio
n/arbitrati
on courses  


Have an ADRIC 
member go in 
to the classes 
to explain what 
ADRIC is and 
the value it 
offers; have 
literature 
available.   


Before 
the 
students 
graduate
.  


National 
(universities, 
colleges, any 
places offering 
dispute 
resolution 
courses, etc.) 


Makes students (i.e., potential 
negotiators/mediators/ 
arbitrators) aware of ADRIA and 
then they can spread the word.  


Free 


Kari Hass “Sports and Conflict: 
Moving Forward” 


Organized 
sports 


Letting sports 
associations/bo


Meet 
formally 


National (any 
place large 


Many cities do not have resolution 
services in place when it comes to 


Free 


Commented [O23]: I like this. Could possibly be incorporated in 
a highschool law / career studies lesson. - Monit 


Commented [KH4]: Perhaps this could be done nationally? 


Commented [O25]: I agree with Kari, but probably a decent 
amount of research involved in finding free, relevant shows across 
Canada. -Monit 


Commented [KH6]: Perhaps this could be done nationally? 
 


Commented [O27]: Agreed. - Monit 


Commented [O28]: I like this. Events are across Canada in 
April: http://www.cba.org/For-The-Public/Law-Day 
Related: Conflict Resolution Day / week 
-Monit 


Commented [O29]: Great! - Monit 


Commented [O210]: Great! - Monit 







association
s/boards 
(e.g., 
hockey, 
soccer, 
football, 
lacrosse, 
etc.) 
including 
players 
and 
parents 


ards and 
players and 
parents know 
that ADRIC 
exists; have 
literature 
available.  


and 
outline 
what 
ADRIC is 
and how 
it can 
play a 
role in 
resolving 
conflict. 


enough to have 
sports 
associations/bo
ards)  


organized sports. When there is 
conflict there is either nowhere to 
go or people do not know how to 
access the appropriate resources; 
ADRIA’S existence can be spread 
via word-of-mouth. 


Jackie 
Lopez 


ADRIC App General 
Public  


Have a mobile 
app content 
that can be 
used as 
reference and 
have specific 
topics as well 
as an events 
topic section 
where the 
mobile users 
can interact 
with mediators 
or attend 
information 
sessions etc. 


Ongoing National Majority of users are on the 
phone and spend most of their 
time using it, for personal, 
business, school. A mediator in 
the states has an app but I think it 
needs to be tailored better. 


 
 
 
Should be free and more time spent 
on building an app. 


Jackie 
Lopez 


 
Digital Signage 
 


General 
Public 


Have digital 
sign at 
locations 
visible to the 
public such as 
billboard 
spaces like 
highways/ 


 Ongoing National Digital Signage replaces the print 
version of ads.  You still get the 
same type of exposure that print 
ads provide 


 
Need to inquire to provide prices. 
http://www.pattisonoutdoor.com/ 


Jackie 
Lopez 


 
 
 
TTC  ADS & GO TRANSIT 


General 
Public 


This could be 
digital or print 
to be displayed 
on the TTC 
subways & 
inside the 
trains & GO 
train. With GO 


 
 
 
Ongoing 


 
 
 
Ontario - GTA 


Majority of people who work or 
live in downtown rely on the use 
of public transportation to get to 
and from work or home, etc. You 
gain more exposure to the general 
public to get the information 
across.  


TTC uses  
https://www.ttc.ca/TTC_Business/
Advertising_on_TTC/index.jsp 
 
GO Trainsit 
http://www.gotransit.com/public/e
n/news/mediainfo.aspx 


Commented [O211]:  expensive to develop and maintain and 
less engagement compared to a mobile website. This will just make 
things more fragmented. - Monit 


Commented [O212]: Probably expensive and doesn't target 
the right eyeballs. - Monit 


Commented [O213]: Probably expensive and doesn't target 
the right eyeballs. - Monit 



https://www.ttc.ca/TTC_Business/Advertising_on_TTC/index.jsp

https://www.ttc.ca/TTC_Business/Advertising_on_TTC/index.jsp





you can utilize 
digital signage 
at Union 
Station where 
a lot of people 
would wait for 
their trains 
including VIA 
Rail 


Jackie 
Lopez 


 
 
 
Booth / Vendor Setup 


 
 
 
General 
Public & 
profession
als 


 
 
Having a booth 
at an event 
targeted at the 
public or 
specific events 
such as a job 
fair 


 
 
Varies  - 
dependi
ng on 
the 
event 


 
 
 
Ontario  - GTA 
or surrounding 
areas 


Having a booth at a public event 
allows exposure and awareness at 
specific events especially at job 
fairs where the individual will be 
finding employment as well as 
meeting with HR’s who may not 
be familiar with mediation and 
ADRIC may be able to hold a mini 
information session during the 
event such as workplace conflict  


http://www.thenationaljobfair.com 
http://www.hrleaders.ca/ 
 


Jackie 
Lopez 


Promotional products General 
Public 


Provide promo-
product 
giveaways for 
the public such 
as pens, 
magnets, the 
card sleeves 
are a big hit as 
you can place it 
behind your 
phone and 
insert cards 
etc. you can 
have the ADRIC 
logo and 
website or a 
slogan on 
conflict 


Ongoing  
 
National 


 
Everyone loves free products 
especially if it is a product that the 
person can use 


http://www.promotionalproductsca
nada.com/products/AZXKI-
JRPJH.htm 


Victoria 
Romero 


Talk ‘till you drop Approach 
financial 
institution
s, top 
corporatio
ns, law 
society, 


Approach them 
to offer 
presentations/ 
info sessions to 
their members: 
educate how 
adr processes 


As 
schedule
d 


In the 
boardrooms of 
these 
organizations 


Offering education and making 
people aware about 
mediation/arbitration is 1st step. If 
people are not aware, how are 
they going to use our services? 


ADRIC staff would organize the 
sessions- and we would need the 
invaluable time of our members 
who would be doing the actual 
sessions  


Commented [O214]: I like the idea of job fairs. Might be a fee 
involved? - Monit 


Commented [O215]: Cost involved. If we consider, I think its 
very important for the tagline to be on there. - Monit 



http://www.thenationaljobfair.com/

http://www.hrleaders.ca/





any 
regulatory 
bodies/pr
ofessional 
associatio
ns 


would be 
invaluable to 
their processes 


        
        
        
        
        
        
        


 


From Karen Pappin: 


Hi Monit 


I find it difficult to maneuver the PDF re insert and deletions so here is my effort and additions to the 


discussions 


As I reviewed the discussions I felt that 2 themes were emerging 


1. Public Awareness 


2. A target that would benefit  ADR membership 


 


 


What I have tried to do after reading the PDF is to focus on key elements of that discussion 


So I have categorized what I think is the essence of the discussions and have taken the liberty to edit as to 


provide concise, direct statement as in the Mission Statement 


My experience has taught me to start strategically and win as much free PR as possible. 


The HR Association has many tentacles representing a wide range of corporate, industry and businesses 


including the public sector  


In my opinion it is the best bet for an "out of the gate " target. 


The Media Campaign ideas submitted are venues that would be cost free 







I am assuming that ADR Canada would have connections in these media and relationships already 


developed. 


So below are my recommendations submitted respectfully: 


 


ADR Institute Canada 


 


Mission Statement 


Initiate and implement public awareness campaign that inform and educate the benefits of ADR, 


mediation, negotiation and arbitration. 
 


 


Objectives 


 


1. Media Campaign 


 


Facebook  


Public television eg TVO 


CBC  


Local / regional Community Television Eg Eastlink  


1. Target Markets 


Human Resources Association , national, provincial, regional chapters 


And  


Develop regional rosters as appropriate 


 


1. Speakers Bureau 


National, provincial, regional roster  
 


 


Let me know what you think 


KP 







 








Presidents Roundtable 


May 18 2016 


2PM until 3PM (Eastern Time) 


Attendance: Suzette, Andy, Scott , Jennifer, Wendy, Pierre, Paul, Katlyn, Elton, Janet, Eric, Stan. 


 


1. Call to order and Welcome from Chair Andy. 


 


2. Note-taker for this meeting – volunteer Truus Souman (AB). 


 


3. ADRIC President update (Scott) 


- IMIS: Moving forward.   


-Advocacy Committee is running with Michael Schafler as Chair.  


-ADR Manitoba forum, held in conjunction with Board meeting. A lot of new energy around social 


media. National attention.  Articles in press. Encourage people to join ADRIC committees. Forward 


names to Janet. 


-Development committee finalized new roster agreement for National Energy Board.  


-Coming up; start of using some Development Fund money for updating and refining the National 


Arbitration Course and policy work on National Standards.  


-Last month ADRIC Board met in Winnipeg. The Spring meeting was usually held in Toronto.  ADRIC 


will regularly connect with different affiliates hopefully using this meeting opportunity held in 


different affiliate centers. Several presentations in Winnipeg, 41 people attending.   


-Advocacy Committee; on national level we can issue a press release. Community work happens at 


affiliate level. Please share with ADRIC for the benefit of the National Advocacy Committee what is 


happening in your affiliate: challenges, affirmations, etc. Send your information to Janet. Timeframe; 


asap, or within a week. 


 


4. MOU Task Force Report – major item (Kathryn) 


-A draft of background, purpose and guiding principles for the MoU was completed. The Task Force 


is proposing one document between affiliates and National. Inviting affiliate’s comments and 


feedback on principles by June 14 to Wendy Hassen; wendy@wendyhassen.ca . Focus Document is 


dated May 3, 2016.  


-For the ToR; timeline extended to October 2017. Likely to be completed early spring 2017.  


 


5. Membership categories 


-there is Diversity in membership categories across the affiliates. Should we develop common 


membership definitions and categories across the country? Comments received were: 


-ADRIA welcomes harmonization of memberships, but would like to allow differences among 


affiliates. 


-Saskatchewan has no corporate memberships. Harmonizing is a great idea. 


-How does this work for collecting fees using a common membership software ( IMIS) if there are 


differences? Can all categories to be harmonized other than corporate? 


-How to define the retired category; add a ‘non-practising’ for a member on maternity leave?  


-Categories; Full, Assoc, non-practising and student. Student is only charged $25.  



mailto:wendy@wendyhassen.ca





-How to charge a fee for non-practising?  


-Non-practising can be a member starting a family, being out of the workforce for a few years but 


wanting to stay in touch. 


-Better subscription needed for ‘non-practising’.  


-How does the ‘non-practising’ category  work with insurance? 


-Allow a student category? 


-National membership committee to impose on affiliates? National cannot stick their nose in affiliate 


issues.  


-How to address corporate memberships in the MoU? 


-Parameters around corporate memberships needed. 


-ADRIC is not opposed to affiliates having other categories. 


-Maybe a separate Task Force is needed to look at categories. 


-Corporate entities are helpful nationally. At affiliate level we would probably call them stakeholders 


rather than members.  


 


6. The Mediation Advocacy Task Force (AB) is collecting feedback. A copy of the White Paper is 


available from ADRIA 


 


7. Marketing initiatives – collaboration possibility (ADRIO topic) 


-Kathryn stated that the challenge of marketing is to reach users and trying to get members to join. 


There needs to be clarity between affiliates and the national organization. For both is a different target 


and different approach. Affiliates need to do marketing, national would be to encourage more use of 


dispute resolution.  


-Pierre asked;  What is the clear mandate of the marketing committee? We don’t want duplication of 


efforts by both national and affiliates. 


-Janet: Mandate is set out in ToR. We welcome ideas to what our focus needs to be. 


-Scott: Marketing is more about how to make the website more inviting and the member resources 


more attractive. Marketing committee is not looking at one certain affiliate.  


-Janet: The committee is not doing any direct marketing at the moment, but work more on improving 


member benefits, print materials etc.  


-Scott: The committee is more creating tools and resources for affiliates. Markets are unique and often 


provincially regulated. ADRIC is to gather and provide resources. 


-Stan: This reminds of the roster development committee. Initiatives; province by province. 


-Kathryn: National marketing committee? Take comments to the National Marketing Committee and see 


what comes from it. 


-Scott: Janet to test this with the Nat marketing committee. 


 


8. Items for the next PRT  


-Education Committee (Pierre) 


- Longer meeting or more frequent meetings? (Chair of PRT)) 


 


9. Information item 


- Best practises workshop for people on National designation committees? ADRIC is considering 


using a half-day Workshop at next National Conference October in Toronto. Affiliates need to 


consider if they will try to get committee members to attend. 

































Promoting Designations in Alberta      6.6.2 


- Perspectives from our Past President and the ADRIA staff 


Stan Galbrath, ADRIA Past President: 


The growth of designations [in Alberta] is a direct result of a long history of providing training directly 


through our organization and emphasizing the value of the designations throughout the training. We 


have then taking every opportunity to remind the user community of the value of the designation. It is a 


simple process and the key is consistency on both sides: the practitioners and the user community. 


ADRIA Executive Director & Staff: 


Two key strategies in the ADRIA Strategic Plan have sustained the steady growth in Alberta designations.  


These two strategies guide Board and Staff alike in determining ADRIA practices, policies and priorities. 


 #5 Promote Chartered Designations, Internally & Externally: 


o Internally, to encourage seasoned Practitioners to secure their designations, AND to 


encourage those with Q. designations to progress to Chartered status. 


o Externally, to educate and encourage government, businesses and the general public to 


recognize, hire and seek out practitioners with national designations. 


 #7 Promote ADR Training and the Q. Designations to Key Professions as a Valuable Secondary 


Qualification. 


o Specifically Lawyers and HR Professionals, but also Engineers and other professionals 


o This involves engagement with other professional associations and labour unions 


ADRIA maintains a robust Basic and Specialized ADR professional development program, including 


ADRIC's National Introductory courses.  Enrollment in any course requires an ADRIA membership, and 


the designations are actively promoted by instructors, coaches and staff communications.  


Most ADRIA referral processes and opportunities favour those with designations.  This includes the 


online roster, select and appoint processes, job board listings, and opportunities to instruct or coach. 


Office staff are available on a daily basis to take calls, answer questions, and assist members in obtaining 


their designations.  A roster of coaches is made available to members, and practice groups are available.  


Collaborative outreach to Government Ministries and Agencies that hire ADR professionals, and to 


Educational Institutions that offer ADR training, have been key to linking practitioners to memberships to 


designations to rosters and hiring opportunities. 


Collaborative outreach has also been the cornerstone of ADRIA's advocacy work, most recently 


evidenced by the publication and distribution of the Mediation Advocacy White Paper, and the positive 


responses it has generated from an exhaustive letter writing campaign.   Keeping the membership 


informed and engaged in this effort builds confidence in the future of our national designation program.  


ADRIA believes it is important to "Walk the Talk".  In spite of their many qualifications, for example, 


Board members are rarely identified by more than their ADRIC designations in member communiqués.                                                            








7.9.2 


From: Paul Conway  
Sent: August-30-16 3:23 PM 


To: Wendy Hassen 
Cc: Barry Marshall; Dolores Herman 


Subject: RE: Please Read - Corporate Membership programme/ Advisory Board 


 
This is a policy proposal that I believe we can and should fully support (and not just because I included it 
in the subcommittee policy proposal sent to ADRIC in February 2015). 
ADRIA has no existing policies that would preclude corporate members OR non-practitioner 
memberships (corporate, organizational or individual). 
To what extent it could or should be presented and discussed by the Board as a whole is up to you - I can 
see no harm in it. 
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 550 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  


  


  


 
From: Wendy Hassen [mailto:wendy@wendyhassen.ca]  
Sent: August-30-16 2:52 PM 


To: Paul Conway 
Cc: Barry Marshall; Dolores Herman 


Subject: FW: Please Read - Corporate Membership programme/ Advisory Board 


 
Hi Paul! 
 
As you know , I am now officially on the ADRIC Board and have access to the Board documents on the 
ADRIC web site  
 
Regarding the ADRIC Board meeting Sept 15th – I am hoping that I will have the agenda by Sept 9th – in 
time to consult with our Board about any matters of interest  
 
One Agenda item will be related to the attached e-mail from Janet.  Paul  as you are on the Marketing 
Committee I am thinking that we can discuss to determine any concerns or matters to be prepared 
discuss on our Sept 10th meeting . 
 
Would that work for you? ( and our Presidents?)   
 
Thanks and take care! 
 
Wendy  



http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:wendy@wendyhassen.ca





 
PS: I am working on setting some time with Chuck to meet and do a baton toss next week   
 
 
 


 
 
“Your assumptions are your windows on the world. Scrub them off every once in 
a while, or the light won't come in.”  
 Isaac Asimov 
This communication is intended for the use of the recipient to which it is addressed, and may contain confidential, personal and or privileged 
information.  Please contact me immediately if you are not the intended recipient of this communication, and do not copy, distribute, or take 
action replying on it.  Any communication received in error, or subsequent reply, should be deleted or destroyed 


 


 
From: ADRIC - Janet McKay [mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca]  
Sent: August 30, 2016 1:25 PM 
To: naim.antaki@gowlings.com; santle@blg.com; 
glen.w.bell@shaw.ca; tberiault@beriault.qc.ca; 
lbruneau@bruneaugroup.com; andrewdbutt@nl.rogers.com; 
mary.comeau@nortonrosefulbright.com; 


michael.erdle@practicalresolutions.ca; Wendy Hassen <wendy@wendyhassen.ca>; 
david.mccutcheon@dentons.com; jmusgrave@coxandpalmer.com; JParisi@bdo.ca; 
michael.schafler@dentons.com; j_schulz@umanitoba.ca; scott.siemens@cra-arc.gc.ca; 
anne.wallace@sasktel.net 
Cc: william.j.hartnett@esso.ca; jim@mccartneyadr.com 
Subject: Please Read - Corporate Membership programme/ Advisory Board 
 
Dear Directors: 
 
Attached please find a memo from the  Marketing & Member Resources Committee co-chairs, about the 
Corporate Membership programme.   
They asked that I send this to you so that: 
 


        you have time to read and consider for discussion at the September 15 Board meeting 


        you understand the programme and can assist in reaching out to potential new members 
 
I will also use this memo to create a communication to affiliates as discussed at our April Board meeting. 


 



mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca

mailto:naim.antaki@gowlings.com

mailto:santle@blg.com

mailto:glen.w.bell@shaw.ca

mailto:tberiault@beriault.qc.ca

mailto:lbruneau@bruneaugroup.com

mailto:andrewdbutt@nl.rogers.com

mailto:mary.comeau@nortonrosefulbright.com

mailto:michael.erdle@practicalresolutions.ca

mailto:wendy@wendyhassen.ca

mailto:david.mccutcheon@dentons.com

mailto:jmusgrave@coxandpalmer.com

mailto:JParisi@bdo.ca

mailto:michael.schafler@dentons.com

mailto:j_schulz@umanitoba.ca

mailto:scott.siemens@cra-arc.gc.ca

mailto:anne.wallace@sasktel.net

mailto:william.j.hartnett@esso.ca

mailto:jim@mccartneyadr.com





 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 
 
 
 
Thank you, 


 
Janet McKay 
Executive Director / Directrice générale  


 
405 - 234 Eglinton Avenue East 
Toronto, ON, Canada M4P 1K5 
416-487-4733 • 1-877-475-4353 #105 
fax/télécopieur: 416-487-4429 
janetmckay@adric.ca            ADRIC.ca  


       @ADRCanada  #ADRIC 


unsubscribe/désabonner 


 
ADRIC 2016 Conference - October 13-14, 2016 - Ritz-Carlton, Toronto 
IMI Global Pound Conference - October 15, 2016 - CBC Broadcasting Centre, Barbara Frum Atrium 


 


Marketing & Member Resources Committee Report      
 


Bill Hartnett reported on the activities of the Marketing and Member Resources Committee, as outlined in the M&M status list.  The Board spent some time discussing the proposed Corporate 
Membership (CM) package and decided that Corporate Members would include only ADR Users, Government, Academic Institutions, etc, and will exclude ADR providers so that affiliates will not 
be concerned about losing individual memberships. 
 
Moved by Thierry Bériault to revise the CM package by removing reference to affiliate membership discounts. Seconded by Andy Butt. Motion carried. 
 
Mr. Hartnett and Mr. McCartney to draft the communication to affiliates. 
 



mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca

http://www.adric.ca/

mailto:janetmckay@adrcanada.ca?subject=Unsubscribe/%20Désabonner

http://adric.ca/adric2016

http://adric.ca/global-pound-conference/

http://www.facebook.com/home.php#!/group.php?gid=149752171707351

http://www.linkedin.com/groups?gid=3303518&trk=hb_side_g






Summary of ADRIO's Internship Pilot Project 


Name of Program : ADRIO Internship Pilot Program  


Number of Interns applied: 17  


Number of Interns in progress: 6  


Number of Interns who completed the program: 3  


Number of Supervisors: 13 Individuals plus 3 organizations (with multiple supervisors) 


Governance: Ultimately ADRIO Board of Directors, directly by the Internship Committee  


Details of the Program  


The ADRIO Internship Pilot Program was established in January, 2014 after two previous 


attempts. ADRIO wanted to learn through its own experience and set up a program that is in 


accordance with course accreditations. The purpose is to satisfy a need in the ADR sector by 


providing practical experience and thereby enhancing the prospects for students getting ADR 


jobs.   


The ADRIO Internship Program was developed using best known practices (without being 


restrictive) to focus on competencies for interns.  The program is 80 hours in length and is long 


enough to allow interns to develop specific competencies. The Program allows 60 hours of 


observation and/or doing the work and 20 hours of feedback and reflection to understand the 


process. Interns and supervisors are likely those with post secondary degree and the latter 


usually possess a C.Med designation.  Not all supervisors are members of ADRIO.  The outcome 


- evaluation of the interns and supervisors and successful completion of the program - leads to 


a Q. Med designation. The co-mediation model is also included. Some interns have experienced 


the benefits of shared supervision in the ADRIO Internship Program, another feature that allows 


supervisors with small amount of cases to participate in the program and provide collaborative 


evaluation for the interns.    


Interns pay $2,500 to supervisors and a filing fee of $200 to ADRIO. Supervisors pay a $200 


filing fee which is currently waived during the pilot phase.  Interns choose supervisors by 


viewing their qualifications on a database. Recently, the Internship Committee requested more 


involvement from staff to match interns and supervisors.  


There is a comprehensive evaluation component which includes feedback from the interns on 


the program and the experience.   


ADRIO will hi-light supervisors and interns on website and/or various communication channels.  







Long-term goal: To secure internship placements with businesses and offer placements for 


interns where ADR is practiced   


 


Expected Outcomes (initially):  


 new ADR practitioners gain practical experience in the field,  


 a forum to build relationship with new and experienced practitioners  


 increased opportunities for mentorship  


 3 graduates and therefore 3 new Q.Meds,  


 3 new members through the addition of placement supervisors  


Challenges: attracting a large number of supervisors, supervisors have small case loads, 


geography may limit the matching interns and supervisors and to find ways to reward 


supervisors  


Recent Update: ADRIO invited and met with several academic Institutions to explore 


formalizing a standard of practice for Internship Programs. ADRIO may serve as a clearing house 


for Internship Programs and provide support for these programs.  








ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION SPECTRUM


DOES THE ADRI EMBRACE ALL ADR* OPTIONS ?
NON-EVALUATIVE EVALUATIVE


IB Mediation
Facilitation
Coaching


Conferences
Appreciative Inquiry


Circles,
Restorative-


Justice & Practices
Consensus Bldg


Negotiation


Med/Arb
Ombudsman


Evaluative Mediation
Non-binding Arb.
Grievance process


Binding Arbitration
Investigation


JDR
Tribunal


Adjudication


Exploring the Question of Evaluative vs Non-Evaluative 
Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) Processes


LOWEST                   COST OF CONFLICT HIGHEST


HIGHER      CONTROL OVER OUTCOME LOWER


* The “A” in ADR 


traditionally refers to any 


Alternative to Courts, 


Litigation, the use of 


force, or the blind 


exercise of one’s rights 


*  The ADRI fully 


embraces Interest-


based (IB) Mediation, 


Arbitration, as well as 


many other non-


evaluative ADR 


processes.


CONFLICT RESOLUTION SPECTRUM


SEEKING WIN-WIN           FAIR & IMPARTIAL


AGREE    COLLABORATE    COOPERATE   ASSERT  
PARTICIPATE
ACCEPT OUTCOME


ENGAGE
GUIDE OUTCOME


THIRD
PARTY








1


ADRIC - Janet McKay


From: Grenier, Pierre [pierre.grenier@dentons.com]
Sent: Thursday, September 01, 2016 10:09 PM
To: Siemens, Scott
Cc: wmscott@nbnet.nb.ca; ADRIC - Janet McKay; Elton Simoes (elton.c.simoes@gmail.com); 


Dolores Herman - home; Marshall, Barrie (Barrie.Marshall@gowlingwlg.com); Stan Galbraith
Subject: RE: Sept 6 PRT Mtg


Good evening Scott: 
 
You have asked me to provide the following information: 
 


1) Provide a summary on the IMAQ Mediator Competency project 
 
IMAQ’s education committee organized two focus groups last August to question experienced mediators and 
collect important elements to develop a Competency Chart. 
 
Our committee has looked at different existing Competency Charts, including that of the ADRIC, IMI and other 
professional associations. 
 
We expect that our committee will submit to our Executive Committee in September/October a draft Chart for 
review. Once approved by our Board, the education committee will be responsible to develop tailored training 
program for our mediators to add to their competency. 
 
As part of our strategy and the additional training program that will be offered to our members, we expect to 
increase the requirements to become a certified IMAQ member with those of the Q. Med.  We also expect to 
develop more expertise in each of our sectors of activities (financial, construction, insurance, IP, labour relations, 
environment, health). 
 
Being a partner with the University of Sherbrooke for the past 16 years, IMAQ did not have a very active 
education committee (the basic training program leading to certification is provided by U of Sherb).  Our new 
education committee, formed last year as part of our reorganization strategy, has received the mandate to 
analyse training requirements for our members (mediators and arbitrators) and upcoming members, and prepare 
the ground work for becoming very active in training in our various sectors of activities.  
 
I will be pleased to provide any additional comments during our upcoming meeting.  
 


Best regards, 
 
Pierre 
 
Me Pierre D. Grenier, M.B.A., médiateur accrédité 
Président 
Institut de médiation et d'arbitrage du Québec (www.imaq.org) 
1445, rue Stanley, bureau 1501 
Montréal (Québec)  H3A 3T1 
Tél.: 514-878-8856 
pierre.grenier@dentons.com 
 
 
 
 
 
  


From: Siemens, Scott [mailto:Scott.Siemens@cra-arc.gc.ca]  
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2016 1:04 PM 
To: Elton Simoes (elton.c.simoes@gmail.com); wmscott@nbnet.nb.ca; Grenier, Pierre (pierre.grenier@dentons.com); 

















6.6.5 


ADR President’s Roundtable  -  September 6, 2016 


2:00pm – 3:00 pm (Eastern Time) 


 


 


 


(5) 1.  Welcome and review of May 18 meeting notes 


 


(30) 2.  ADRIC Update 


  (5) a) iMIS status / Roster Development (Janet) 


  (5) b) Affiliates’ workshop on Indigenous engagement (Scott) 


   c) Designation Best Practices 


  (5)  i) October workshop plans (Janet) 


  (10)  ii) IMAQ Mediator Competency project and Education 


    Committee (Pierre) 


  (5)  iii) ADRIA Mediator white paper (Dolores/Barrie/Stan) 


 


(15) 3.  Strengthening Affiliates 


  (8) a) Ontario Internship Project (Kathryn, for Jennifer) 


  (7) b) Policy Sharing (Elton) 


 


(10) 4.  Strengthening Leadership & Governance 


  (10) a) Atlantic’s transition – successes & challenges (Wendy) 


 


 5.  Next meeting – October 14th, 5:30pm – 9:00pm President’s Dinner 


Toll-free dial-in number:  1-888-333-7962 (see calendar invitation for local call numbers) 


Conference ID:  7290568 








 


ACR Annual Conference: A Virtual Track is Now Available  


 


View this email in your browser  


 


 


This is your ACR Conference Eye Opener 
 


  


The 2016 Annual Conference: Can't Attend in Person? Attend Virtually  
 


   


  


   


ACR 2016 Annual Conference #ACR2016  Can’t Attend Live? Attend 


Virtually  


Current Expanded Schedule Included 


  


We understand that some of you, for various reasons, will not be able to join us 


in Baltimore, MD during the 2016 Annual Conference.  While we cannot give 


you all the excitement, networking opportunities and skill building sessions 


planned. We are excited to announce the 2016 Annual Conference virtual track! 


This is the first time ACR has offered this type of participation. 


  


On Thursday, September 29, 2016, individuals will be able to engage in a full 


day of conference activities online.  The program consist of: 


   



http://us1.campaign-archive2.com/?u=665a76d1081c871ca8077ffb7&id=8afc953661&e=359075dffc

http://acrnet.us1.list-manage.com/track/click?u=665a76d1081c871ca8077ffb7&id=710a332396&e=359075dffc

http://acrnet.us1.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=665a76d1081c871ca8077ffb7&id=b3366aa312&e=359075dffc





o 8:15 AM   Morning Plenary featuring Judge Michael Aloi, Federal 


Magistrate Judge and former President of ACR.  


o 10:15 AM   The first 90-minute workshop is Applying Information and 


Communication Technologies to Multiparty Conflict Resolution Process 


by Colin Rule and Jason Gershowiz 


o 1:45 PM  After the lunch break, Pattie Porter will host a special edition of 


The Texas Conflict Coach radio blog program.  The topic for the program 


is Â Virtual Exchange: Renewing Civic Engagement at a Time of 


Unprecedented Interconnectedness 


o 3:30 PM   The last workshop of the day is a presentation by the National 


Association of Drug Court Professionals, Here’s Looking at You—


Targeting the Right Participants 


o 5:00 PM   We end the day with presentations by four 2016 New Voices. 


The New Voices: Emerging Professionals program selects, through a 


juried process, seven graduates or recent graduates to present a “Ted 


Talk like” presentation on research they had done and/or participated 


in.     


  


Virtual participants will be fully engaged in each session, just as if they were in 


the room.  This is the first time ACR has offered the ability to join the 


conference in this way, so we are excited to see how it all comes to together. 


The cost is $95 for ACR members and $125 for non-members.  


 


Join ACR at the 2016 Annual Conference September 28 – October 1, virtually 


or in person, at the Lord Baltimore Hotel. In the meantime, click here to listen to 


an interview with Pattie Porter, one of the presenters in the Virtual Track.  To 


learn more about the conference, go to www.acrannualconference.org. To see the 


current expanded schedule, click here.  To register, click registration on the 


menu at the top and the online registration button on the right.   


 See you in Baltimore. 


  



http://acrnet.us1.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=665a76d1081c871ca8077ffb7&id=06fab3dd2e&e=359075dffc

http://acrnet.us1.list-manage.com/track/click?u=665a76d1081c871ca8077ffb7&id=a6fc46c357&e=359075dffc

http://acrnet.us1.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=665a76d1081c871ca8077ffb7&id=ffd312ab3b&e=359075dffc





 


  


 


     


    


 








6.6.6 
Toronto ’16 Conference Workshop – PRT participation 


 
 
Per my email canvass to the PRT earlier this year, Robert Walden (Ontario based 
practitioner who works extensively with Indigenous groups) will be leading a workshop 
focused on how ADR practices and institutions can engage or support the work of the 
Truth and Reconciliation Commission recommendations.  Robert (Bob) is envisioning a 
process where the leadership of ADRIC and each Affiliate (president or designate), 
convene a discussion circle to consider what activities are currently taking place in an 
Indigenous context and what might be possible to that end.  The “inner circle” will firstly 
engage these questions, with the audience “outer circle” participating as led by the 
facilitator (Bob).  The goal of the workshop is to engage ADR practitioners in thinking 
and dreaming about their collective role in supporting or engaging several of the calls to 
action in the TRC recommendations.  Though the lens of the Affiliates (who represent 
the work of ADRIC on the ground), the hope is that workshop participants (those in the 
outer circle) will seek to be more strongly engaged with their regional Affiliates on this 
file.  The promotional text of the workshop, as in the Conference materials, follows. 
 
Indigenous Issues Workshop:  
What Does ADR Offer to Reconciliation?  


Facilitated by Robert Waldon, M.A., Q.Med, Bedford Consulting and Associates 
 
“What can we do?” and “What should we do?” to support the critical goals of reconciliation?  


 


All members are invited to participate in this very important workshop. Join ADRIC leadership from across 


Canada to explore these questions in a dialogue session and take part in developing answers that could 


lead to actions to support progress, positive change and which speak to our collective professional 


commitment and principles.  








9/2/2016 CONTRACTOR MANUAL SEPTEMBER 2, 2016.DOCX 


 


  


 


 


Contractor Manual 
TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


2 


 


COPYRIGHT 


All rights reserved. No part of this work may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, 
mechanical, recording, or otherwise, or accessed or used by any information storage and retrieval system. Permission is 
not given for reproduction of the materials for use in other published works in any form without express written 
permission from the ADR Institute of Alberta (herein also referred to as ADRIA),  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


2016 The ADR Institute of Alberta 


Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 


7128 Ada Boulevard 


Edmonton AB, T5B 4E4 


Phone (780) 433-4881 Fax (780) 433-9024 


E-Mail: education@adralberta.com 


www.adralberta.com 


 


  



mailto:education@adralberta.com

http://www.adralberta.com/





 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


3 


 


CONTENTS 


WELCOME TO ADRIA ....................................................................................................................................................... 6 


Using This Manual ............................................................................................................................................................ 6 


Your Role as a Contractor ................................................................................................................................................. 6 


Promoting ADR and ADRIA Programs ........................................................................................................................... 7 


GENERAL CONTRACTOR CONDITIONS ....................................................................................................................... 8 


POLICIES FOR CONTRACTORS .................................................................................................................................... 10 


Professional Conduct & Ethics Policy for Contractors .................................................................................................. 10 


Guidelines ................................................................................................................................................................... 10 


Copyright Policy ............................................................................................................................................................. 11 


Confidentiality of Material and Information .................................................................................................................. 12 


ADRIA INSTRUCTIONAL TEAMS ................................................................................................................................. 13 


Guiding Principles ...................................................................................................................................................... 13 


Expectations .................................................................................................................................................................... 13 


Use of Course Materials .................................................................................................................................................. 14 


INSTRUCTORS .................................................................................................................................................................. 15 


Procedures for New Instructors....................................................................................................................................... 15 


ADRIC Courses .......................................................................................................................................................... 15 


Instructor Responsibilities ............................................................................................................................................... 15 


Instructor Expectations ................................................................................................................................................... 17 


COACHES ........................................................................................................................................................................... 18 


Procedures for New Coaches .......................................................................................................................................... 18 


ADRIC Courses .......................................................................................................................................................... 18 


Coach Responsibilities .................................................................................................................................................... 19 


Coach Expectations ......................................................................................................................................................... 19 


Checklist for Coaching a Breakout Group ................................................................................................................. 20 


Online Practice Session Coaches .................................................................................................................................... 22 


Online Coach Responsibilities ........................................................................................................................................ 22 


Online Coach Expectations ............................................................................................................................................. 22 


EVALUATORS – Arbitration Stream ................................................................................................................................ 23 


Evaluator Responsibilities ............................................................................................................................................... 23 







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


4 


 


EVALUATORS – Mediation Stream .................................................................................................................................. 24 


Evaluator Responsibilities ............................................................................................................................................... 24 


ASSESSORS AND SUPERVISORS .................................................................................................................................. 25 


Chartered Mediator Assessments .................................................................................................................................... 25 


Qualifications: ............................................................................................................................................................ 25 


Responsibilities:.......................................................................................................................................................... 25 


Supervised Mock Mediations for Qualified Mediator .................................................................................................... 26 


Qualifications: ............................................................................................................................................................ 26 


Responsibilities:.......................................................................................................................................................... 26 


ROLE-PLAYERS ................................................................................................................................................................ 27 


Qualifications: ............................................................................................................................................................ 27 


Responsibilities:.......................................................................................................................................................... 27 


Expectations ................................................................................................................................................................ 27 


PROVIDING FEEDBACK ................................................................................................................................................. 28 


Coaching For Excellence: USA Models ......................................................................................................................... 31 


Conflict Pros Coaching Model ................................................................................................................................... 31 


DEGREES OF COMPETENCE: ADRIA GUIDELINES .................................................................................................. 32 


CONTRACTOR RATES, EXPENSES, AND INVOICING .............................................................................................. 34 


Guidelines for Submitting Invoices ................................................................................................................................ 35 


Common errors in submitting invoices ........................................................................................................................... 36 


SPECIALIZED TRAINING COURSES ............................................................................................................................ 37 


Course Criteria ................................................................................................................................................................ 37 


Specialized Training Guidelines ..................................................................................................................................... 38 


Specialized Training Instructor Expectations ................................................................................................................. 38 


Rates ........................................................................................................................................................................... 39 


TRAINING FACILITIES .................................................................................................................................................... 40 


Edmonton ........................................................................................................................................................................ 40 


Calgary ............................................................................................................................................................................ 41 


Professional Development Benefits .................................................................................................................................... 43 


Instructors and Coaches .................................................................................................................................................. 43 


List of Appendices ............................................................................................................................................................... 44 







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


5 


 


 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


6 


 


WELCOME TO ADRIA 


Using This Manual 


This manual was originally developed in March 2004 and last updated in August 2016. It pulls 
together a number of important policies and procedures into one comprehensive package. It is meant 
as a handy reference for your work with ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA).  After reading the 
Contractor Manual, please see Appendix A to sign, scan, and send the contract to 
education@adralberta.com  


Your Role as a Contractor 


For the purposes of this manual “Contractor” refers to any individual contracted to ADRIA for the 
purposes of Training and Professional Development including: instructor, coach, on-line coach, 
evaluator, assessor, supervisor, or role-player.  


The task of being an effective Training and Professional Development Contractor with ADRIA is an 
important one as can be seen by looking at who you are accountable to.  You are accountable to: 


 Yourself 


 The students 


 Other Contractors  


 ADRIA 


 ADRIC  


 The integrity of the course material 


 The field of conflict resolution as a 
profession


This means that you are always ‘on’ when you are serving as a Contractor and the importance of 
‘walking the talk’ (modeling the values, principles, and skills of the interest-based/understanding-
based approach) cannot be over-stressed.  You will be working with people from many different 
walks of life, with many different backgrounds, attitudes, abilities, goals, and reasons for taking the 
courses. Being effective in such a wide variety of contexts requires the flexibility of Gumby, a lot of 
focus, energy, attention to detail, a solid grounding in ADRIA and ADRIC course materials, and 
occasionally great patience. Your job is the same with each student: to assist them on their journey 
toward integrating the concepts and skills taught in the courses, by providing an embodiment of those 
concepts and skills in your self-presentation and also by providing feedback that is thorough, honest, 
respectful, sensitive, and congruent with ADRIA course material. 


  



mailto:education@adralberta.com





 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


7 


 


Promoting ADR and ADRIA Programs 


Whenever you work with ADRIA students, it is a golden opportunity to promote ADR processes and 
the courses offered through ADRIA. The more people know about our program and course offerings, 
the stronger we can become as a Society, which also supports your work. 


You can promote the work of ADRIA and the profession of conflict management by: 


 Speaking to the value of ADR processes in a variety of applications (professional, personal). 


 Promoting courses coming up, being aware of upcoming events, including ADRIA in-house 
electives, and referring students to our website. Note: as courses and programs have changed 
significantly over the last several years, please ensure you provide correct and current 
information. Current information can be found on our website; browse our site regularly to keep 
up to date on our programs.  Regularly reading our newsletter is another way to stay current on 
our programs.  If you are unsure about programs and course, please direct students to the 
Education Administrator. 


 Promoting the value of designations and encouraging those who plan to become practitioners to 
obtain a designation. 


 Reminding students of the value of joining the on-line mediation skills practice sessions. 


 Encouraging students to start their own practice group to reinforce skills taught in class. 


 “walking the talk”, being professional, referring complaints to ADRIA.  All ADRIA members 
agree to adhere to the ADR Institute of Canada’s Code of Ethics. As an education contractor for 
ADRIA please remember that you are modeling behaviours and attitudes for our students. 


 Supporting instructors, coaches, assessors and students 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


8 


 


GENERAL CONTRACTOR CONDITIONS 


 All Training and Professional Development Contractors must be active full ADRIA members in 
good standing.  


 The Contractor’s relationship with ADRIA, as created by this agreement, is that of an 
independent contractor for the purposes of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and any similar 
provincial tax legislation.  Nothing contained in the agreement shall be regarded or construed as 
creating any relationship (whether by way of employer/employee, agency, joint venture, 
association or partnership) between the parties other than as an independent contractor as set 
forth herein. (See Appendix B for Invoice Template) 


 The Contractor shall be subject to ADRIA’s Complaints Resolution Policy as outlined on 
ADRIA’s website. It is the responsibility of all ADRIA Contractors to take immediate and 
appropriate action in filing or responding to a complaint. 


 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, provincial and municipal laws, rules and 
regulations arising out of or connected with the performance of the Services under this agreement 
by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall be responsible for all Employment Insurance, Canada 
Pension Plan contributions, Income Tax and Worker’s Compensation payments relating to or 
performed by the Contractor.  Payments relating to any of the above shall be the responsibility of 
the Contractor and shall be forwarded by the Contractor as appropriate, directly to the 
government agencies involved. 


 The Contractor hereby indemnifies ADRIA in respect of any amount that may become payable 
by ADRIA as a result of non-compliance by the Contractor with any legislation requiring him to 
make any remittances on his own behalf, and without limiting the generality of this provision, 
specifically indemnifies ADRIA in respect to any claims arising through or under Workers’ 
Compensation or Occupational Health and Safety legislation or regulations.  Further, the 
Contractor specifically agrees that in the event that ADRIA becomes liable to make any payment 
under any statute or regulation as a result of non-compliance by the Contractor, ADRIA may 
recover any such amount by withholding it from any amount otherwise payable to the Contractor, 
and as such the set-off or withhold is hereby specifically authorized or the Contractor will 
reimburse ADRIA. 


 The Contractor acknowledges that s/he is being retained as a Contractor to ADRIA and that as 
such s/he does not have the authority and cannot commit or bind ADRIA to any other matter, 
contract or negotiation without the prior written authorization of ADRIA. 


 ADRIA shall make available such space and facilities as may be required to perform the services 
described in this agreement at the location specified. 


 There are no representatives, warranties, agreements or understandings between the parties hereto 
other than as expressly contained herein, and this agreement shall contain all the terms and 
conditions agreed on by the parties hereto. 


 A waiver or any breach of a provision hereof shall not be binding upon a party unless the waiver 
is in writing and the waiver shall not affect such party’s rights with respect to any other future 
breach. 







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


9 


 


 All notices and communications to the Contractor in connection with this agreement may be 
addressed to: 


Director of Professional Development 
The ADR Institute of Alberta  
Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 
7128 Ada Boulevard  
Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 


 Upon expiration of this agreement no further written or other notices will be required in respect 
of termination of this agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor or Director of 
Professional Development may terminate this contract at any time upon 30 days written notice of 
their intention to do so.  This agreement may be amended in whole or in part from time to time 
by ADRIA, and any such amendments are to be in writing. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


10 


 


POLICIES FOR CONTRACTORS 


Professional Conduct & Ethics Policy for Contractors 


The ADR Institute of Alberta provides high quality professional training in dispute resolution and 
believes that all Contractors, while engaged in services with ADRIA, must be supportive and 
consistent with the goals and objectives of the Training and Professional Development Programs and 
the National Mediator and Arbitrator Designations.  The Director of Professional Development is 
responsible for the overall management of the Training and Professional Development Programs. 


Guidelines 


1. Students having concerns regarding Contractors or ADRIA training materials shall refer these 
directly to the Director of Professional Development. 


2. When on contract with ADRIA, a Contractor’s first priority is to promote the Society and its 
Training and Professional Development programs above his or her personal business interests.  
Soliciting and/or marketing business contracts and distribution of personal business brochures is 
inappropriate and unacceptable.  Directing students to a personal website or business is not 
acceptable unless specifically asked for by the student. Contractors shall use discretion when 
handing out business cards to participants. 


3. Contractors may not use class lists or email addresses to solicit business or for personal use.  
Students that ask specifically for Contractor emails or contact information are allowed to provide 
this information. Confidential information and email addresses remain the property of ADRIA. 


4. Contractors shall not discuss their remuneration with course participants. 


5. Contractors are expected to be supportive of the structure of the Training and Professional 
Development Programs.  This includes discussion of current course fees and various courses.   
Note: as courses and programs have changed significantly over the last several years, please 
ensure you provide correct and current information.  If you are unsure about programs and 
course, please direct students to the Education Administrator. 


6. Decisions regarding any changes to course delivery (i.e. date, location, instructor, coaches, 
number of required participants, number of coaches required) are the responsibility of the 
Education Administrator.  Selection of Contractors is the Education Administrator’s 
responsibility. 


7. Contractors who wish to observe core courses or specialized training courses must receive prior 
attendance approval from the Director of Professional Development.   


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


11 


 


Copyright Policy 


1. Contractors are to comply with the Copyright Act. 


2. No materials may be used in any part of the ADRIA Training and Professional Development 
Program for which copyright approval is required and not requested or obtained. 


3. ADRIA is responsible for obtaining permission from copyright holders. 


4. Any Contractor who wishes to use copyrighted materials, which are not part of the ADRIA 
Training and Professional Development Program, must first notify the ADRIA Director of 
Professional Development and provide all details necessary for the Director of Professional 
Development to seek approval for use of copyrighted material.  No copyrighted materials will be 
used until the proper approval is obtained. 


5. Making single copies of articles for private research or study is permitted and is considered “fair 
dealing”.  Making multiple copies without permission is a violation of the Copyright Act. 


6. Retyping articles, portions of books or other copyrighted material without consent of the 
copyright holder is an infringement of copyright. 


7. Special permission from the Director of Professional Development is required to use films, 
videos or recordings in the classroom. 


8. In the interests of promoting and educating individuals and groups in the use of ADR, the Society 
permits use of its publications and other materials protected by copyright on the following terms: 


a) The user may not reproduce any material produced or published by ADRIA without 
permission from ADRIA, and if permission is granted, the user must  appropriately 
acknowledge ADRIA on the reproduction as the course of the materials; 


b) Approval for the use of ADRIA materials will be made on a individual request basis and 
subject to compensation being paid to ADRIA; 


c) The Director of Professional Development will approve a schedule relating to the 
compensation payable for use or reproduction of ADRIA materials; 


d) In special circumstances, the Director of Professional Development may waive payment of 
compensation by the user. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


12 


 


Confidentiality of Material and Information 


1. The Contractor acknowledges that certain materials and information made available to the 
Contractor by ADRIA in the performance of the Services will be of a confidential nature.  The 
Contractor shall not, directly or indirectly, use the confidential information including class lists 
and e-mail addresses for his/ her own benefit, or disclose to another any confidential information, 
whether or not acquired, learned, obtained or developed by the Contractor alone or in conjunction 
with others, except as such disclosure or use may be required in connection with the performance 
of the Services or as may be consented to in writing to ADRIA. 


2. The Confidential Information is and shall remain the sole and exclusive property of ADRIA 
regardless of whether such information was generated by the Contractor or by others, and the 
Contractor agrees that upon termination of the Agreement he/she shall deliver promptly to 
ADRIA all such tangible part of the Confidential Information including records, date, notes, 
reports, proposals, client lists, correspondence, materials, marketing or sales information, 
computer programs, equipment, or other documents or property which are in the possession or 
under the control of the Contractor without retaining copies thereof. 


3. Each of the foregoing obligations of the Contractor in this clause shall also apply to any 
confidential information of customers, joint venture parties, contractors and other entities, of any 
nature whatsoever, with whom ADRIA, or any associate or affiliate of ADRIA, has business 
relations. 


4. Notwithstanding the foregoing of provisions of this clause, the Contractor shall not be liable for 
the disclosure or use of any of the Confidential Information to the extent that: 


a) The Confidential Information is or becomes available to the public from a source other than 
the Contractor and through no fault of the Contractor; or 


b) The Confidential Information is lawfully obtained by the Contractor from a third party or a 
source outside of this Agreement. 


5. The covenants and agreements contained in this clause shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party in whole or in part without the 
prior consent of the other party.  


6. ADRIA rosters of Contractors are to be used for the purpose of our training only. This roster 
cannot be distributed or reproduced in any form other than ADRIA business. 


7. Individual contact information of Contractors is allowed to be given to students if student 
requests for private coaching or other opportunities and if the Contractor has provided consent. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


13 


 


ADRIA INSTRUCTIONAL TEAMS 


Instructional Team: the instructors, coaches, evaluators and assessors, as well as role players who 


deliver training for ADRIA, as well as the Education Administrator and Director of Professional 
Development 


Guiding Principles 


Adaptive: The Instruction Team will be responsive and adaptive to the needs of adult learners. 


Demonstrating Excellence: The members of the Instructional Team will demonstrate excellence in their 


roles, striving always to deliver the best possible training to learners. 


Respect: The members of the Instructional Team will be professional and respectful in their approach to the 


training, in their interactions with ADRIA staff, with students and with each other. 


Integrity: The members of the Instructional Team will bring a high degree of personal integrity to their roles. 


Accountability: The members of the Instructional Team will be accountable and responsible for the delivery 


of course material. 


Expectations 


All members of the Instructional Team are expected to meet the annual requirements for professional 
development:  


 Attend the annual workshop / training meetings at no charge – when scheduled 


 Be a full member in good standing  


 As pertinent update ADRIA with any professional development and/or other training 


 Remain current on what is happening at ADRIA in regards to upcoming training or events (this 
information is available on the ADRIA website and in the Newsletter) 


 Have an understanding of what is required to complete ADRIA certificate programs and be able 
to articulate requirements to students 


 Be aware of the requirements for applying for designations 


 Provide input into course development when asked 


 Support other members of the Instructional Team 


 Provide feedback on the course once course has been concluded by completing Debrief Forms 
provided for either the instructor or the coach (Appendix C) 


 Be available regularly to be considered an active member of the roster. Members who are not 
regularly available may be removed 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


14 


 


Use of Course Materials 
 All instructors and coaches shall use course materials in accordance with the Copyright Act and 


ADRIA Copyright Policy. 


 Course materials and videos will be stored at the campuses for instructors’ use and may not be 
removed without the consent of the Education Administrator. 


 Instructors are responsible for returning videotapes, DVDs, USBs, and other audio/visual 
equipment immediately following a private or out-of-town course and will be held responsible 
for lost or damage. 


 Instruction will be consistent with the course materials provided in order to maintain course 
congruence between instructors and cities.  ADRIA encourages instructors to provide examples 
from their own expertise. 


 It is the responsibility of the instructor/coaches to let ADRIA know if there is any incongruence 
with the existing material or malfunctioning of any of the equipment (computers, screens, video 
cameras, etc.) 


 Additional materials provided by instructor must have prior approval of the Director of 
Professional Development. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


15 


 


INSTRUCTORS 


Procedures for New Instructors 


After your application has been accepted, you will be paired with an experienced instructor for at 
minimum three sessions (example, three 2-3 day sets of course dates) before being scheduled to 
instruct solo.   


This instructor-mentor will provide feedback to the Director of Professional development on your 
performance.  Your file will be reviewed and a determination will be made as to whether ADRIA will 
engage you as an instructor.  (See Appendix D for new instructor Expectations and Performance 
Review forms) 


 Once you have been approved to instruct, your name will be added to the instructor roster.  


ADRIC Courses 


In addition to ADRIA’s instructor applications, instructors of the National Introductory Arbitration 
and National Introductory Mediation courses will need to complete ADRIC’s instructor application 
and submit to ADRIA for preliminary approval.  ADRIA will forward successful applications to 
ADRIC’s National Training and Accreditation Committee (NTAC) for final approval. 


Note: Applications are only available through the ADRIA office when there are roster openings. 


Instructor Responsibilities 
 Setting up the classroom, which may include rearranging tables, preparing flipcharts, cueing 


PowerPoint presentation and videos, designating break out rooms, etc. 


 Communicating with all members of the Instructional Team one week prior to the course.  This is 
at the discretion of the instructor based on course requirements. 


 If teaching a course involving a panel of experts, it is your responsibility to make sure that the 
panel is selected and confirmed at least one week prior to the start of class. You must also get 
approval by the Director of Professional Development on your panel selections. 


 Providing coaches with clear instructions and timelines around activities 


 Providing coaches/evaluators/role-players with clear expectations and timely feedback (See 
Appendix C for Course Debrief forms and Appendix D for Performance Review forms) 


 Being willing to receive feedback from coaches, staff, and students. 


 Upon the request of ADRIA, providing and coordinating  supervised opportunities for New 
Instructors to teach a portion of the course material and to provide feedback on the teaching  


 Coordinating with the instructor of the other part of the course (if teaching one part only) to 
ensure a smooth transition and to pass along important information regarding student progress 
and subjects covered 


 Cleaning the classroom at the end of the last day of teaching, whiteboards, papers,  including 
rearranging tables and chairs so the room looks as it did when you began (for some class space, 
ADRIA is charged a fee if the room is not set back to the way it was found) 


 Assessing student progress including marking exams.  Note: It is the instructor’s responsibility to 
mark the exams, not the coaches’. 







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


16 


 


 Submitting all final marks in to the ADRIA office within one week of the course conclusion 


 Debriefing with the Instructional Team at the conclusion of the course 


This final debrief is a formal process that consists of a set list of questions that cover self-
performance, team performance, course materials, facilities, learner gaps, and student tracking. This 
form can be done and submitted within one week of end of course.  The instructor will share the 
outcomes of the team debrief with the Director of Professional Development. (See Appendix C) 


 Submitting the following immediately following the completion of the course: 


o Any special requirements for the ADRIC courses as outlined in the course procedures 
documents. (See Appendix E) 


o An invoice for services provided (see Appendix B) 


o The names of all of your coaches on your invoice 


o The copy of the class list confirming attendance 


o All leftover materials, USB drives, recorders, cameras and classroom materials 


o Student evaluations, quizzes, notes, and final grades 


o All debrief and feedback forms (Appendix C, and Appendix D if applicable) 


 ADRIA will provide a survey to all students in the course for feedback purposes.  Most surveys 
will be delivered to students electronically.  However, occasionally instructors will be asked to 
have students complete a paper survey; these should be returned with other course documents. 
Results will be shared with the instructor. Instructors are not to provide their own class survey. 


Note for Calgary instructors: For courses scheduled in Calgary, instructors are asked to courier 


student course materials (this includes student quizzes, evaluations, and evaluator notes*) to the 
ADRIA office care of the Education Administrator.  The instructor may add the cost of couriering to 
their instructor invoice, provided a receipt is included.  Please return all other course materials to the 
locked cabinet. 


*It is not necessary to send physical copies of the audio and video recordings.  The Calgary Education 
Liaison will be responsible for uploading and sending evaluations (recordings and forms) to the 
Education Administrator at the end of each course which uses an SER 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


17 


 


Instructor Expectations 
 As an ADRIA instructor you will support ADRIA as an organization, promoting ADRIA courses 


and services to the students you work with 


 You will be in communication with the ADRIA office staff within the week prior to the course to 
make sure that you have all of the information you need in order to instruct the course (ie: 
number of students, number of coaches, materials, updates, USB and any new information that 
ADRIA would like passed on to students or coaches etc.) 


 You will come to class adequately prepared to instruct, having read over the instructor guidelines 
and material to be covered 


 You will arrive at least 30 minutes before the start of the class to set-up the classroom and deal 
with logistics (ie: ensuring that the PowerPoint presentation works before students arrive, 
checking to verify that you have all of the correct printed material needed) 


 You will keep the Director of Professional Development OR Education Administrator informed 
about any situations which may arise in class 


 You will use course materials in accordance with the guidelines on Page 14) 


 If a Lead Coach is assigned, you will touch base prior to class starting as to what your 
expectations are and the level of involvement needed. (checking on break out rooms, coffee/tea, 
monitoring breaks and timing, etc)  


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


18 


 


COACHES  


Procedures for New Coaches 


After your application has been accepted, you will be expected to attend a New Coach Orientation 
Session before starting to coach. 


Coaches will have the first three coach days, without payment as part of the new coach training. You 
will work with the instructor or experienced coaches who will solicit feedback on your performance. 
Upon completion of the three days, your file will be reviewed and a determination will be made as to 
whether coaching is a fit for you. Instructors are able to make a recommendation for additional 
mentoring if more practice is needed.  (See Appendix D for new coach Expectations and Performance 
Review forms) 


 Once you have been approved to coach, your name will be added to the coaching roster and you will 
be able to invoice for your coaching services. (See Appendix B)  


ADRIC Courses 


In addition to ADRIA’s coach applications, coaches for the National Introductory Mediation course 
will need to complete ADRIC’s coach application form and submit to ADRIA.  ADRIA will forward 
applications to ADRIC’s National Training and Accreditation Committee (NTAC) for final approval. 


Note: Applications are only available through the ADRIA office when there are roster openings. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


19 


 


Coach Responsibilities 
 Assisting instructors by supervising student role-plays and skill-drills 


 Being attentive in class to be able to provide perspectives when asked by the instructor 


 Being a model for students and providing them with a safe learning environment 


 Supporting the instructor in the delivery of the course material and activities 


 Clarifying any inconsistencies or concerns with material to the instructor  


 Notifying the instructor should students raise inconsistencies in what they’ve heard from 
different coaches or instructors. (Assure students that different instructors/coaches will focus on 
different areas and that much of negotiation and mediation is an art, not a prescribed, formulaic 
science). 


 Being willing to receive feedback from the instructor, students, fellow coaches, and staff. 


 Providing instructors with timely feedback regarding student progress 


 Debriefing with the Instructional Team at the conclusion of the course. 


 This final debrief is a formal process that consists of a set list of questions that cover self-
performance, team performance, course materials, facilities, learner gaps, and student tracking. 
(See Appendix C) 


Coach Expectations 
 As an ADRIA coach you will support ADRIA as an organization, promoting ADRIA courses and 


services to the students you work with 


 You must provide your availability to ADRIA, using the method set by ADRIA, and must give 
immediate notice to ADRIA if that availability changes 


 You will arrive 20-30 minutes before the class begins to meet with the instructor, the time can be 
confirmed with the instructor prior to class beginning. 


 You will come to the course adequately prepared, having reviewed the course material 


 You will be focused and present while in the class 


 You will resist teaching new material to students while in a small group, keeping in line with the 
stage of learning that the students are at 


 You will not discredit or openly disagree with the methodology and techniques being taught by 
the instructor or course material (if you have any concerns about course content, this can be 
discussed during the team debrief or privately with the Director of Professional Development) 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


20 


 


Checklist for Coaching a Breakout Group 


 Brief introductions, if needed. 


 Creation of safe space for learning. This is easier said than done. It is important that each 
student feels safe to experiment and make mistakes in the breakout group. This requires trust in 
you and the other students. Depending on the course you are coaching in, you may need to raise 
the issue of confidentiality among the students. Discuss their needs, if any, for confidentiality and 
get clear agreement before proceeding. Also discuss any other needs they may have with respect 
to their participation. 


 Organizational business – who goes first, second, etc. Also make clear how long the role-play 
and debrief will be for each person. 


 Time management – It can be most challenging to manage the allotted time so that each student 
gets equal role-play/debrief time AND so that the session ends on time. If you anticipate that the 
session time will be difficult to manage, invite the students’ assistance in making sure that each 
participant gets equal time, and that you finish on time. 


 Discuss with the skilled person how s/he sees you being most beneficial with respect to providing 
feedback and/or direction. On what basis, if any, would s/he want in-the-moment interventions 
from you? Given that you will be providing feedback on all major aspects of the student’s work, 
how does s/he want to receive your feedback? Is there anything in particular that they are 
working on that they would like specific feedback on? 


 Make sure there is clarity on the role-player’s part about the nature of their task. S/he may 
need to hear from you about how positional/angry/easy to be in the role. Let role-player know 
you may ask them to “ramp it up” or “tone it down” using hand signals (thumbs up to be more 
positional or thumbs down to ease off) Invite the role-player to stay in character for the duration 
of the role-play. 


 Be clear about your expectations of observers – what specific kind of feedback you will be 
asking them to offer. Students are often unclear about how to be an effective observer, so the 
students may benefit from your clarity about this (body language, specific active listening skills, 
types of questions being asked, DESC, etc). 


 After the role-play, it is a good idea to invite the skilled person to 1) take a minute and silently 
reflect on the role-play and his/her work before starting his/her self-evaluation 2) Ask the skilled 
person to focus first on the things that s/he believes went well before getting to the areas of 
difficulty 3) Move next to the role-player’s experience of the skilled person’s work (what was 
effective, what got in the way, etc.), 4) hear briefly from the observers, and 5) finish off with 
your own observations. (for more information on providing feedback, please refer to Providing 
Feedback on Page 28)  


 The skilled person’s role-play and debrief time belongs to that person. His/her time should not 
be taken up by questions and comments from others that are not specifically about the skilled 
person’s exhibit. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


21 


 


 Remember the importance of modeling exemplary, congruent behavior as a coach. The 
students are looking to see how you handle all aspects of the session. How you embody (or don’t) 
the values of the interest-based approach in your coaching work sends a message to them about 
your own level of buy-in to this approach, and will have consequences beyond your breakout 
session. 


 Encourage your groups to find value in all coaching/instructor styles, the many styles will 
enhance the students learning  


 If any concerns or comments arise during your group discussions, ask permission from student to 
seek clarity from instructor/staff on how best to move forward for their situation, this will 
model and support  what we are teaching and provide transparency for the group 


 Provide clear, concise, relevant feedback for exercises.  Too much positive or negative 
feedback can have students become overloaded or overwhelmed or even over confident 


 The depth of feedback provided is dependent on the level of course being taken.  Give 
appropriate feedback for beginner vs. advanced courses vs. condensed private contracts  


 Be attentive to the students’ needs without being intrusive or intimidating. 


 Thank the students at the conclusion of the session for their hard work and risk-taking. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


22 


 


Online Practice Session Coaches 


Online coaches will be expected to participate in one orientation session online to ensure that the 
coach is comfortable with the technology and process for online coaching. Your first online coaching 
session will be without payment as part of the new coach training.  You will work with an instructor 
or experienced coach who will review and solicit feedback on your comments and instructions to 
online students. Alternatively, the Director of Professional Development may choose to review the 
recorded practice session to determine your suitability for online coaching. If more practice is needed, 
a second trial session may be scheduled. Once you have been approved to coach, your name will be 
added to the coaching roster and you will be able to bill for your coaching services. (See Appendix B 
for Invoice and Appendix D for Expectations and Performance Review forms). 


Keeping in mind the Coach Responsibilities and Expectations, outlined on Page 19, the following 
sections outline the specific Responsibilities and Expectations of Online Coaches as they differ from 
traditional forms of coaching, based on the medium of online sessions. 


Online Coach Responsibilities 
 Attending training for the online Mediation Skills Practice Sessions platform. 


 Administering online Mediation Skills Practice Sessions  


 Login to the session at least 5 minutes prior to the start time to set up and troubleshoot any 
audio/video problems 


 Understanding the participants’ backgrounds and objectives prior to starting the sessions 


 Discussing with the learner-mediator what level of feedback they want from you 


 Prompting role-players in order to elicit appropriate levels of compliance or resistance 


 Providing feedback and coaching to the learner-mediator according to learner-mediator’s 
background and goals 


 Recording the meeting as soon as you log on, saving the video to a desired location at the end of 
the session. The video must then be emailed along with your invoice for the session to 
education@adralberta.com. Deleting video after delivery from your computer. 


Online Coach Expectations 
 As an ADRIA coach you will support ADRIA as an organization, promoting ADRIA courses and 


services to the students you work with 


 You must provide your availability to ADRIA, using the method set by ADRIA, and must give 
immediate notice to ADRIA if that availability changes 


 You will come to the session adequately prepared, having reviewed the role-play material 


 You will be focused and present while in session 


 You will not discredit or openly disagree with the methodology and techniques being taught by 
ADRIA instructors or course materials (if you have any concerns about course content, this can 
be discussed during the team debrief or privately with the Director of Professional Development) 


  



mailto:education@adralberta.com





 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


23 


 


EVALUATORS – ARBITRATION STREAM 


Evaluators may be hired for student awards submitted 30 days after the final day of a course or to 
review an unsuccessful award.  An evaluator may also be hired after a student has been unsuccessful 
on their written award and has 1) appealed, or 2) written a second award.  (See Appendix E for 
evaluation procedures).  All unsuccessful awards are reviewed by two approved arbitration evaluators 
prior to a student being deemed unsuccessful in the National Introductory Arbitration course. 


Evaluator Responsibilities  
 Reviewing sample awards and grades to calibrate marking for program consistency. 


 Providing the students with sufficiently detailed written feedback, including what they lost marks 
on and how they can improve (making sure it is clear and legible – please use digital forms 
provided to type feedback) 


 Please be sure that any automatic fail is clearly marked and explained for the student. 


 Submitting all feedback and grades within 45 days after the student submission deadline.  


 Reviewing the student award with an unsuccessful student, at ADRIA’s request, giving them a 
better understanding of what was expected of them and how they can meet those expectations in 
the future 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


24 


 


EVALUATORS – MEDIATION STREAM 


Evaluators may be hired for student evaluations on the final day of courses, to evaluate audio or video 
recordings, or for re-evaluations after a student has been unsuccessful in a course evaluation.  
Evaluations should not be confused with assessments or supervised mock mediations.  (See Assessors 
and Supervisors in the next section for information on C.Med Assessments or Supervised Mock 
Mediations for Q.Med designation; See Appendix E for course procedures) 


Evaluator Responsibilities  
 Reading the course material and evaluation criteria prior to evaluating 


 Providing instructors with timely feedback 


 Supporting the instructor and other evaluators/coaches 


 Attending an evaluation calibration session organized by the Director of Professional 
Development 


 Providing the instructor with a comprehensive, written evaluation of students from Day 6 
evaluations by the end of Day 6 (for in-class evaluations).  Or providing the Evaluation 
Observation Form for the National Introductory Mediation course. 


 Providing the students with sufficiently detailed written feedback, including what they lost marks 
on and how they can improve (making sure it is clear and legible) 


 Providing students with private limited verbal feedback after self-evaluation has been completed.  
Use your discretion regarding the level and depth of the feedback give, an example is: 2 or 3 
things done well, 1 or 2 items specifically that need improvement). Again this is dependent on 
the level of the course being taken. 


 Evaluator Feedback should be given privately (without other students in the room) so as not to 
give an advantage to those waiting to be evaluated.  


 The evaluator should not give any indication to the student whether they have passed or failed 


 The role players are not asked to provide feedback during the evaluation, and at most they can 
provide 2 positives comments (stars) and one reminder (wish) 


 If conditional pass is being considered, talk to the instructor as to the criteria and expectations 
that will need to be met to become successful. The instructor will need to consult with the 
Director of Professional Development before a conditional pass is granted. A detailed list of 
expectations in order for the students to be successful needs to be provided. 


 Ensuring student evaluations are properly recorded 


 Reviewing the evaluation video or audio with an unsuccessful student at their request, giving 
them a better understanding of what was expected of them and how they can meet those 
expectations in the future 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


25 


 


ASSESSORS AND SUPERVISORS 


Chartered Mediator Assessments 


Qualifications: 


 Hold a Chartered Mediator Designation in good standing 


 Possess an in depth knowledge of mediation training and standards  


 Experience with conducting evaluations/assessments  


 Approval from the Designation Committee 


Responsibilities: 


 Maintaining your Chartered Mediation designation in good standing 


 Attending an assessment calibration session organized by the Director of Professional 
Development 


 Reading assessment criteria prior to the assessment 


 Keeping the assessment organized and providing guidance to the role-players 


 Debriefing with the role-players at the conclusion of the assessment 


 Giving limited, private feedback to the student after self-evaluation is completed (what went well 
2 or 3 specific items, 1 or 2 things that need to be worked on) 


 The assessor should not give any indication to the student whether or not they have been 
successful. 


 Ensuring the Assessment is video recorded 


 Providing the ADRIA office with a comprehensive, written assessment of the learner 


 Submitting all recordings, forms, and documents to ADRIA’s Education Department within 48 
hours of Assessment 


 Returning all video recording equipment and materials provided by ADRIA to either the 
Education Department (Edmonton) or the Alberta Security College locker (Calgary) within 48 
hours. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


26 


 


Supervised Mock Mediations for Qualified Mediator  


Qualifications: 


 Hold a Chartered Mediator Designation in good standing 


 Possess an in depth knowledge of mediation training and standards  


 Experience with conducting evaluations/assessments  


 Be an ADRIA instructor or coach 


 Other Chartered Mediators who wish to join the Q.Med Supervised Mock Mediation Supervisor 
Roster should be able to demonstrate experience in mediation evaluations.  Prospective 
supervisors are asked to submit a recorded (video or audio) evaluation along with the evaluation 
and evaluator notes to ADRIA’s Education Department in order to ensure consistency of 
evaluations. 


Responsibilities: 


 Maintaining your Chartered Mediation designation in good standing 


 Attending a calibration session organized by the Director of Professional Development 


 Reading Supervised Mock Mediation (SMM) criteria prior to the mock mediation 


 Keeping the mock mediation organized and providing guidance to the role-players  


 Debriefing with the role-players at the conclusion of the mock mediation 


 Giving private feedback to the student after self-evaluation is completed (what went well 2 or 3 
specific items, 1 or 2 things that need to be worked on) 


 Providing the ADRIA office with a comprehensive, written assessment of the learner 


 Submitting all recordings, forms, and documents to ADRIA’s Education Department within 48 
hours of Supervised Mock Mediation.  Note: Video recordings are not required for SMMs 


 Returning all video recording equipment and materials provided by ADRIA to either the 
Education Department (Edmonton) or the Alberta Security College locker (Calgary) within 48 
hours. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


27 


 


ROLE-PLAYERS 


Qualifications: 


 Role-players may be classmates or peers of the candidate for the following situations (provided 
they have sufficient experience in similar role-play situations that they will not hinder the 
candidate in demonstrating their skills): 


o Practice groups 


o Course evaluations 


o Re-evaluations 


o Supervised Mock Mediations 


 Chartered Mediator Assessments require the following: 


o A minimum of one Chartered Mediator as role-player 


o The second role-player may hold a Qualified Mediator designation provided that they have 
successfully completed the Chartered Mediator Assessment.  


o C.Med Assessment Role-Players require approval from the Director of Professional 
Development 


Responsibilities: 


 Coming with your role read and fully prepared 


 Supporting the evaluator or assessor and providing feedback when requested 


 Debriefing with the Instructional Team at the conclusion of the course (if necessary) 


 Role-players arranged by ADRIA are to invoice ADRIA for the cost of each role-play.  Role-
players arranged privately (either through the student or candidate) are not to invoice ADRIA. 


Expectations 


 See Appendix F for Role-Players’ Responsibilities and Role-Players’ Pledge  


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


28 


 


PROVIDING FEEDBACK 


Providing thorough, accurate feedback after role-plays is pure art and not at all science. While we 
know what skills and values are most effective in helping work through conflict situations in the 
principled interest-based approach, we are continually faced with the contextual nature of breakout 
groups themselves. Each group consists of different people at different stages of integrating the course 
material, some group members have some history together, each student will have a distinct response 
to you and your feedback, and each student will experience a range of emotions and openness over the 
duration of the course. 


Amidst this entire context, our job is always the same: to be effective in our coaching work and to 
model the values and skills of which we are stressing the importance. What follows are some 
suggestions about how our feedback can be most effective, both in terms of content and delivery. 


 ADRIA recommends that Same/More/Less Model for giving feedback.  The coach should be 
able to communicate to the student or candidate: what he or she should continue to do that works 
well (same); what he or she should do more of in order to improve (more); and what he or she 
should do less of in order to improve their performance (less).  The instructor should be able to 
give 1-3 examples for each of the Same/Less/More statements. 
Remember, be clear and concise. Too much positive or negative feedback can be overwhelming. 


 Be specific! For example, rather than give general feedback about a student’s reframing as being 
“good”, provide as many word-for-word examples as you can, this can be done by taking note of 
specific skills you hear during skilled persons role-play and talk about what it is specifically that 
makes those reframes “good”. 


 Comment on observable behavior. Avoid making inferences about the student’s possible 
psychological motives. Rather, it can foster healthy reflective practice to invite students to work 
out for themselves what was going on for them psychologically. 


 Be honest! Coaches do no one any favors by sugarcoating feedback, or by minimizing the 
importance of the things the student needs to work on. On the contrary, being ‘too kind’ risks the 
likelihood of misleading the student about what work is necessary to achieve a meaningful level 
of competence.  This is a safe learning environment, the feedback given is extremely important 
for future learning. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


29 


 


 Be respectful! We must recognize the dignity and worth of each student who we interact with, 
and recognize that each person is doing the best s/he can, given his/her state of mind, openness of 
heart, and level of awareness. While we are busy being honest with each student, we should not 
lose sight of the equal need to show respect. We need to be sensitive to how difficult it can be to 
hear some feedback messages. Remember; be hard on the problem, yet gentle and respectful on 
the person. 


Example: “One of the components of the principled, interest-based approach is transparency. When I 
hear you say in your self-assessment that you weren’t sure (in the role-play) which issue you were 
discussing but you didn’t want to risk saying so, I’m thinking that it might have brought greater 
clarity to your discussions AND further developed trust if you had chosen to say that you were 
needing to focus on one issue at a time.” 


When students receive feedback about their skill usage and not about the principles those skills serve 
to enact, the student can come to believe that effective conflict management is only about the “right” 
use of the “right” skills. This mistaken belief makes the integration of the principled approach much 
more difficult. 


 Be aware of the course level you are coaching, and avoid holding students to an unrealistically 
high standard, feedback needs to be given at the level the student is at. While we need to actively 
encourage the students’ striving for excellence and mastery, holding them to a standard that 
exceeds their reach can create in the students an unnecessarily negative sense of their 
development. 


 When you can, link your feedback to the student’s feedback. It is important that students get 
some response to their self-assessment. Re-enforcing their awareness with your agreement can 
enhance their trust in their analysis.  


Example: “You said earlier that you were happy with your Goal Statement. I would agree. What I 
thought was particularly effective was the way you talked about each interest and brought each 
interest to life, rather than simply rattle through a list of disconnected words.” 


Conversely, your contradicting their self-assessment can help put them back on track. 


Example: “You mentioned in your self-assessment that you were particularly happy with your 
questioning in Stage Three. When I look at my notes, I counted seventeen closed questions and six 
open questions, and there were only four instances where you did something with the answer (a 
reframe, summary, etc.) before asking another question. You heard the role-player mention that she 
felt interrogated by you, and that she didn’t feel understood. The spirit behind asking questions is 
about being openly curious and invitational and not having a predetermined answer in mind, and you 
are aware of the importance of proving your understanding on an ongoing basis. What I need you to 
hear is that your questioning in Stage Three deserves your attention.” 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


30 


 


 Support the instructor! Each instructor has a unique style and emphasis in course delivery, and it 
is important to support the instructor’s approach in your coaching work. Referring in your 
feedback to points made by the instructor is one way of affirming that the instructor and coaches 
are an instructional team. If you find yourself coaching for an instructor whose message does not 
fit for you or needs clarity there are numerous choices you can make to deal effectively with that 
situation. 1) Talk to instructor privately about a concern 2) Ask instructor to clarify a thought or 
misunderstanding 3)Talk to Director of Professional Development 4) Ask the student raising the 
question to bring his or her concerns to the instructor or Director of Professional Development.  
Remember, you are coaching for ADRIA. That means that your feedback ought to support the 
training priorities and perspectives of the ADRIA course material. It can be easy to fall into the 
trap of coaching students to be more like you, rather than coaching them to integrate the concepts 
and skills taught by ADRIA.  


 Skills to coach for 


o Integrity of the process 


o Questions focused on substantive (content) and relationship (process) interests 


o Make sure all categories of questions are addressed 


o Parties shift  


o Range of skills 


o Working together in a balanced way 


 
  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


31 


 


Coaching For Excellence: USA Models 


Permission to use the following document was given to ADRIA for the purposes of training by the 
Association for Conflict Resolution. 


Conflict Pros Coaching Model 


This model was developed by Joan F. Tobin, M.S.W. and Mark Goldman, M.A., both partners in 
Conflict Pros, Mesa, Arizona. Permission has been given to print the following. 


The following points are notes taken by ADRIA staff from the presentation Coaching for Competence 
and Credentialing at the ACR Conference in San Diego, California: 


 As instructors, we have a responsibility to students to evaluate competence.  Competency is 
making conscious decisions. 


 As a coach, you need to be able to deal with strong emotions, help slow down the learning 
process (helps move to a conscious level), and to help the student mediator expand their choices. 


 The coach and student need to have a discussion about what to look for. 


 Explain to the student that a role-play is like a flight simulator: you can crash, burn, and try 
again. 


 Fish bowls often provide safety for students to move in and out. Expand your questions at a 
group level. 


 Advanced coaching level: the student should be able to stop at any point and identify what he/she 
did as a mediator while the beginner mediator is trying to track a process (not getting lost). 


 The goal is not only for the parties to make conscious decisions, but also for the coach to make 
conscious decisions. 


 If the student says they are “stuck”, don’t go into a problem-solving approach. 


 As a coach check for student neutrality. 


 Good coaching means to be aware of your own reactions both emotional and physical. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


32 


 


DEGREES OF COMPETENCE: ADRIA GUIDELINES 


NOT COMPETENT COMPETENT COMPETENT Plus  


Manages Conflict 


One dominates 
Ignores emotionally damaging statements. 
Lacks basic skills 
Neither party feels safe 
Lacks confidence in ability 
 


Develop atmosphere of cooperation. 
Reframes to defuse 
Intervenes to clarify and confront 
discrepancies 
Emotionally safe atmosphere. 
Comfort with conflict 
Attend to non-verbals 


In addition to COMPETENT skills: 


Sets collaborative and respectful tone of 
negotiations 


Normalizes conflict 


Redirect emotional energy from personal 
alienation to joint resolving 


Shows confidence in ability 


Adapts Process 
Clients feel unsafe 
No control over process 
No guidelines 
No common management 
Jumps to problem solving 
Lacks basic skills 
Lost in process 
Moves to mediator’s issue 


Seeks direction from parts in process design 
Adapts ground rules 
Reframes to gain consensus and defuse 
emotion 
Moves parts through process 
Seeks commitment to guidelines 
Attends to non-verbals 


In addition to COMPETENT skills: 


Works with parties to manage process 


Doesn’t resort to premature problem solving 


 


Professional Standards/Ethics 
Unaware of readiness to process 
Continues when inappropriate 
Own agenda and ground rules 
Unable to adapt to parties 
Lacks basic skills 
Violates Code of Ethics and Professional 
Standards 


Decision making power with parties 
Evaluates need to refer 


In addition to COMPETENT skills: 


Processes with integrity, respect, guarding 
rights and self-determination 


Managing Information 


Develops framework to track information 
Does not keep track of information 
Does not summarize info accurately 
Does nothing substantive in hour 
Misses confidentiality/ authority to settle 
Lacks basic skills 
Misuses/mismanages information 
 


Helps them organize information 
Sees improvement of information 
Presents information in neutral terms 
Helps parties identify principles to guide 
decision-making 
Understands facts 
Defines roles of mediator 
Defines process 
Helps generate agenda 
Prioritizes agenda items 
Summarizes information 


In addition to COMPETENT skills: 


Does not establish workable agenda 


Prioritizes agenda 


Helps them see information links and new 
information 


 
  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


33 


 


NOT COMPETENT COMPETENT COMPETENT Plus  
Interest-Based Solution 


Provides legal advice 
Does not summarize 
Limits creation of options 
Frames issues as positional 
Focus on positional bargaining 


Breaks solution into managed portions or 
interim solutions 
Interim measures to assists till next session 
Reality test solution 
Preserves self-determination when impasses 
reached 


In addition to COMPETENT skills: 
Interest-based criteria to judge 
Options which best address interests 
Own principles evaluates solution 


General 


Own ideas of process 
Own agenda, directive approach 
Coerces parties to come to an agreement 


Range of skills 
Objective/Subjective 
Emotion 
Facts/Interpretations 
Feelings 
Substantive/Relationally 
Balance 


In addition to COMPETENT skills: 
Integrity of process 
Working together in balanced way 
Shift 


Relationships With Parties 


Establishes minimal relationship with parties 
Expresses own views, own decisions 
Inappropriate ending 
Leads with own agenda 
Reacts emotionally 
Lacks basic skills, knowledge and ability 
Treats parties in disrespectful manner 
Chooses sides 


Affirms parties’ right to self-determination 
Challenges respectfully 
Supports parties’ integrity 
Acknowledges what they express as important 
to them 
Consistently builds rapport 
Builds confidence in process and self 
Acknowledges feelings 


In addition to COMPETENT skills: 
Mutually respectful 
Trusting 
Parties able to take risks 


Collaborative Relationships Between Parties 


Ineffective guidelines for communication 
Ignores/mishandles statement of feelings 
Allows imbalance 
No mutual definition of problem 
Some information not disclosed 
Maintains distrust and lack of communication 
Lacks skills, ability and basic knowledge 


Promotes mutual understanding empathy for 
each other 
Respects parties’ uniqueness 
Promotes parties’ defining own outcomes 
Assists establishing communication guidelines 
Engages both in discussion 
Promotes each other’s understanding of 
conflict 
Defines mutual definition of problem 


In addition to COMPETENT skills: 
Enhances collaborative working relationships 
Facilitates new communication patterns 
Encourages mutual regard for each other’s 
interests 
 


Interest Exploration 
Allows inappropriate focus on past 
Ignores feelings 
Allows assumption and misunderstanding 
Accepts statement at face value -no probes 
Misses important interests 
Lacks skills 
Does not know difference between position 
and interest 
Discloses no interests 


Restates interests in impartial, logical way 
Normalizes feelings 
Keeps them present and future focused 
Identifies common ground 
Allows sufficient time to express interests 
Tracks body language 
Questions that lead to discovering interests 
Clarifies misunderstanding and assumptions. 


In addition to COMPETENT skills: 
Uses parties’ interest to move them forward 


 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


34 


 


CONTRACTOR RATES, EXPENSES, AND INVOICING 


The following rates are for ADRIA classes and exclude Specialized Training Courses.  Please see the 
Specialized Course Training Section for invoicing information.  Rates effective July 1, 2016. 


Rate Service 


 $75 Coaching One Online Practice Session (1.5 Hours) 


$75 


 


$100 


One Role-Play (as role-player) – for course evaluations, and 
Supervised Mock Mediations 


One Role-Play (as role-player) – for C.Med Assessments 


$100 


$100 


One Evaluation – Communications in ADR 


One Evaluation + audio review – National Introductory 
Mediation 


$100 


$50 


Marking Arbitration Awards/award 


Marking Practice Arbitration Awards/Award 


$250 Coaching/ One Day 


$700 Instructing/ One Day 


1. The Contractor will be paid the fee as stated plus Goods and Services Tax, if applicable, for each 
day of instruction.  A day is defined as eight hours and includes one hour for lunch. The 
Contractor shall submit their GST registration # on their invoices if applicable. Parking will be 
reimbursed for instructors and coaches (receipts must be attached to invoice). 


2. Contractors who accept contracts outside of their home cities accept contracts as a “local 
contractor” unless pre-negotiated with ADRIA.  Hotel, travel, and per diem will not be covered.  
Contractors with pre-approval with ADRIA will be reimbursed for expenses incurred for out of 
town instruction.  This will include accommodation (to a maximum of $150.00 per day, inclusive 
of taxes), and travel expenses to be approved by the Director of Professional Development (or as 
stated on the ADRIA invoice). Contractors will also be paid a per diem rate (up to a maximum 
amount) for each meal for each instructional day while out of town.  


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


35 


 


Guidelines for Submitting Invoices 


Master invoice 


For consistency, please only use the ADRIA master invoice (See Appendix B) when submitting a 
claim.  If you would like an electronic version of a master invoice, please email 
education@adralberta.com.  


Submitting Invoices 


Invoices should be submitted in the same month of the last day that you coached. The exception will 
be courses that are held over a period of several months. In that case, you can submit an invoice for 
training taught in THAT month. 


Payment 


ADRIA usually pays two weeks after invoices are received. This however may not apply to private 
training opportunities.  Please contact ADRIA for information on your specific circumstances. 


Please provide: 


 Your name and current address  


 Your business name & GST # (if you have one) 


 Course name, instructor name, and course date 


 Whether instructing, coaching, evaluating, or role-playing 


 Any expenses incurred – parking, travel , food, accommodations 


*Please note that it is your responsibility to notify ADRIA of any changes in your personal 
information. 


Invoice Number 


Please generate your own statement number (located upper right corner of invoice.) 


Invoicing for ADRIC’s National Introductory Mediation course 


As of June 2016, ADRIA will change how evaluations are conducted on Day 6 of the National 
Introductory Mediation course.  Coaches and Instructors will not be required to complete evaluations 
on this day.  Evaluations will be recorded and evaluated by the evaluation team.  It is the coaches’ 
responsibility to ensure student evaluations are properly recorded. 


Please invoice for Day 6 of the National Introductory Mediation course as a regular coaching day (see 
chart above for rates).   


Receipts 


Receipts over $5.00 must be submitted with the invoice. 


 
 



mailto:education@adralberta.com





 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


36 


 


Parking 


You will be reimbursed in full with the original receipt. Please include parking ON THE SAME 
INVOICE. 


Listing coaches on the invoice 


Coaches: instructors are NOT responsible to submit coach invoices or to provide extra blank copies. 


Instructors: please list all coaches in the box provided at the bottom of the invoice, and include the 
days they coached or evaluated  


Membership 


All coaches and instructors must be full ADRIA members, and have a SIGNED AGREEMENT OR 
CONTRACT to instruct or coach. 


Common errors in submitting invoices 


Faxing or emailing a duplicate invoice 


Invoices are usually paid within two weeks; however please allow extra time for delivery. If you 
believe your invoice has been missed (min. of 30 days) and would like to know the status of your 
invoice, please contact the Director of Professional Development directly to avoid duplication. 


Not using ADRIA’s Invoice 


For consistency, please submit using an ADRIA invoice. 


Sending a separate invoice for parking 


All expenses for any given course should be included on ONE INVOICE. 


Missing Information 


For cross-referencing, please be sure to include the instructor, course dates, and coaches /days 
coached. 


Incorrect rates 


You may have noticed from time to time that there are slight difference in the amount paid to you and 
the amount submitted on your invoice. This is often because incorrect rates such as, coach /instructor 
day rate or parking, etc. have been submitted or GST was not calculated correctly. Please refer to the 
correct rates on the invoice master before submitting an invoice. 


Insurance 


Instructors and coaches for ADRIA do not need private insurance for teaching, they are covered by 
ADRIA. 


 


 


 







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


37 


 


SPECIALIZED TRAINING COURSES 


Course Criteria 


If you have a course that you would like to deliver through ADRIA, please fill out the submission 
form (Appendix G) and return to the ADRIA office for review. All specialty courses must meet the 
following criteria to be considered as an offering to the ADRIA membership. 


 The instructor must be the course designer or have a license to teach the course. 


 Instructor owned content is only offered by the developing instructor, any changes to this must be 
approved by the Director of Professional Development 


 The specialized training course must be designed such as that those who complete the course can 
use the course towards the Certificate in Conflict Leadership or required hours of training 
towards obtaining the Q.Med and C.Med (or Q.Arb and C.Arb) designations. 


 The course must include 7 hours of training per day excluding breaks. 


 The course must reflect current and prevailing trends in the ADR field, or be of interest to the 
ADR community. 


 The course must be consistent with current legislation, if applicable. 


 The course must not be redundant with presently established courses. 


 The course must be in keeping with the ADRIA mission and educational goals. 


 The course must be fully and accurately described in any and all promotional material and course 
outlines. 


 The course must clearly delineate competencies. 


 Specialized Training instructors must meet all previously outlined instructional guidelines. 
(exceptions can be discussed with the Director of Professional Development) 


Student feedback will be solicited after each course delivery, with specific questions focused on the 
instructor’s delivery and the course material. Once ADRIA has received student feedback, courses 
will be reviewed after each offering based on the above criteria.   


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


38 


 


Specialized Training Guidelines 
 Instructors will retain copyright and will be acknowledged for course materials developed. 


 The minimum enrollment needed to run the course will be 6 students. The maximum enrollment 
will be 20 students. In agreeing to deliver your course through ADRIA, you are agreeing to teach 
the course if the minimum number of students is met. (A lower minimum or maximum may be 
agreed upon with the Director of Professional Development during the submission process). 


 ADRIA will provide classroom facilities as well as administrative services such as registration 
intake and payments. 


 The specialty course will be accepted as an elective in the Certificate in Conflict Leadership 
Program. 


 ADRIA will provide a survey to all students in the course for feedback purposes.  Most surveys 
will be delivered to students electronically.  Occasionally instructors will be asked to have 
students complete a paper survey; these should be returned with other course documents. Results 
will be shared with the instructor. Instructors are not to provide their own class survey. 


Specialized Training Instructor Expectations 
 The instructor is a full member in good standing. 


 The instructor will provide the ADRIA office with fully updated, edited and appropriately 
formatted electronic master copies of all course materials at least three weeks prior to the start of 
the class. ADRIA will be responsible for the printing of the material to a maximum budget of 
$25/student. Any material exceeding this budget will be the financial responsibility of the 
instructor. This material must be congruent with the ADRIA branded format, with the ADRIA 
logo on the cover page. 


 Significant revisions or suggested updates to all materials must be approved by ADRIA no later 
than four weeks prior to the delivery of the course. 


 The instructor and ADRIA share joint responsibility for promoting the course. It is expected that 
the instructor will also promote the course through their network. 


 Instructors will be expected to hand-out a letter of completion at the end of the course. The 
template for this letter will be provided by the ADRIA office and must include the ADRIA logo, 
course name and total hours of the course. The instructor is responsible to ensure hours are 
completed by each student. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


39 


 


Rates 


1. All ADRIA approved specialized training courses will be offered to the ADRIA membership for 
$300/person/day (exceptions can be discussed with the Director of Professional Development). 


2. Rates for the course designer/instructor are per day of instruction as follows: 


a) $1000 for first 6 students 


b) $175 per students 7-12 


c) $200 per students 13-20 


3. The cost of printing to a maximum of $25/student is included in ADRIA’s budget for the course. 


4. It is the financial and administrative responsibility of the instructor to contract any and all 
coaches, co-instructors or panel members they may need for the delivery of the course. 


5. Travel expenses such as accommodations, gas and meals are the responsibility of the instructor 
alone unless otherwise agreed upon with the Director of Professional Development, prior to the 
beginning of the course. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


40 


 


TRAINING FACILITIES 


All locations are equipped with a computer, projector and flipcharts for your use. If instructing, please 
show up to class 30 minutes before the start time to ensure that everything is organized. 


Edmonton 


Training Location: 


Room CE 203 – Ralph King Athletic Centre,  
Concordia University, 7128 Ada Blvd 
(our building is on the corner of 112 Ave and 73 St) 


Class times: 8:30am - 4:30pm daily (rooms will be open at 8am) 


Parking: located in front of the building for a fee of approx. $7.00/day. This will be reimbursed to 


you with receipts during invoicing.   


Food/Beverages: free coffee and tea is provided for the class. There is a cafeteria in the main 


Concordia building that is a short walk away, there are a few fast-food restaurants located not far (5 
min. drive) such as a Subway and McDonald’s, as well as a Save-on-Foods. We also have a 
microwave and fridge in the ADRIA offices which you may use if you wish to bring a lunch. 


Nearby Hotels: we recommend La Boheme Bed & Breakfast (www.laboheme.ca). It is located 


within walking distance of our facilities and is next to two restaurants and a café and you will get a 
special rate if you mention you are with Concordia. 


  



http://www.laboheme.ca/





 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


41 


 


Calgary 


Training Location: 


Alberta Security College 
1107 – 53 Ave NE 
Calgary, Alberta,  
T2E 6X9 


Class times: 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. daily 


Directions: 


Enter at the Alberta Security College on the west side of the Commissionaire’s building. (South of 
Deer Foot Mall; across from the mail sorting plant and the African Eatery). Upon arrival at the college 
students/instructors will be issued a pass and will keep it with them until the end of class. Please 
check with reception for the classroom assigned. 


Parking: There is free parking in the parking lot – if the lot is full, there is also street parking 


available.  


Coffee: There will be a coffee machine and creamer/sugar on site.  Students are asked to bring travel 


mugs as the location only provides disposable polystyrene cups.  


Instructors have a budget of $10/day for additional refreshments such as real coffee cream, muffins, 
or other healthy snacks.  Receipts must be submitted with invoice. 


Lunch: There is a fridge, microwave, and vending machine with bottled water & snacks on site.  For 


lunch the Italian Store beside Scarpone’s has a lunch counter, there is also a Tim Horton’s, Starbucks, 
Ricky’s, and Wendy’s all within walking distance plus lots of others just down the road. 


It’s okay to eat in the classroom, but please be sure to remind the students keep the classroom clean 
and tidy. 


Classrooms and Materials: There is a computer, projector & speakers in each classroom.  The 


computers have PowerPoint, internet access, and are able to play DVDs. You will need to bring the 
PPT on a USB.  There is also an IT department on site if you run into difficulties. 


There are white boards & dry erase markers in all the rooms and flip chart & markers are available.  


ADRIA has a locked filing cabinet on site.  Reception has the key and you will need to sign the key 
out to get access 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


42 


 


Items to be stored in Calgary locker: 


 Tent cards 


 Flip chart paper & markers 


 Green tape (to tape flip chart 
paper to walls) 


 Course material (manuals) 


 DVD’s for Arbitration 


 Cameras, recorders, batteries 


Course manuals will be shipped to the Alberta Security College and will be stored in the ADRIA 
locker. 


If instructors have any issue or problem, ask for Jonaline (Jona) Celso or Gena Boyce. 


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Copyright 2016 ADR Institute of Alberta  


43 


 


PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT BENEFITS 


Instructors and Coaches  


ADRIA Owned Courses 


(Communications in ADR, Conflict Management for HR Professionals, Separation and Divorce 
Mediation: Modules 1-3, Consensus Decision Making, ADR Business) 


 25% discount 


ADRIC Courses  


(National Introductory Mediation, National Introductory Arbitration) 


 10 % discount 


Specialty Courses  


(Mediation Case Development, Oil & Gas, Restorative Practices, LAB, etc.).  


 No discount – these courses are owned by the instructor and the arrangement with the instructor 


does make it viable for us to offer a discount. Instructors are able to offer auditing spaces at their 


discretion – payment to cover the cost of materials would still be required.  


Professional Development Events 


Discounts may be offered for registration at ADRIA’s Conference and at other Professional 
Development or Learning Events. Discounts will vary based on the event. An email will be sent to 
coaches and instructors informing them of the discount for any events that qualify.  Coaches and 
instructors would still need to meet the conditions outlined to receive the discount.  


Conditions 


Coaches will need to have coached a minimum of 6 full coaching days in the past 12 months to 
qualify for a discount. Instructors will need to have taught a minimum of 6 full days in the past 18 
months.   


Discounts are limited to a maximum of 6 days of courses in a 12 month period.  


  







 


 


________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta Education Contractor Manual  


44 


 


LIST OF APPENDICES 


 


Appendix A. Contract  


Appendix B . Master Invoice For Contractors   


Appendix C. Debrief Forms  


1. Course Debrief : Instructor Form  


2. Course Debrief: Coach Form  


Appendix D. Expectations & Performance Review Forms  


1. Expectations Form: New Instructors  


2. Performance Review Form: New Instructors  


3. Expectations Form: New Coaches  


4. Performance Review Form: New Coaches  


Appendix E. Procedures Documents  


1. Course Delivery Schedule  


Communications, Mediation, Negotiation, SDM, CDM 


2. Course Delivery Schedule  


Arbitration 


Appendix F. Role Players’ Documents  


1. Role-Players’ Responsibilities  


2. The Role Player’s Pledge  


Appendix G. Submission Forms for Specialized Training  


1. Specialized Training Submission Form  


2. Billing Invoice for Specialized Training Courses  


3. Template for Letter Of Completion For Students  


 








ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA September 10, 2016                            Page 1 of 3 
 


 


ADRIA BOARD MEETING AGENDA  


Friday, September 9, 2016 – Dinner 6-8 pm at Prego Cucina Italiana 


Eau Claire Market, 200 Barclay Parade SW, Calgary, AB T2P 4R5 
Phone: (403) 233-7885 


- 


Saturday, September 10, 2016  - Board of Directors meeting 8 am – 4 pm  


at  the Jasper Boardroom (17th floor), THE WESTIN CALGARY 


320 4th Avenue S.W. Calgary, Alberta T2P 2S6 Canada T 403.508.5225   


 


Benchmark 
Timings  


# Topic\Title Action Role Ref  
Materials 


FRIDAY 


6-8 pm 
 Dinner at Prego Cucina Italiana    


SATURDAY   Jasper Boardroom (17th floor)    


8 am 1 WELCOME  & AGENDA REVIEW     


 1.1 
Welcome/Call to order 


Record time Dolores  


 1.2 Review of Agenda Items and addition of any items  
Review  & 


Amend/Adopt 
Dolores 1.2 


8:05 am 2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)    


 
2.1 


2.2 
June 4, 2016 (Board meeting) 
June 14, 2016 (Board Discussion/Teleconf.) 


Review & Adopt Dolores 2.1 


2.2 


8:10 am 3 Declarations of Conflict of Interest 
   


8.15 am 4 Business arising (ADRIA)    


   4.1  AAMS representation 
Information & 


Discussion 
Paul 4.1 


   4.2 Participation in Law Day events Update Paul  


   4.3 
Introduction of Manager Marketing & 
Communications 


Q & A Paul  


 5 ADRIA Bylaw and Policy updates 
   


  5.1 ADRIA Advertising Policy 
Discussion & 
Decision 


Paul  


 
 


5.2 ADRIA Course Monitoring Policy 
Discussion & 


Decision 
Paul/Michelle 


5.2 


 5.3 
LINK Membership Category 


Discussion & 


Approval 
Paul 5.3 


10:00 am  
Health break 


   



https://www.google.ca/search?rls=com.microsoft:en-CA:IE-Address&rlz=1I7PLXB_enCA625&q=prego+cucina+italiana+phone&stick=H4sIAAAAAAAAAOPgE-LWT9c3LCkyzzLMMtXSz0620k_Oz8lJTS7JzM_Tz87LL89JTUlPjS9IzEvNKdbPSCyOL8jIz0u1ApMA822D30AAAAA&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwiK17ClhOrOAhVnAcAKHc0qCUEQ6BMIlwEwEQ





ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA September 10, 2016                            Page 2 of 3 
 


10:10 am 6 
Reports (*mandatory) 


   


 6.1 President  Dolores  


 6.2 ED*   Paul 
6.2.1 
6.2.2 


 6.3 Treasurer*   Kevin 
6.3.1 
6.3.2 
6.3.3 


 6.4 Governance Committee  Michelle  


 6.5 
Board Committees/Task Forces 
-Task Force Communications Strategy Committee 


 Alasdair/ Paul 6.5 


 6.6 


ADRIC Reports 
-ADRIC Rep 
- MoU Task Force 
-Presidents’ Round Table (PRT) 
-Other ADRIC Committees (as required) 
  -Advocacy 
  -Membership & Marketing 
  -Roster Development 
  -Insurance 
  -Education 


 


Wendy* 
Wendy 
Stan/Paul 
 
 
 
 
 
 


6.6.1 
6.6.2 
6.6.3 
6.6.4 
6.6.5 
6.6.6 
6.6.7 
6.6.8 
6.6.9 


12 - 12:30 
pm 


 Lunch served in Waterton Room (beside Jasper Room)    


12:30 pm 7 
ADRIA/ADRIC – specific issues (Arising/New) 


   


 7.1 
Sharing of Associate Member Data  


Discussion & 


Decision 
Stan 7.1 


 7.2 
ADRIC Committees & Communications 
-New Structure & revised letter 
-Board engagement 


Discussion   
Paul/ 


Gayle 
 


 7.3 
Waiver for retired Judges Information Paul 7.3 


 7.4 
Pro-rated designation fees 


Information Paul 7.4 


 7.5 
Instructor Licensing MoU and other related issues 


Information Paul 7.5 


 7.6 
Mediation designation  experience requirements 


Discussion Paul 7.6 


 7.7 
Course Accreditation Process (ADRIC/ADRIO) 


Discussion Paul 7.7 


 7.8 
ADRIC Awareness Sub Committee 


Discussion Paul 7.8 


 7.9 
ADRIC Corporate Memberships 


Discussion & 


Decision 
Paul 7.9.1 


7.9.2 


2:00 pm 
 Health Break 


   


 2:10 pm 8 New Business 
   







ADRIA Board of Directors MEETING AGENDA September 10, 2016                            Page 3 of 3 
 


 8.1 Member access to ADRIA minutes 
Discussion & 
Direction 


Paul 
 


 


 8.2 Community Mediation MRJC/CMCS 
Information/ 
Discussion 


Paul  


 8.3 


ADR services update 
-Select & Appoint 
-Directory 
-Document sharing 


Information/ 
Discussion 


Paul  


 8.4 Membership pins 
Discussion & 
Decision 


Paul 8.4 


 8.5 ACR Conference ‘Principles into Practice’ Information Paul 8.5 


 8.6 Meeting with Justice Minister Information Paul/Stan  


 8.7 GOA Family Mediation Practicum Information Paul  


 8.8 Fort McMurray Insurance Proposal Information Paul  


 8.9 ADRIA Contractor Manual Information Paul 
8.9.1 
8.9.2 


 8.10 Evaluative ADR Discussion Paul 8.10 


2:45 pm 9 Learning Opportunities – next meeting(s)  Paul  


 9.1   November, January Discussion Dolores  


 9.2   Strategic Planning (Nov) Preparation Dolores  


3:10 pm 10 Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities    


 10.1 Content of next ‘On Board’ Discussion Barrie  


 10.2 Invitations to next Board Dinner 
Discussion & 


Decision 
  


3:15 pm 11 Calendar Review    


  


-Sept 13-22  - WP consultations CGY/EDM 
- Sept 28- Oct 1 – ACR Conference Baltimore 
- Sept 29 – ACR Conference online - EDM 
-Oct 12-15 -ADR Canada Conference Toronto 
-Oct 20- Conflict Resolution Day 2016 
-Nov 17-19 – ARJA Conference EDM 
-Nov TBA – ADRIA learning event (CGY)  


Information & 
Discussion 


ALL  


  Board of Directors Calendar    


  


-November 18, 19 -EDM 
-Jan 20, 21 2017 –CGY 
-March 17, 18 2017 – EDM 
-May 25-27 2017 – CGY (AGM & Orientation) 


Information ALL  


3:20 pm 12 
In-camera session  Board  


3.30 pm 


(NLT 4 pm) 
 Termination/Adjournment/Reflection  Dolores  


 








6.6.7 


ADR President’s Roundtable  -  September 6, 2016 


2:00pm – 3:00 pm (Eastern Time) 


 


Scott Siemens, Chair, opened PRT at 2:00pm (EDT). 


 


1.  Welcome and review of May 18 meeting notes 


Purpose of PRT: Build relationships, exchange ideas, no motions, intended to be a 


loose form. 


 


2.  ADRIC Update 


  a) iMIS status / Roster Development (Janet) 


Janet: IMIS will be ready to launch at the end of this month. There will be a 


demonstration at the conference. A roster development program being worked on by 


ADRIC Roster Development Cttee to strengthen and expand Affiliate opportunities. 


 


  b) Affiliates’ workshop on Indigenous engagement (Scott) 


Each affiliate is asked to have a representative at the workshop. IMAQ will have a 


committee involved in First Nations, working on finding a person leading this group.  


 


  c) Designation Best Practices 


   i) October workshop plans (Janet) 


Janet: A workshop is scheduled for Friday afternoon at the Conference, led by 


Gary Furloung, presentation with the goal of having all assessment committees 


across the country on the same level. This workshop will also be available by 


webinar.  


   ii) IMAQ Mediator Competency project and Education 


    Committee (Pierre)  


Label of criteria to have a common designation. Working on chart of competency, 


areas to improve training and ongoing training for members with designations. 


Focus groups met in August. Work is focussed on Mediation. Overall chart to 


cover competencies. Initiatives with Ministry of Justice. This will be shared with 


affiliates. (see email Pierre dated Sept. 1, 2016 attached). 


 


   iii) ADRIA Mediator white paper (Dolores/Barrie/Stan)  


 


Stan: White Paper: Meeting with Minister of Justice, various responses were 


received. Strength of the White Paper, White Paper was read by various people 


in various levels. People that had exposure, or have staff exposed, they know 


what ADRIA offers. Education still requires updates. Certain sectors really do not 







appreciate us re education etc. Broader question is what have done to promote 


designations in AB. Every opportunity we get we promote. Every fall board 


meeting we talk about our strategies; number 5 is to promote designations 


internally and externally. Every board meeting we keep track of the various 


discussions that took place. People from different government departments come 


to join our courses. 


 


Pierre: Mediation can be effective in various departments of the Government. 


 


Scott: do we need more designations?  


 


Pierre: If we want to be different from the Bar, the notary, we need to show in the 


public we have strong qualifications.  


 


Stan: we adopt the multi disciplinary, sticking with Med and Arb is enough for 


now. Let’s build that up before starting something new. We have to be careful to 


not step on toes.  


 


Wendy: where do our mediators/arbitrators come from, what background? We 


need to work ethical and within our rules. 


 


Kathryn: Certified Family Mediator and Certified Family Arbitrator were added in 


Ontario. Numbers are certainly less than CMed and QMed.  


 


Stan: How strong is family mediation in Ontario to make these new designations 


work? In AB family mediation is quite strong.  


 


3.  Strengthening Affiliates 


  a) Ontario Internship Project (Kathryn, for Jennifer) 


Kathryn: This was a long time in discussion. The numbers are not huge, only 3 


graduates, and we have obtained some new members. Some challenges, but still 


positive outcome.  


 


Scott: Offering internships, supervisors. Supervisors can be non-members. Some 


became members. If there are more questions, reach out to Kathryn or Jennifer. 


 


  b) Policy Sharing (Elton) 


Elton: IMIS is a fantastic opportunity for BC. Preparing for membership growth. Offering 


membership or courses with payment options. Different barriers. 


 







Wendy: Atlantic is thinking about it. Thinks it is a concept that is workable. 


Suzette: Bulk registrations for universities, trying out this year. 


 


Stan: Anniversary style renewals. Thank you for sharing what other affiliates are doing. 


 


Wendy: One organization in the Atlantic we work with is HRANB, Human Resources 


New Brunswick.  Nova Scotia, NFLD., PEI., have the same provincial HR associations. 


Great source of marketing.  


 


4.  Strengthening Leadership & Governance 


  a) Atlantic’s transition – successes & challenges (Wendy) 


Wendy: Transition from Andy to Wendy. It is essential for the Past-President to be 


involved. Transition can be so much quicker. It is still a learning curve. Past-President 


can provide updates of all projects. Mix the incoming new, with the outgoing older crew. 


 


Stan: Always a continuity because a third of the directors will be replaced yearly. How 


far in advance do you know who will be the new President? Category President-Elect 


could be important. 


 


Scott: Saskatchewan is very small.  


 


Pierre: IMAQ Vice-President becomes automatically the President. 


 


Wendy: You volunteer for a Leadership role. 


  


5.  Next meeting – October 14th, 5:30pm – 9:00pm President’s Dinner 


 


Adjourned at 3:12 pm. (EDT) 


 








8/18/2016 CONTRACTOR MANUAL APPENDICES AUGUST 17, 2016.DOCX 


 


 


 


Contractor Manual Appendices 
TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


2 


 


COPYRIGHT 


All rights reserved. No part of this work may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, 
mechanical, recording, or otherwise, or accessed or used by any information storage and retrieval system. Permission is 
not given for reproduction of the materials for use in other published works in any form without express written 
permission from the ADR Institute of Alberta (herein also referred to as ADRIA), with the exception of reprints in the 
context of reviews. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


2015 The ADR Institute of Alberta 


Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 


7128 Ada Boulevard 


Edmonton AB, T5B 4E4 


Phone (780) 433-4881 Fax (780) 433-9024 


E-Mail: education@adralberta.com 


www.adralberta.com 


  



mailto:education@adralberta.com

http://www.adralberta.com/





 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


3 


 


CONTENTS 


APPENDIX A. CONTRACT ................................................................................................................................................ 4 


Instructor Information ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 


Updated Resume and Biography....................................................................................................................................... 4 


Terms and Conditions ....................................................................................................................................................... 5 


Contractor Verification ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 


Signatures .......................................................................................................................................................................... 6 


APPENDIX B . MASTER INVOICE FOR CONTRACTORS ............................................................................................ 7 


APPENDIX C. DEBRIEF FORMS ...................................................................................................................................... 8 


C.1 – Course Debrief: Instructor Form ............................................................................................................................. 8 


C.2 – Course Debrief: Coach Form ................................................................................................................................ 10 


APPENDIX D. EXPECTATION AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW FORMS ................................................................ 12 


D.1 – Expectations Form: New Instructors..................................................................................................................... 12 


D.2 – Performance Review Form: New Instructors ....................................................................................................... 13 


D.3 – Expectations Form: New Coaches ........................................................................................................................ 15 


D.4 – Performance Review Form: New Coaches ........................................................................................................... 17 


APPENDIX E.  PROCEDURES DOCUMENTS ............................................................................................................... 19 


E.1 – Course Delivery Schedule ..................................................................................................................................... 19 


Communications, Mediation, Negotiation, SDM, and CDM..................................................................................... 19 


E.2 – Course Delivery Schedule ..................................................................................................................................... 24 


Arbitration .................................................................................................................................................................. 24 


APPENDIX F. ROLE PLAYERS’ DOCUMENTS ............................................................................................................ 28 


F.1 – Role-Players’ Responsibilities ............................................................................................................................... 28 


F.2 – Role Player’s Pledge .............................................................................................................................................. 28 


APPENDIX G. SUBMISSION FORMS FOR SPECIALIZED TRAINING ..................................................................... 29 


G.1 – 2015/2016 Specialized Training Submission Form .............................................................................................. 29 


G.2 – Billing Invoice For Specialized Training Courses ................................................................................................ 31 


G.3 – Template for Letter of Completion for Students................................................................................................... 32 


 


 
  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


4 


 


APPENDIX A. CONTRACT 


Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy (FOIP) 


The personal information collected on this form will be used only for the purpose of staff administration, payroll, logistical reporting, and budgeting 
and is protected under the privacy provisions of FOIP.  If you require further information on the gathering of this information, please contact the 
Executive Director. . 


This Agreement confirms the terms and conditions of your engagement as a Contractor with the ADR Institute of 
Alberta (ADRIA) to provide training, coaching, instructional facilitation and occasional advice in relation to curriculum 
design and educational policies and procedures. “Contractor” refers to any individual contracted to ADRIA for the 
purposes of Training and Professional Development including: instructor, coach, on-line coach, evaluator, assessor, 
supervisor, or role-player. 


Services shall be provided in accordance with ADRIA’s policies and procedures as outlined in the Training and 
Professional Development Contractor Manual and Appendices which forms part of this agreement. Alternations may be 
made from time to time by the Director of Professional Development. 


Instructor Information 


Last Name: First Name: 


Mailing Address: 


City: Province: Postal Code: 


Preferred Tel.#: Alternate Tel.#: 


Email Address: 


Company Name:  


GST #: Corporate Registration #: 


Updated Resume and Biography 


For office, promotional purposes, and website use. Please attach a brief updated biography that includes your 
certificates/academic qualifications, professional experience, etc. 


  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


5 


 


Terms and Conditions 


In addition to ADRIA policies and procedures and the information provided above, the following terms and conditions 
will govern this engagement: 


1. You will not have authority to bind ADRIA by any promise or representation, unless specifically authorized in 


advance in writing by the Director of Professional Development. 


2. ADRIA shall not be liable to you for any expenses incurred by you, unless preapproved in writing.  


3. ADRIA shall not be liable nor responsible for any bodily or personal injury or property damage of any kind or 


nature whatsoever, that might be suffered or sustained by you or your employees or agents in the performance 


of this Agreement, except to the extent that such injury or damages are due to the negligence of ADRIA, its 


employees, or its agents. 


4. You shall indemnify and hold harmless ADRIA, it’s governors, Directors, employees, and agents against any 


and all losses, costs, damages, claims, actions, or causes of action, interest and all liabilities of whatsoever kind 


or nature, including fees and disbursements of legal counsel which might be sustained or incurred by reason of 


any acts or omission by you under this Agreement and any steps that are taken by ADRIA in regard the 


enforcement of this Agreement. 


5. ADRIA reserves the right to terminate your engagement at any time for any reason whatsoever but in so 


terminating, agrees to pay you on a pro-rata basis relative to the services rendered to the date of termination.  


6. ADRIA reserves the right to cancel or postpone courses at any time prior to commencement, usually because of 


low enrolment, and in that event, ADRIA has no obligation to you, financial or otherwise if given at least 7 


days notice. 


7. ADRIA will pay you within 30 days of the receipt of an invoice and any other documentation related to the 


completion of instruction, policies, or procedures. 


8. You will not assign nor sub-contract this Agreement except with the written permission of an officer of 


ADRIA. 


9. Title to materials and any patents, copyrights, and intellectual property in materials developed under this 


Agreement will belong to ADRIA or ADRIC.  All moral rights relating to the said materials under Agreement 


are hereby waived by you. 


10. You will submit invoices within the same month as the last day in which the course/evaluation took place. 


  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


6 


 


Contractor Verification 


Please verify that you agree to the following criteria by initialing the statements below: 


 


 I confirm that I operate as an independent contractor. 


 


 I have read the Training and Professional Development Contractor Manual and Appendices dated     
and am aware of my obligations.  


 


Signatures 


We trust that you will find the above terms acceptable and look forward to collaborative and mutually beneficial 
relationship. 


On behalf of the Board of Directors of the ADR Institute of Alberta, 


             
Tammy Borowiecki      Date 
Director, Professional Development      


        
Contractor (print name)       


             
Contractor (signature)      Date 


 


  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


7 


 


APPENDIX B . MASTER INVOICE FOR CONTRACTORS  


 


Education Contractor Invoice                               


  
Name of Contractor  Invoice No:  


Address   Date:  


City, Province   GST #:  


Postal Code:  Course Location:  


 Phone:  Certificate Program  
 Fax:  Private Contract  
 Email:  # of Students:  


Bill to:           
ADR Institute of Alberta          
Room CE 223A – Ralph King 
Athletic Centre 


         


7128 Ada Blvd. Edmonton          
AB, T5J 3M1, Canada          


Please submit invoice in the same month as the course/assessment, along with all receipts 


Date 
Description of Contract 


(Course, Assessment) 
Rate 


($/day) 
# 


Days 


Rate 
Total 


Parking Travel Meals Hotel GST 
Line 
Total 


           


           
           


           
           


           
         $  
         Total $ 


Instructors and Assessors:  


List Coaches/Role-Players below with dates of coaching/role-
playing 


Coaches and Role-Players: 


List the Instructor(s)/Assessor(s) below 
  


 
 


 


Rates: 


Instructor $700/day 


Coach $250/day 


Assessor $200/assessment 


Role-Player $75/assessments 


Evaluator $100/evaluation 


ARB Exam Marking $100/exam 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


8 


 


APPENDIX C. DEBRIEF FORMS 


C.1 – Course Debrief: Instructor Form 


 


Instructors are to use this form at the end of each course (or section of a course if they are not 
teaching the complete course) to help ADRIA best asses the delivery of courses. 


 
Instructor’s Name      


Coaches Assigned A)  B)   


 C)  Date:   


Course      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Instructor’s Feedback 
Meets/Exceeds 
Expectations 


Needs Development 


Classroom set up and ready for your Instruction day? Flipcharts, masking 
tape, markers, name tags, sign in sheets? 


  


All materials given in a timely manner? Manuals, power points, role plays, 
resources,  


  


All equipment working and ready for use?  Projector, projection screen, 
laptop, sound, internet connection? 


  


Office able and willing to provide any support needed during instruction 
time? 


  


Instructor’s Feedback Yes or no? 


 A) B) C) 


Coach arrived on time    
Explained their role as a coach    


Coach willing to provide input when asked and in a timely manner    


Coach was attentive without being intrusive    


Coach was supportive of instructional team    
Coach was encouraging and supportive of students    


Coach kept group on task    
Coach brought groups back in a timely manner    


Coach asked for clarity when needed    
Knowledgeable in material being presented    







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


9 


 


What worked well in regards to your coaches? 


A  


  


B  


  


C  


  


What, if anything specific, was a concern the coach needs to be aware of? 


A  


  


B  


  


C  


  


What recommendations would you have for future coaching opportunities? 


A  


  


B  


  


C  


  


What thoughts or recommendations would you like to share with ADRIA? 


  


  


  


  


  


  


 


 


 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


10 


 


C.2 – Course Debrief: Coach Form  


 


Coaches are to use this form at the end of each course (or section of a course if they are not 
coaching the complete course) to help ADRIA best asses the delivery of courses. 


 


Coach’s Name  


Instructor’s Name  


Course  


Date  


 


Coach’s Feedback 
Meets/Exceeds 
Expectations 


Needs Development 


Instructor was prepared and ready to teach?   


Instructor was knowledgeable about material being presented?   


Instructor gave clear instructions as to expectations in breakout groups?   


Instructor was able to keep class engaged and on task relevant to material 
presented? 


  


Instructor able to stay on task and provide ample opportunity to practice skills 
being taught? 


  


Instructor made the learning environment a safe place for asking questions and 
making mistakes? 


  


Instructor allotted time for classroom discussion?   


Material was presented in a variety of ways conducive to adult learning? I.e. 
verbally, visually, hands on, group discussions? 


  


Instructor able to use understanding-based approach to address any classroom 
challenges? 


  


Instructor able to give examples or scenarios to enhance learning?   


All segments relevant to this course were covered in allotted time?   







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


11 


 


 


What skills has the Instructor demonstrated that you appreciated and believe will enhance student learning? 


 


 


 


 


What questions or concerns do you have in regards to the course presented? 


 


 


 


 


What recommendations or thoughts would you like to give to the instructor or ADRIA?  


 


 


 


 
  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


12 


 


APPENDIX D. EXPECTATION AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW FORMS 


D.1 – Expectations Form: New Instructors 


 


This form is for new instructors to read and sign before shadowing a senior instructor in 
class through the New Instructor Program.   


This form includes ADRIA’s expectations of new instructors, the senior instructor’s 
expectations of you in class and in preparation of class, as well as what you can expect from 


the New Instructor Program. 


 
1. Once you have been identified as a new instructor, you will be partnered with a senior instructor.  You will 


have the opportunity to teach segments of the course, as designated by the senior instructor, shadow the senior 
instructor, and receive feedback from ADRIA and your senior instructor.   


2. As a new instructor your responsibilities are the same as those of other ADRIA instructors.  However, while 
new instructors are expected to assist senior instructors in the delivery of course content, this is also a learning 
opportunity for new instructors.  It is the senior instructor’s responsibility to provide learning and teaching 
opportunities to the new instructor.   


3. During this time you will be paid at the same rate as a coach.   
4. Acting as a new instructor does not guarantee that you will be added to the ADRIA instructors’ roster. 
5. Your performance will be evaluated on the following: 


o Was prepared to teach agreed upon material 


o Was knowledgeable with material being presented 


o Stayed on task and completed segment in a timely manner 


o Encouraged students to ask questions and become involved 


o Able to give examples to improve student learning 


o Was receptive to feedback from instructor or coaches 


o Accommodated different learning styles if necessary 


o Open to discussion around material being presented 


o Did not confuse students with advanced concepts 


o Demonstrated skills being taught 


o Open body language 


o Uses  understanding-based approach to address any classroom challenges 


 


 


I understand the nature of the New Instructor Program and understand the expectations of a New Instructor: 


New Instructor’s Name  


New Instructor’s Signature  


Date  


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


13 


 


D.2 – Performance Review Form: New Instructors 


 


 This form is to be filled out by the senior instructor at the end of the new instructor 
shadowing period of as part of the New Instructor Program. 


 


   


Senior Instructor’s Name  


New Instructor’s Name  


Date  


Course  


 


The New Instructor … 
Meets/Exceeds 


Expectations 


Needs  


Development 


was prepared to teach agreed upon material?   


was knowledgeable with material being presented?   


stayed on task and completed segment in a timely manner?   


encouraged students to ask questions and become involved?   


able to give examples to improve student learning?   


was receptive to feedback from instructor or coaches?   


accommodated different learning styles if necessary?   


was open to discussion around material being presented?   


did not confuse students with advanced concepts?   


demonstrated skills being taught?   


had open body language   


used  understanding-based approach to address any classroom 
challenges 


  


 


 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


14 


 


What skills has the new instructor demonstrated to enhance student learning? 


 


 


 


 


What recommendations or thoughts would you like to give to the new instructor? 


 


 


 


 


What questions or concerns do you have for the new instructor or ADRIA? 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


15 


 


D.3 – Expectations Form: New Coaches 


 


This form is for new coaches to read and sign before shadowing a senior instructor or coach 
in class through the New Coach Program.   


This form includes ADRIA’s expectations of new coaches, the senior instructor’s expectations 
of you in class and breakout groups, as well as what you can expect from the New Coach 
Program. 


 
1. After your application has been accepted you will be expected to attend a New Coach Orientation Session. 


Normally you will attend this before starting to coach, on occasion there are exceptions.  You will work with 
experienced instructors or coaches and we will solicit feedback from them and the learners coached.  Upon 
completion of the course, your file will be reviewed and a determination will be made, with you, as to whether 
coaching is a fit.  If it is, you will be added to the coaching roster and able to bill for your future coaching 
services.   


2. Coaches are meant to assist instructors by supervising student role-plays and skill drills and provide input when 
asked by the instructor. 


3. As a coach, you are expected to arrive 15-30 minutes before the class/session begins, (check with current 
instructor on expectation for times of arrival). 


4. You should be attentive to the students’ needs without being intrusive or intimidating. 
5. Assign tasks to any observers (such as making sure the elements of stage one are covered, identify active 


listening skills being used, etc). Use your imagination and always keep in mind that the purpose of assigning 
tasks is to help the observer learn and to provide meaningful feedback to the “skilled” person. 


6. Check with the “skilled” person on how they would like you to intervene such as in the moment feedback, 
shoulder coaching, wait till role-play is completed, etc. and if there is anything in particular they are working 
on that they would like specific feedback on. 


7. Coaches provide feedback appropriate to the student’s level of expertise and confidence, and with 
consideration to the place they are at in the course flow. Be clear, concise and concrete. Your feedback should 
be based on observable behaviour and you should be able to provide examples. Feedback should also relate to 
something that is changeable. 


8. Do not confuse students by giving them feedback on skills, the model or other information they have not yet 
been taught, work with them as to where they are at. 


9. Be fair, honest and accepting. 
10. Be a model for students and resist temptation to be an expert on anything. 
11. If feedback is being questioned or conflicting reports on what is to be expected let student know you will talk 


to the instructor to provide clarity.  Again, we want to be a model for students 
12. As a new coach your responsibilities are the same as those of other ADRIA coaches.  However, while new 


coaches are expected to assist senior coaches and the instructor in the delivery of course content, this is also a 
learning opportunity for new coaches.  It is the instructor’s/coach’s responsibility to provide learning and 
coaching opportunities to the junior coach.   


 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


16 


 


13. Your performance will be evaluated on the following:  


o Was on time. 


o Explained their role as coach. 


o Explained goal or objectives of the activity. 


o Helped the skilled person set up the room /table/chairs/flip chart to maximize effectiveness and 
comfort. 


o Established safety and confidentiality in their group. 


o Organized students into groups, ensuring they had enough time to prepare their roles. 


o Assigned tasks to observers (like listening for transitions between stages). 


o Was attentive without being intrusive. 


o Was observant to non-verbals, behaviours and skills being demonstrated by the skilled person. 


o Provided specific feedback with examples. 


o Was encouraging and supportive, while focusing on strengths. 


o Resisted the temptation to be an expert on anything. 


o Did not confuse students by introducing advanced concepts. 


o Provided information which was consistent with what the instructor was teaching. 


o Was selective with feedback, focused on what was really important. 


o Only intervened when necessary. 


o Was supportive of instructional team when needed 


o Asked for clarity if unsure of steps needed to be taken in an exercise 


 


I understand the nature of the New Coach Program and understand the expectations of a New Coach: 


New Coach’s Name  


New Coach’s Signature  


Date  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


17 


 


D.4 – Performance Review Form: New Coaches 


 


This form is to be filled out by the senior instructor/coach at the end of the new coach 
shadowing period of as part of the New Coach Program. 


 


New Coach Name  


Supervising 
Instructor/Coach 


 


Date   


 


The New Coach … 
Meets/Exceeds 
Expectations 


Needs Development 


was on time.   


explained their role as coach.   


explained goal or objectives of the activity.   


helped the skilled person set up the room /table/chairs/flip chart to 
maximize effectiveness and comfort. 


  


established safety and confidentiality in their group.   


organized students into groups, ensuring they had enough time to 
prepare their roles. 


  


assigned tasks to observers (like listening for transitions between 
stages). 


  


was attentive without being intrusive.   


was observant to non-verbals, behaviours and skills being 
demonstrated by the skilled person. 


  


provided specific feedback with examples.   


was encouraging and supportive, while focusing on strengths.   


resisted the temptation to be an expert on anything.   







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


18 


 


The New Coach … 
Meets/Exceeds 
Expectations 


Needs Development 


did not confuse students by introducing advanced concepts.   


provided information which was consistent with what the instructor 
was teaching. 


  


was selective with feedback, focused on what was really important.   


only intervened when necessary.   


was supportive of instructional team when needed   


asked for clarity if unsure of steps needed to be taken in an exercise   


What skills has the new coach demonstrated that will enhance student learning?  


 


 


 


 


What would you like to see the new coach be aware of in regards to coaching? 


 


 


 


 


What recommendations would you like to give for future coaching opportunities? 


 


 


 


 


Any thoughts or recommendations you would like to share with ADRIA?  


 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


19 


 


 


APPENDIX E.  PROCEDURES DOCUMENTS 


E.1 – Course Delivery Schedule 


Communications, Mediation, Negotiation, SDM, and CDM 


Updated: 8/11/2016 


Timeline Task Notes 


6-8 months 
before start of 


course 


Education Department schedules course, books instructors, 
and posts course online for the public and membership 


Courses may be posted prior to booking instructors, but will 
not be made open for registration until courses have 
confirmed instructors 


 


1-3 months 
before start 


of course 


Education Administrator will send most current course 
materials to instructor(s) as PDFs* and PPT.  


Instructor(s) will be given one hard copy of course materials 
to be kept for all subsequent courses**. 


*except for National 
courses for which 
instructors will be 
informed of new 
versions 


**unless there are 
significant changes to 
the course materials. 


1-3 months 
before start 


of course 


Instructor(s) are encouraged to use this time to become 
familiar with the materials and to ask ADARIA’s Education 
Department (particularly the DPD) if there is any uncertainty 
regarding the content of the course.   


All instructors are expected to be prepared and able to 
answer student questions regarding course concepts, theory, 
and practice. Instructors are responsible for requesting 
information from the office if they do not have what they 
need. 


Instructors should also have a functional understanding of 
designation processes as well as be prepared to address 
questions on the profession.   


 


1-3 months 
before start 


of course 


Education Administrator will send out a call for coaches with 
all potential coaching dates*. 


*not all dates will 
require a coach and all 
coaching dates are 
dependent upon student 
numbers and instructor 
needs. 


1-3 months 
before start 


of course 


Coaches are asked to provide Education Administrator with 
availability* at their earliest convenience.  


Coaches are chosen based primarily on experience.  However 
attempts are made to make opportunities available to all 
qualified coaches. 


*availability does not 
mean that you will be 
confirmed to coach the 
course.  All coaches who 
are scheduled for a 
course will receive a 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


20 


 


confirmation email. 


 


1-2 months 
before start 


of course 


Education Administrator will confirm coaches who are 
scheduled for a course based on current student numbers. 


Only coaches who are being confirmed will be contacted. 


 


1 month 
before start 


of course 


If student numbers for a course are below the specified 
threshold for a course (typically 6 students minimum) the 
Director of Professional Development will decide whether the 
course will be cancelled*.  


*some courses will not 
be cancelled even 
though they do not meet 
the minimum.   


1 month 
before start 


of course 


If a course is cancelled the Education Administrator will 
contact all instructors, coaches, and students to inform them 
of the status of the course.  


 


2 weeks 
before start 


of course 


Students will be sent any pre-course information* via email. 


Students are expected to complete any pre-course reading 
prior to Day 1 of course. 


*this includes: date, 
location, parking, lunch, 
and pre-course reading 
information 


2 weeks 
before start 


of course 


Student materials are ordered 


Final coach bookings are made and confirmed based on final  
student numbers 


Instructors are informed of the “final” student numbers 


 


1 week 
before start 


of the course 


Ancillary course materials and resources* will be arranged 
for the course.  


Instructors wishing to use additional materials should first 
check with the Education Administrator and may need to 
supply these supplementary materials/resources themselves. 


*ancillary resources and 
materials include: 


flipchart paper, PPT, 
tent cards, computer, 
projector, markers, 
coffee, breakout rooms, 
and student attendance 
sheet. 


Note for Calgary: 
Calgary materials will be 
sent to the Alberta 
Security College and 
stored in ADRIA’s 
locker. 


1 week 
before start 


of course 


If teaching a course involving a panel* of experts, Instructors 
are to make sure that the panel is selected and confirmed at 
least one week prior to the start of class.  


Instructors are to coordinate with all members of the 
Instructional Team one week prior to the course, if necessary, 
for the smooth functioning of the course. 


*Instructors must get 
approval from DPD on 
panel selections. 


 
  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


21 


 


Day 1/Day 2 


Instructors are responsible for: 


Setting up the classroom, which may include rearranging 
tables, preparing flipcharts, cueing PowerPoint presentation 
and videos, designating break out rooms, etc. 


Providing coaches with clear instructions and timelines 
around activities and breakout rooms 


 


Day 3 


Instructors are responsible for: 


Cleaning the classroom at the end of the last day of teaching, 
whiteboards, papers, coffee cups,  including rearranging 
tables and chairs so the room looks as it did when you began 


Notes for Calgary: 
Returning all materials 
to the locker at Alberta 
Security College, clearly 
labeling materials 


Notes for Edmonton: 
Returning all materials 
to the ADRIA Education 
Department 


Between Part 
1 & 2 


Instructors are responsible for:  


Coordinating with the instructor of the other part of the 
course (if teaching one part only) to ensure a smooth 
transition and to pass along important information regarding 
student progress and subjects covered 


 


Day 4 
Instructors are encouraged to have a discussion regarding 
next steps, designations, and the industry with students, as 
time permits. 


*instructors are 
welcome to ask the 
ADRIA Education 
Department to address 
the class on designation 
and other process 
questions.  Please 
schedule in advance 
with the Education 
Department 


Day 5 


Instructors are responsible for: 


Coordinating evaluation day* 


Assigning evaluators, role-plays, and breakout rooms 


Testing A/V equipment for evaluation day  


Coordinate break-out groups for Day 6** 


*ensure that this is done 
before Day 6 


**Edmonton Instructors 
will receive a list of all 
breakout rooms on Day 
1 of course.  Calgary 
Instructors will be 
informed of breakout 
rooms by the staff at 
Alberta Security College 


 
  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


22 


 


Day 6 


Instructors are responsible for: 


Ensuring all coaches know how to use A/V equipment for 
evaluations 


Collecting post-course quiz (as "ticket" to evaluation) 


Marking post-course quiz, completing participation 
comments, completing Course Cover Sheet*, and compiling all 
student documents 


Cleaning the classroom at the end of the last day of teaching, 
whiteboards, papers, coffee cups, including rearranging 
tables and chairs so the room looks as it did when you began.  


Debriefing with the Instructional Team at the conclusion of 
the course 


 


Coaches are responsible for: 


Marking students’ self-reflection, and completing SER form** 


*Course Cover Sheet  
includes marks for: 


Role-play 


Self-Reflection 


Post Course Quiz 


Attitude and 
Participation 


Instructors are asked to 
complete #s 3 and 4 as 
well as complete 
comments on the back 
page of the Cover Sheet 
for each student 


**For the National 
Introductory Mediation 
course, the Evaluation 
Observation form 
should be completed by 
the coach observing the 
SER 


 


Notes for Calgary: 
Returning all materials 
to the locker at Alberta 
Security College, clearly 
labeling materials 


Notes for Edmonton: 
Returning all materials 
to the ADRIA Education 
Department 


1 day post 
course 


Students are sent an email invitation to complete a course 
feedback survey.  


Students are asked to complete this feedback before receiving 
their course certificates. 


Instructors are asked to encourage students to complete this 
feedback* 


*Course feedback is 
shared with instructors 
once sufficient 
responses have been 
collected from students 


 
  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


23 


 


1 week post 
course 


Instructors are responsible for: 


Providing coaches/evaluators/role-players with clear 
expectations and timely feedback  


Assessing student progress including marking exams.  Note: 
It is the instructor’s responsibility to mark the exams, not the 
coaches’.  


Submitting all final marks in to the ADRIA office within one 
week of the course conclusion 


Submitting the following immediately following the 
completion of the course: 


 ADRIC consent forms (for Mediation course only) 
 An invoice for services provided  
 The names of all of your coaches on your invoice 
 The copy of the class list confirming attendance 
 All leftover materials, USB drives, recorders, cameras and 


classroom materials 
 Student evaluations, quizzes, notes, and final grades 
 All debrief and feedback forms  


 


Note for Calgary 
instructors:  


For courses scheduled in 
Calgary, instructors are 
asked to courier student 
course materials (this 
includes student 
quizzes, evaluations, and 
evaluator notes*) to the 
ADRIA office care of the 
Education 
Administrator.  The 
instructor may add the 
cost of couriering to 
their instructor invoice, 
provided a receipt is 
included.  Please return 
all other course 
materials to the locked 
cabinet. 


*It is not necessary to 
send physical copies of 
the audio and video 
recordings.  The Calgary 
Education Liaison will 
be responsible for 
uploading and sending 
evaluations to the 
Education Administrator 
at the end of each course 
that has an SER 


1 week post 
course 


After results are submitted to the Education Department the 
Education Administrator or DPD may ask the evaluator of any 
unsuccessful students to review the evaluation with the 
student.  Evaluators are asked to be open to this possibility 
and to discussing the evaluation with the instructor or DPD 


For courses with SERs, any unsuccessful student will have 
their SER reviewed by a second instructor or coach prior to 
being sent their results 


 


1-3 weeks 
post course 


Education Administrator will communicate course results to 
students 


 


1-3 weeks 
post course 


Students in courses with evaluations will be sent course 
certificates once they have completed the course feedback 
survey. 


Students in courses without evaluations will be sent course 
completion letters once they have completed the course 
feedback survey. 


 


  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


24 


 


E.2 – Course Delivery Schedule 


Arbitration 


Updated: 8/11/2016 


Timeline Task Notes 


6-8 months 
before start 


of course 


Education Department schedules course, books instructors, and 
posts course online for the public and membership 


Courses may be posted prior to booking instructors, but will not 
be made open for registration until courses have confirmed 
instructors 


 


1-3 months 
before start 


of course 


Education Administrator will inform instructors if there is a new 
version of the manual and PPT.  


Instructor(s) will be given one hard copy of course materials to 
be kept for all subsequent courses*. 


*unless there are 
significant changes to the 
course materials. 


1-3 months 
before start 


of course 


Instructor(s) are encouraged to use this time to become familiar 
with the materials and to ask ADARIA’s Education Department 
(particularly the DPD) if there is any uncertainty regarding the 
content of the course.   


All instructors are expected to be prepared and able to answer 
student questions regarding course concepts, theory, and 
practice.  


Instructors are responsible for requesting information from the 
office if they do not have what they need. 


Instructors should also have a functional understanding of 
designation processes as well as be prepared to address 
questions on the profession.   


 


1 month 
before start 


of course 


If student numbers for a course are below the specified 
threshold for a course (typically 6 students minimum) the 
Director of Professional Development will decide whether the 
course will be cancelled.  


 


1 month 
before start 


of course 


If a course is cancelled the Education Administrator will contact 
all instructors and students to inform them of the status of the 
course.  


 


2 weeks 
before start 


of course 


Students will be sent any pre-course information* via email. 


Students are expected to complete any pre-course reading prior 
to Day 1 of course. 


*this includes: date, 
location, parking, lunch, 
and pre-course reading 
information 


2 weeks 
before start 


of course 


Student materials are ordered 


Instructors are informed of the “final” student numbers 
 


 
  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


25 


 


1 week 
before start 


of the course 


Ancillary course materials and resources* will be arranged for 
the course.  


Instructors wishing to use additional materials should first 
check with the Education Administrator and may need to supply 
these supplementary materials/resources themselves. 


*ancillary resources and 
materials include: 


flipchart paper, PPT, tent 
cards, computer, projector, 
markers, coffee, breakout 
rooms, and student 
attendance sheet.  


Note for Calgary: Calgary 
materials will be sent to 
the Alberta Security 
College and stored in 
ADRIA’s locker. 


1 week 
before start 


of course 


If teaching a course involving a panel* of experts, Instructors are 
to make sure that the panel is selected and confirmed at least 
one week prior to the start of class.  


Coordinating with all members of the Instructional Team one 
week prior to the course, if necessary for the smooth functioning 
of the course. 


*Instructors must get 
approval from DPD on 
panel selections. 


Day 1 


Instructors are responsible for: 


Setting up the classroom, which may include rearranging tables, 
preparing flipcharts, cueing PowerPoint presentation and 
videos, etc. 


 


Day 2 


Instructors are responsible for: 


testing A/V equipment and exam videos for practice exam  


Coordinating with second (if applicable) instructor regarding 
the collection and evaluation of practice awards 


 


Day 3 


Instructors are responsible for: 


Ensuring the students have clear instructions on writing and 
submitting the practice awards* 


Cleaning the classroom at the end of the last day of teaching, 
whiteboards, papers, coffee cups,  including rearranging tables 
and chairs so the room looks as it did when you began 


*Instructors receive 
practice exams directly 
from students 


Notes for Calgary: 
Returning all materials to 
the locker at Alberta 
Security College, clearly 
labeling materials 


Notes for Edmonton: 
Returning all materials to 
the ADRIA Education 
Department 


Between Part 
1 & 2 


Instructors are responsible for:  


Coordinating with the instructor of the other part of the course 
(if teaching one part only) to ensure a smooth transition and to 
pass along important information regarding student progress 
and subjects covered 


Collecting and providing feedback on practice awards 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


26 


 


Day 4 


Instructors are encouraged to have a discussion regarding next 
steps, designations, and the industry with student, as time 
permits*. 


Instructors are responsible for: 


coordinating evaluation day 


informing students untimely award and appeal procedure (i.e., 
direct students to the procedures) 


testing A/V equipment and exam videos** for evaluation day 


*instructors are welcome 
to ask the ADRIA 
Education Department to 
address the class on 
designation and other 
process questions.  Please 
schedule in advance with 
the Education Department 


**ensure this is done prior 
to Day 5 


Day 5 


Instructors are responsible for: 


Providing students with Student Identification and 
Confidentiality Forms (included with exam) 


Collecting signed ADRIC forms (permission to contact) 


Collecting and submitting Student Identification and 
Confidentiality Forms to ADRIA 


Ensuring the students have clear instructions on writing and 
submitting the exam awards* 


Cleaning the classroom at the end of the last day of teaching, 
whiteboards, papers, coffee cups, including rearranging tables 
and chairs so the room looks as it did when you began.  


Exam awards are due 30 
days after the final day of 
the course.  Students are to 
submit their exam awards 
to 
education@adralberta.com 
in PDF format.  Students 
MUST include their 
Student Identification 
Number on the title page 
(clearly visible and 
labeled) by midnight of the 
due date. 


Notes for Calgary: 
Returning all materials to 
the locker at Alberta 
Security College, clearly 
labeling materials 


Notes for Edmonton: 
Returning all materials to 
the ADRIA Education 
Department 


1 day post 
course 


Students are sent an email invitation to complete a course 
feedback survey.  


Students are asked to complete this feedback before receiving 
their course certificates. 


Instructors are asked to encourage students to complete this 
feedback* 


*Course feedback is shared 
with instructors once 
sufficient responses have 
been collected from 
students 


 
  



mailto:education@adralberta.com





 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


27 


 


1 week post 
course 


Instructors are responsible for:  


Debriefing with the Instructional Team at the conclusion of the 
course 


Submitting the following immediately following the completion 
of the course: 


 ADRIC consent forms 
 An invoice for services provided*  
 The copy of the class list confirming attendance 
 All leftover materials, USB drives, recorders, cameras and 


classroom materials 
 All debrief and feedback forms  
 Provide confirmation of award due date in writing via email 


to Education Administrator 
 If there is more than one instructor for the course, please 


inform the Education Administrator of which instructor 
will be marking the awards. If both instructors will be 
marking awards then inform the Education Administrator 
how you would like to divide the awards for marking. 


Note for Calgary 
instructors: For courses 
scheduled in Calgary, 
instructors are asked to 
courier student course 
materials (this includes 
student consent forms and 
attendance sheets) to the 
ADRIA office care of the 
Education Administrator.  
The instructor may add the 
cost of couriering to their 
instructor invoice, 
provided a receipt is 
included.  Please return all 
other course materials to 
the locked cabinet. 


*marking awards can be 
on a separate invoice once 
completed 


30 days post 
course 


Education Administrator will forward all received awards to the 
instructor(s) for marking 


 


75 days post 
course 


Instructor(s) returns awards, exam marking sheet, and 
comments for students to Education Administrator via courier, 
in person, or scanned via email 


Be sure to make comments to students clear* 


If you are aware of an unsuccessful award please forward the 
award to the second instructor of the class, or the Education 
Administrator upon discovery so a review can be completed in a 
timely manner.  


Any unsuccessful student will have their exam award reviewed 
by a second instructor** 


*comments and course 
results are scanned and 
sent to students.  All 
comments are seen by 
students and are an 
opportunity to learn and 
improve their skills.  This 
is an integral portion of the 
learning process.  Illegible 
or incomplete comments 
will result in a request 
from the Education 
Department for 
clarification or typed 
comments.  Ensure to 
complete the entire form 
including the Auto-Fail 
Criteria at the bottom of 
the form.  


**the second review 
should be completed in 2 
weeks 


90 days post 
course 


Students will receive their results and scanned marking sheet, 
including comments 


 


90 days post 
course 


All successful student names will be sent to ADRIC. Course 
certificates will be administered through ADRIC. 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


28 


 


APPENDIX F. ROLE PLAYERS’ DOCUMENTS 


F.1 – Role-Players’ Responsibilities 


 The role player should be prepared and fully in role, knowing the facts, having developed some interests and 
back-stories to disclose about their character. 


 The role-player should come in feeling quite strongly about their position and begin to move away from that 
position if/when the student demonstrates the skills to help them do that. There are no academy awards for your 
performance. Be realistic and not over-the-top in your acting. 


 When you tell your opening story, speak in terms of positions, not interests. 


 During the role play, try to display emotions, resistance or anger at least once to give the student an opportunity 
to deal with it. 


 Strive to maintain balance between being too compliant and too resistant. Being unreasonably stubborn or 
positional is not helpful to the learning of the student, nor is handing him/her your interests and stories on a 
silver platter. 


 Do not do the work for the student. It is important not to disclose information that they haven’t worked for and 
not to feel compelled to break silences or to provide suggestions to move the role play along. If the student asks 
a vague or confused question, react in a confused and puzzled way. 


 If things are not working for you (the role-player), it is appropriate to express (in role) your concerns of the 
moment. 


 Be prepared, in role, to reflect back on the role play. Provide timely, authentic and helpful feedback – from the 
heart. 


F.2 – Role Player’s Pledge 


 I promise to read my role (and only my role) and will not discuss it with others until after the role play. 


 I promise to read and become familiar with my role before the role play begins. I will put it away before the 
role play starts and act my part to the best of my ability. 


 I will not overplay my role. I will respond in role to what’s happening in the conversation. If something the 
other role player/negotiator/mediator says or does has an impact on me, I will respond accordingly.  


 I will not play “stump the mediator (role player, negotiator)”. 


 I will stay in role and not make side-comments or crack jokes “out of role”. 


 I will be engaged, present and supportive, providing constructive feedback if requested.   


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


29 


 


APPENDIX G. SUBMISSION FORMS FOR SPECIALIZED TRAINING 


G.1 – 2015/2016 Specialized Training Submission Form 


Please fill out the following information and fax, mail or email back to education@adralberta.com. If you have any 
questions regarding the delivery procedures, fees and expectations for the delivery of specialty courses through ADRIA, 
please read the section regarding specialty courses in the ADR Institute of Alberta Contractor Manual, or contact the 
Director of Professional Development at tammy@adralberta.com.  


Date of Submission:  Instructor Name:   


Course Title:     


Phone:  E-mail:   


Fax:     
     


Number of Instructional Days:  1     2     3     4     5     
            (please circle) 


PLEASE CHECK ALL BOXES THAT APPLY 


I hold an active ADRIA Membership  


I am currently an instructor with ADRIA.  


I have delivered this course before:  
Last date of delivery: ______________________ 
Location:                    ______________________ 


I am the sole owner/designer of this course.  
If not, please explain 


 


 
 


 


I would like ADRIA to market this course to private contracts 
If yes, please describe: 


 


 
 


 


COURSE DETAILS – PLEASE CHECK THE ITEMS THAT WILL BE INCLUDED IN YOUR COURSE 


 Student Manual  
If yes, number of pages: ____________ 


 PowerPoint Presentation  
If yes, number of slides: ____________ 


 Materials for student purchase  
If yes, please describe: 


 
 


 
 


Requirement to complete program: 


  Exam 


  Assessment 


  Attendance only 
 


PLEASE ENSURE THE SUBMISSION PACKAGE INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING ITEMS  


 Course Description (150-250 words) 


 Learning Outcomes  


 Course Outline 


Instructor biography (maximum 150 words) 


Teaching Plan 
(see next page for details) 


Office Use Only 


 Active member 


 Complete Submission 


 Reviewed by DPD 


 Approved for delivery 


 


  


 
 



mailto:education@adralberta.com

mailto:tammy@adralberta.com





 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


30 


 


Please provide a document with your submission form containing the following information: 


 
COURSE DESCRIPTION 


Think of this as a marketing pitch for your course. Provide answers to the following questions: 


 What is this course about? 


 Who should take this course? Include some details on who the course should appeal to. 


 Is there a pre-requisite for this course? This should give some indication if it is open to everyone or only those 
with previous mediation training. 


 


LEARNING OUTCOMES 


Please outline the learning outcomes for the course in the following format: 


 Upon completion of this course, students will … 


 (List these outcomes with bullet points) 
 


COURSE OUTLINE 


Provide specific details, including: 


 Pre-course work required 


 Recommended pre-reading 


 Format of course 


 Possible  role-play requirements 


 Break-out room requirements 


 Possible homework assignments 


 Exams 


 


INSTRUCTOR BIOGRAPHY 


 Please provide a brief biography that we may use when marketing this course (150-200 words) 


  Include relevant adult education instructing experience. 
 


TEACHING PLAN 


Please provide a teaching plan for this course with timelines outlining the agenda for each day. 


 


  







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


Education Contractor Manual Appendices    Copyright 2016 


31 


 


G.2 – Billing Invoice For Specialized Training Courses 


 Education Contractor Invoice                                


 
Name of Contractor   Invoice No:  


Address    Date:  
City, Province    GST #:  


Postal Code:   Course Location:  
 Phone:   Certificate Program  
 Fax:   Private Contract  
 Email:   # of Students:  


Bill to:            
ADR Institute of Alberta          
Room CE 223A – Ralph King 
Athletic Centre 


         


7128 Ada Blvd. Edmonton          
AB, T5J 3M1, Canada          


Please submit invoice in the same month as the course/assessment, along with all receipts 


Date 
Description of 


Contract  
Rate ($/day) # Ss 


# 
Days 


Rate Total Parking 
Other (please 


specify) 
GST 


Line 
Total 


  - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - 


 6 students $1000/day        


 students 7-12 $175/student/day        
 students 13-24  $200/student/day)        


          
          $  


          Total $ 


 


Instructors and Assessors:  


List Coaches/Role-Players below with dates of coaching/role-
playing 


Coaches and Role-Players: 


List the Instructor(s)/Assessor(s) below 
  


 


 
 


Rates: 


6 students: $1000/day 
students 7-12: $175/student/day 
students 13-24: $200/student/day) 


 


 







 


 


______________________________________________________________________ 


ADR Institute of Alberta  Copyright 2016  


32 


 


G.3 – Template for Letter of Completion for Students 


 


[Date] 


 


To Whom It May Concern: 
 


This letter confirms that [First_Name] [Last_Name] was in attendance for the all [#] days of the following ADR 
Institute of Alberta course: 


 


Course Name:    


Course Dates:  [Date_1] (Part 1) 


   [Date_2] (Part 2) 


Total Hours:  [#] Hours 


Location:  [City], Alberta 


 


 


Sincerely, 


 


 


Tammy Borowiecki 


On behalf of ADR Institute of Alberta 


 


 


 








Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – Approved     Page 1 


Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the ADR Institute of Alberta, held in the Jasper Boardroom, 
The Westin Calgary, Calgary, Alberta on September 10th, 2016 


 
 
Present:  Dolores Herman, QMed (President & Chair),  
   Barrie Marshall (Vice President),  
   Kevin Kelly, QArb, QMed (Treasurer),  
   John Welbourn, CArb (Secretary),  
   Gayle Desmeules, QMed (Director),  
   Joanne Munro, CMed (Director),  
   Michelle Simpson, CMed, CArb (Governance Committee Chair),  
   Wendy Hassen, CMed (ADRIC Rep), 


Alasdair MacKinnon, CMed, QArb (Director), 
   Paul Conway (Executive Director) (non-voting). 
 
Not attending:  Stan Galbraith (Past President, PRT Rep)  
   Jeffrey Jessamine, QArb (Director). 
 
 
1. Welcome & Agenda Review 
 
 1.1  Barrie Marshall called the meeting to order at 8:07 a.m. 
 


1.2 The proposed Agenda was reviewed. Item 4.3 - Introduction of the new Manager Marketing & 
Communications - the new Manager will not be attending. No additions were requested. Motion 
to approve the Agenda as presented was passed unanimously (Herman/Hassen). 


 
2.  Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 


2.1 Motion to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 4, 2016 and the revised minutes of the 
teleconference meeting of June 14, 2016 was passed unanimously (Hassen/MacKinnon).  


 
3. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 
Item 5.2 - ADRIA Course Monitoring Policy - Michelle Simpson reiterated that she had audited a course. 
 
Item 6.6 - Michelle Simpson and Joanne Munro confirmed that they are ADRIA course instructors. 
 
 No other potential conflicts were declared.  
 
4. Business Arising (ADRIA) 
 
 4.1 AAMS Representation 


Barrie Marshall advised that he had been approached by Don Goodfellow to join the AAMS Board 
of Directors. He will accept only if the ADRIA Board approves. Discussion ensued regarding the 
potential conflict that may arise if one person sits on both Boards. Barrie will clarify if the 
invitation is intended for him personally or as a member of the ADRIA Board. He will decline if the 
former and may accept if the latter. 
 


4.2 Participating in Law Day Events 
 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – Approved     Page 2 


The Executive Director has contacted the Edmonton and Calgary Law Day chairs and will contact 
the provincial chair regarding ADRIA participation in 2017 events. He proposed mock arbitration 
and mediation role plays as contributions. Michelle Simpson is the chair of the Canadian Bar 
Association Alberta ADR section and will assist in coordinating ADRIA’s participation. 


 
 4.3  Introduction of Manager Marketing & Communications 
 


The ED apologized that the new Manager, Kristy Rhyason, was not able to attend. He outlined her 
skills in social media and webdesign and provided information on the terms of her contract with 
ADRIA. 


 
5. ADRIA Bylaw and Policy Updates 
 
 5.1 ADRIA Advertising Policy 
 


The ED advised that a committee had been struck which intended to present a draft policy to the 
November, 2016 Board meeting. The issues involved are complex but proposed that ADRIA accept 
advertising in the newsletter and on the website from members and for member events, as well 
as paid advertising for non-members and their events. Joanne Munro questioned including paid 
non-member events that conflict with ADRIA courses. Wendy Hassen noted an historical tension 
between ADRIA members offering for-profit courses that compete with ADRIA courses. 


 
Michelle Simpson requested that the draft policy be vetted in advance by the Policy Committee.   


 
 5.2 ADRIA Course Monitoring Policy 
 


Motion to adopt the draft policy as presented was passed unanimously. (Simpson / Herman) 
 


Action Item - Michelle Simpson to incorporate the new Policy into the Board Policy.   
 
 5.3 LINK Membership 
   


The ED proposed the $75.00 ADRIA LINK Membership be expanded to include other categories of 
non-income earning individuals (e.g. full time post-secondary students, retirees, unemployed due 
to personal, family or medical circumstances). The proposal has been reviewed by ADRIC and 
considered by the affiliates.  


 
Motion to adopt the expanded ADRIA LINK Membership as presented was passed unanimously. 
(Munro / Herman) 


 
Action Item - Michelle Simpson to determine if this is a policy to be included in Board Policy. 


 
6. Reports   
 
 6.1 President  
 


Dolores Herman advised that ADRIC had felt unable to recognize Wendy Hassen as the ADRIA 
representative on the ADRIC Board until Chuck Smith’s term had expired. When requested Chuck 
had resigned from the ADRIC Board to facilitate Wendy’s appointment. The issue is timing - ADRIC 
Directors’ terms in office do not coincide with ADRIA Directors’ terms. 


 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – Approved     Page 3 


Dolores also noted that there had been discussion regarding Stan Galbraith, the ADRIA past 
president, participating in the Presidents Round Table (“PRT”) with the current presidents of the 
other affiliates. The matter has been resolved.  


 
Dolores will be attending the October PRT at the ADRIC conference in Toronto.  


 
 6.2 Executive Director 
 
  Report is attached. 
 


Joanne Munro expressed concern that students completing course requirements were not getting 
sufficient practical experience before applying for the Q.Med. designation. John Welbourn and 
Michelle Simpson expressed similar concern regarding Q.Arb. designation applicants. 
Barrie Marshall suggested the PRT should be advised of the ADRIA Board’s deep concern that the 
Q.Med. and Q.Arb. designations lead the public to incorrectly believe that designation holders 
have sufficient practical expertise in the field indicated. 


 
Dolores requested that in addition to the quantitative analysis of ADRIA courses offered, the 
Executive Director also provide the qualitative analysis of courses delivered.  


  
6.5 White Paper Action Plan Committee 


 
Alasdair MacKinnon advised that the White Paper had been circulated widely with subsequent 
presentations to Provincial Ministers and ADMs, the Queen’s Bench Associate Chief Justice, 
Provincial Court Deputy Judge, and other provincial and federal agencies. Presentations and 
meetings will continue with a further report and recommendations to be delivered at the 
November Board meeting. 


 
 6.3 Treasurer 
 


Kevin Kelly reviewed the balance sheet and comparative year-to-date analysis. Net income to date 
is ~$91,000.00 generated primarily from ADRIA education (course and private contract) programs. 
He noted that private training contracts are important to maintain future income and growth. 


 
 6.4 Governance Committee 
 
  No report. 
 
 6.6 ADRIC Reports 
 


6.6.1  ADRIC Rep  
 


Wendy Hassen noted an ADRIC Board teleconference scheduled for September 15. She 
asked for Board clarification of what was appropriate information for an affiliate’s 
representative to share with the ADRIC Board and for that representative to share with 
the affiliate Board. The concern is a potential for conflict arising between the individual’s 
separate responsibilities to the 2 Boards. 


 
ADRIC circulates meeting agenda in advance of the event. The Board consensus was the 
ADRIC representative should review the agenda with the ADRIA President and Executive 
Director prior to the ADRIC meeting and declare any perceived conflict at the start of the 
meeting.   







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – Approved     Page 4 


   
  6.6.2  MoU Task Force 
   


Wendy Hassen advised that the Task Force was still waiting for responses from some 
affiliates and stakeholders. She anticipates further developments at a joint MoU and PRT 
meeting at the ADRIC conference. Wendy will report at the November Board meeting. 


 
  6.6.3 Presidents’ Round Table 
 


The Executive Director and Stan Galbraith had attended a September 6, 2016 
teleconference. Minutes of the meeting were circulated. 


 
  6.6.4 Advocacy 
 
   No report. 
 
  6.6.5 Membership and Marketing 
 


(from the minutes of September 6, 2016 PRT meeting) ADRIC will be ready to launch iMIS 
by the end of the month. A demonstration will be available at the Toronto conference. 


 
  6.6.7 Roster Development 
 


Michele Simpson advised that the office of each provincial ombudsman had been 
contacted to inform of ADRIC member services offered. Attention is now turning to 
contacting the corporate world. 


 
  6.6.8 Education 
 


Michelle Simpson advised that ADRIC intends to redevelop the National Arbitration 
course.  Funding has been allocated in the ADRIC budget. 


 
  6.6.9 Insurance 
 


The Executive Director continues to work with the national insurer to clarify and expand 
coverage. He noted that ADRIC and ADRIO had recently signed a joint 3 year renewal.  
ADRIA has worked with ADRIC and restructured its coverage at a significantly reduced 
cost.   


 
7. ADRIA / ADRIC - specific issues 
 
 7.1 Sharing of Associate Member Data 
 


The Executive Director advised that ADRIC does not receive associate member data from all 
affiliates. Privacy of information and ADRIA privacy policy are concerns. Further, full ADRIA 
membership is diminished if associate ADRIA members received all ADRIC info and full member 
communications. 


 
Michelle Simpson suggested that the matter is one of policy to be addressed at an ADRIA AGM. 


 
 7.3 Waiver for Retired Judges 
 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – Approved     Page 5 


ADRIC has determined that the waiver will not be automatic, but rather on an individual applicant 
basis only. 


 
 7.4 Pro-rated designation fees 
 


ADRIC has approved a discount schedule to be determined by the date an applicant’s designation 
is approved, and that includes a second quarter discount. 


 
 7.5 Instructor Licensing MoU et al. 
 


The Executive Director advised that a 5 year MoU has been signed with ADRIC regarding licensing 
fees to be paid by ADRIA for the exclusive right to deliver ADRIC introductory mediation and 
arbitration courses in Alberta. 


 
Joanne Munro advised that the ADRIC instructor application form is excessively long and requires 
too much detail.  


 
Lunch Break - 12:00 noon to 1:15 p.m. 
 
 7.9 ADRIC Corporate Memberships 
 


ADRIC has asked if ADRIA would grant membership to an Alberta representative of an ADRIC 
corporate member.  


 
Motion approved unanimously: ADRIA supports the proposal to grant associate member status to 
an Alberta representative of a current ADRIC corporate member based on the ADRIC program and 
nominal fee structure outlined in the ADRIC correspondence of August 24, 2016. If there are any 
changes to the program, including fee structure, then ADRIA will be consulted 
(Hassen/Desmeules). 


 
8. New Business 
 
 8.1 Member access to ADRIA Minutes 
 


Action item: Once approved, Board minutes will be posted in the Member Portal. The use of 
acronyms should be avoided. 


 
 8.4 Membership pins 
 


Action item: Executive Director to consult the membership on the $ value and recognition value of 
membership pins. 


   
10.  Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities  
 
 10.2 Invitations to the next Board dinner (November) 
 


Invitations should include AFMS president and executive, Daryl Willetts, Peter Portlock, the 
Edmonton members of the White Paper Task Force, and the Dispute Resolution Network 
executive. 


 
8.  New Business (resumed) 
 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – Approved     Page 6 


 8.2 Community Mediation MJRC / CMCS 
 


The Executive Director advised that community mediation programs have difficult financial issues 
resulting from reduced government grants. ADRIA’s options to assist were discussed. Joanne 
Munro pointed out that ADRIA has students that need practical experience and MRJC has clients 
needing mediation services. The Executive Director suggested that space in the ADRIA offices be 
made available. 


 
Action item: The Executive Director to ask MJRC for guidance on how ADRIA might assist. 


 
7. ADRIA / ADRIC - specific issues (resumed)  
 
 7.2 ADRIC Committees & Communications 
 


The Executive Director advised that he and Gayle Desmeules had started to clarify how ADRIC 
committees communicate and how to communicate with ADRIC. Wendy Hassen suggested that 
ADRIA not start the discussion with ADRIC until all affiliates have an opportunity to provide input 
at the Toronto conference. 


 
 7.6 Mediation designation experience requirements 
 


The Executive Director advised that ADRIO accepts co-mediations for the experience component 
of the Q.Med. designation. Clearly the designation requirements are not applied uniformly by the 
affiliates. The Board concurs that the C.Med and C.Arb requirements are minimum standards and 
reiterated the need for ADRIC to revisit use of the term “Qualified”. 


 
 7.7 Course Accreditation Process 
 


The Executive Director noted that ADRIO receives revenue from ADRIC for providing Ontario 
based courses.  ADRIC should consider sharing revenue with ADRIA for national accreditation 
courses provided by ADRIA. Discussion ensued on the need to consider the pros and cons of 
obtaining national accreditation of provincial training and education courses. 


 
 7.8 ADRIC Awareness Sub Committee 
 


The Executive Director noted that there may be individuals on ADRIC committees that are not 
ADRIA members or supported by the ADRIA Board. 


 
Action item: The Executive Director to request ADRIC to advise of any such appointments. 


  
8. New Business (resumed)  
 
 8.3  ADR Services Update 
 
  8.3.1 Select & Appoint 
 


The Executive Director advised that additional promotional materials for this service 
should be in place by the new year. 


 
  8.3.2 Directory 
 


The Executive Director advised that a 2017 directory listing will require a designation. 







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – Approved     Page 7 


     
  8.3.3  Document Sharing 
 


The Executive Director explained that the concept, yet to be developed, is that ADRIA act 
as a neutral 3rd party (escrow agent) for the delivery and exchange of documents and 
records primarily in arbitration proceedings. 


 
 8.5 ACR Conference 
 
  Baltimore, Maryland, on September 29, 2016. 
 
 8.6  Meeting with Justice Minister 
 


The Executive Director confirmed the meeting was positive and constructive. 
 
 8.7 GOA Practicum 
 


The Executive Director noted the practicum offers students who have completed ADRIA’s 10 day 
Separation and Divorce Mediation course an opportunity to gain practical experience and be 
mentored by experienced family mediators with Alberta Justice. GOA benefits by potentially 
growing its staff and roster of mediators. ADRIA benefits from the increased exposure to and 
opportunities flowing from the course.      


 
 8.8 Fort McMurray Insurance Proposal 
 


ADRIA had received a request from the insurance industry to submit a proposal for assistance in 
resolving insurance issues arising from the Spring, 2016 wildfires.  


 
 8.9 ADRIA Contractor Manual 
 


The Executive Director expressed many thanks to Tammy and Jocelyn for the development of the 
Manual. 


 
 8.10 Evaluative ADR 
 
  Discussion deferred to next meeting. 
 
9. Learning Opportunities - next meeting 
 
 9.1 Next Meeting 
 
  November 17 and 18, 2016 in Edmonton. 
 
 9.2 Strategic Planning 
 


The Strategic Plan will be reviewed at the January, 2017 meeting. This meeting will also include 
Board evaluations and Policy review. 


 
Action item: Michelle Simpson to develop a survey / questionnaire to assist with the Board 
evaluations. 


 
10.  Link to Membership, Events & Opportunities (resumed)  







Board of Directors meeting 10 September 2016 – Approved     Page 8 


 
 10.1 “On Board” 
 


The Executive Director explained this is now an article in the newsletter. The next edition will be 
October / November.  


 
11. In Camera Session  
 
 Not recorded. 
 
12. Adjournment  


The meeting ended shortly after 4 p.m. 
   

















 


Page 1 of 3 
 


6.6.8 


JOINT MEETING 


ADR PRESIDENTS’ ROUNDTABLE + MOU TASK FORCE  


Meeting Notes  - September 6 ,2016  


1 hour starting at: 10:00 am PT ; 11:00 am MT; 1:00 pm ET   


Key Meeting Objectives: 


Update about MOU  Taskforce work and proposed face-to-face discussion at ADRIC conference 
in October,  2016   


A. Draft session plan (attached)  


B. Who should be invited? 


 
Attended By: 


Scott Siemens 
Wendy Hassen 
Kathryn Munn 
Elton Simoes 
Mary Comeau 
Pierre Grenier 
Janet McKay 
Stan Galbraith 
Ron Pizzo 
Wendy Scott 


 
Notes By:  Kathryn Munn 


 


1. MOU Taskforce so far   


Report dated Aug 18, 2016 provided as background for this meeting. 


Feedback is still being received on the purpose, guiding principles and background. 


The Task force is recommending that at the ADRIC conference in October there be a 


face-to-face discussion about the next stage of development of the MOU, the 


relationship framework.  


What are the sensitivities we need to factor in? 


a. Relationships between ADRIC and affiliates 


b. Relationships between affiliates 


c. Relationship of corporate members to ADRIC and to affiliates 


d. Balance of standards of practice and coverage across the country 


 


2. Draft Session Plan 







 


Page 2 of 3 
 


In accordance with the recommendation of the MOU Taskforce a session is scheduled 


about the topic of the relationship framework at the ADRIC conference in Toronto  on 


October 14, 2016 from 8:30 to 10:30 AM .  (NOTE:  Date is different than previously 


announced.) 


A draft session plan was distributed before the meeting(attached).    


 


The meeting participants supported the recommendation by the MOU TF.   


Draft session plan -   Suggestions:   


Add options of types of governance structures as a starting point for discussion:   for 


example, the Federation of Law Societies and Canadian Bar Association.   


 


3. Who should be invited? 


 President or other representative of each organization – all affiliates and ADRIC. 


It was suggested that Anne Wallace attend for ADRSK given Scott’s dual role. 


 At least one representative of corporate members – David McCutcheon? 


 ADRIC VP President  Elect 


 MOU TF 


 


There was discussion about limiting the number of attendees in order to facilitate 


efficient discussion.  It was suggested that Executive Directors be invited to attend as 


resource people and not participate in the discussion.  


 


It was suggested that later in the MOU development process, when the MOU draft is in 


underway, the draft MOU be fine-tuned by people with marketing expertise to make 


sure it is easy to communicate. 


 


4. NEXT STEPS 


 Kathryn Munn to distribute the notes of this meeting to the meeting 


participants.  


  


 Stan Galbraith (with others from ADRIA)  to provide a summary outline of 


models of governance of Federation of Law Societies and Canadian Bar  


Association.  This is to be included as examples with the information package 


that is distributed to invitees for the October 14 discussion. 


 


 MOU TF to develop the final session plan for October 14 discussion and host the 


session. MOU TF will be polled for a meeting as soon as possible.  







 


Page 3 of 3 
 


 


 MOU TF will finalize the Agenda and any advance meeting materials for 


circulation to PRT members  as soon as possible 


 


 Each invited representative to obtain feedback from their board before the 


October 14 session. If not already done, each board is also asked to provide 


feedback to the MOU Taskforce concerning the draft purpose, guiding principles 


and background.  








Page | 1  
 


6.6.9 


DRAFT 1:  SESSION PLAN: MOU TASK FORCE LEADERSHIP CONSULTATION 


ADRIC, its members, corporate members, affiliates and their members creates a complicated 


structure with competing interests.    


FOCUS QUESTION:  


What is\should be the relationship among ADRIC, regional affiliates and Corporate Members? 


DATE:  Thursday October 13th-  


PARTICIPANTS: Organizational leaders from ADRIC, Regions & Corporate Members 


SESSION OBJECTIVES: 


 Update leaders on TF work to date (build on draft purpose\principles)  


 Common understanding about current governance structures  


 Input\consensus about desired Roles and responsibilities of each group  
o Identify possible areas for shared services – ADRIC and Affiliates  


 


Note:  participants will be invited to pre-read background information to prepare for the session 


DISCUSSION OUTLINE: 


8:30 – 8:40 – Review of TF work to date, 1draft purpose\principles (See Appendix A)  


8:40 – 9:30 – What is a Federation of Peers?   


 Review current governance framework (See Appendix B) 


 Some Questions to Explore:   
o Are the AFFILIATES (not including ADRIC) a federation of peers with ADRIC the 


Framework through which the Affiliates collaborate? 
o Is ADRIC the framework through which the Affiliates and Corporate members 


collaborate? 
o Is ADRIC responsible for representing Corporate Interests? If not, how are they 


represented? 


9:30 – 10:20 -   Exploring Roles and responsibilities (See Appendix C) 


10:20 – 10:30 – Wrap up and Next Steps 


 


  


                                                           
1 WE may have input from other Affiliates by October to add  







Page | 2  
 


Appendix A:  


Draft Memorandum of Understanding: Background, Purpose and 
Objectives - V5: May 3, 2016 


Input to Date (June 21 2016) 


BACKGROUND: 


While ADRIC and the seven (7) ADR Regions are separate 


organizations, they have a joint, collaborative history and are 


structurally tied together.  In 1974, the Arbitrator's Institute of 


Canada Inc. (AIC) based in Ontario was formed.  Its goal was to act 


as a national center of information, education and research on 


arbitration and mediation.  Separate Regional organizations (whose 


members were also Mediators and Arbitrators) soon started 


forming:  Quebec (1977), BC (1980) and Alberta (1982). Discussions 


between national and regional leaders led to creation of the 


Arbitration and Mediation Institute (AMIC) in 1984.  The new AMIC 


Board consisted of one (1) representative from each region.  


Regions agreed to collect a fee from their members to fund the 


national organization.   As part of this, AMIC Ontario was created 


to function as a separate organization (Ontario was previously 


served by AIC).  Additional Regional organizations developed in 


Saskatchewan (1987), Manitoba (1989) and Nova Scotia, which 


became the Atlantic region.  In 1996, the first Memorandums 


between AMIC and each region were signed, to “clarify their 


relationship and provide consistent integration”.  In 1994, a 


separate organization of Canadian corporations and law firms had 


come together to promote creative resolution of business disputes 


 







Page | 3  
 


Draft Memorandum of Understanding: Background, Purpose and 
Objectives - V5: May 3, 2016 


Input to Date (June 21 2016) 


(the use of ADR).  Leaders of AMIC and Canadian Foundation for 


Dispute Resolution (CFDR) agreed to consolidate the two (2) 


organizations, which became the ADR Institute of Canada in August 


2000. The goal of this union was to provide a forum to integrate 


ADR professionals with ADR users, combine resources to increase 


the profile and ability to promote ADR across the country and to 


provide greater ability to represent its members as the 


professional organization for ADR practitioners in Canada. 


PURPOSE: 


This Memorandum of Understanding sets out the relationships 


among:  


 ADR Atlantic Institute (ADRAI); 


 ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA); 


 ADR Institute of British Columbia (ADRIBC); [new name 


pending] 


 ADR Institute of Canada Inc. (ADRIC); 


 ADR Institute of Manitoba (ADRIM); 


 ADR Institute of Ontario (ADRIO); 


 ADR Institute of Saskatchewan Inc. (ADRSK); 


 Institut de médiation et d’arbitrage du Québec (IMAQ). 


ATLANTIC:  ATLANTIC REGION  
 
No objections to the work so far. The Board has taken no issue 
with the drafts created so far and feels positive about the 
progress – they recognize the massive work that will be expended 
to make this work. The delay is not a surprise and does not create 
any concern either. 
 
All of the discussion was positive (for example the core 
membership categories are considered a positive step). 


Manitoba:  


Oughtn't we to form the ambition to be THE Canada based NGO 
voice for ADR internationally?  
 
We believe that ADR Practices build a better and healthier 


province. 


Our purpose: We exist to transform dispute resolution culture in 







Page | 4  
 


Draft Memorandum of Understanding: Background, Purpose and 
Objectives - V5: May 3, 2016 


Input to Date (June 21 2016) 


 Manitoba by... 


 Promoting ADR 


 Sharing knowledge 


 Providing training 


 Credentialing 


 Being “the hub” for ADR in Manitoba or connecting the 


ADR Community to each other and their clients in 


Manitoba. 


AB: THE ADRIA BOARD explored how to explain the relationship 
with Affiliates-ADRIC and Corporate Members– here are some 
concepts  
 


 Scope:  Together, the Affiliates and ADRIC are a national 
and international organization, with ADRIC playing the 
leading role in the advancement of corporate ADR 
interests.  While each Affiliate oversees its own 
geographic territory, ADRIC oversees matters of National 
or International interest to the Affiliates. 
 


 The Affiliates (collectively) are a national federation of 
peers operating collaboratively within the ADRIC umbrella 
(OR operating collaboratively as an integral part of 
ADRIC?)  The Affiliates collaborate and influence the 
governance of ADRIC through their representatives to the 
ADRIC Board of Directors and the Presidents' Round Table 
(PRT), in addition to the many standing or ad-hoc 
committees that report to ADRIC and/or the PRT. 


To Sum up:  
 


 Are the AFFILIATES (not including ADRIC) a federation of 


We are a national federation of peers. 


We share the following objectives: 


 Increase the understanding and use of ADR by the public, 


business, academia and government; 


 Ensure excellence and quality in the practice of ADR, including 


expansion of the recognition and use of ADR professional 


designations; 


 Provide excellent services to our members. 







Page | 5  
 


Draft Memorandum of Understanding: Background, Purpose and 
Objectives - V5: May 3, 2016 


Input to Date (June 21 2016) 


peers? And ADRIC is the Framework through which the 
Affiliates collaborate? 


 Is ADRIC the framework through which the Affiliates and 
Corporate members collaborate? 


 Is ADRIC responsible for representing Corporate 
Interests? 


 ADRIC would take the lead in National and International 


initiatives  


GUIDING PRINCIPLES: 


National Scope: We are a national organization. We focus on 


achieving our objectives across Canada. 


AB: 
Change: We are a national organization. We focus on achieving 
our objectives across Canada to: We work together within a 
national framework to achieve our objectives across Canada.  
(Rationale:  Current wording does not accurately reflect the scope 
and structure of ADRIC and affiliates) 


 


Diversity: We value our diversity.  We recognize our uniqueness, 


including variations in nature, size, finances and other resources, 


geography, business focus, language and kinds of members 


represented.  We respect our differences and our autonomy within 


our federation. 


 


Collaboration: Collaboration is our strength. We look for creative 


ways to collaborate to achieve our objectives. We leverage our 


strengths, rather than duplicating our efforts.  We avoid actual or 


perceived competition with one another. We provide consistent, 


 







Page | 6  
 


Draft Memorandum of Understanding: Background, Purpose and 
Objectives - V5: May 3, 2016 


Input to Date (June 21 2016) 


unified and complementary messages to our members, their 


clients and the public.   


Transparency:  We communicate openly and honestly. We share 


information willingly. We consult one another on matters of 


mutual interest and where our decisions may affect each other.  


 


Mutual Accountability:  We are clear about our distinct roles and 


responsibilities. We create sound and effective structures 


(including this Memorandum of Understanding) and processes to 


frame and build our relationships.  We support each other. We 


honour our commitments to each other. We use ADR practices in 


resolving issues among ourselves. 


 


Other:  AB:  Add a new principle “RESPECT”  


 


 







Page | 7  
 


APPENDIX B:  EXCERPTS FROM ADRIC BYLAWS AND “THE WAY FORWARD” 2014-16 STRATEGIC PLAN & FRAMEWORK  


ADRIC BYLAWS  


VI. MEMBERSHIP  


2. Application for Membership  


a. All persons who are Individual Members of a Regional Affiliate shall be Members in the Institute subject to such conditions as the Board may 


determine. Each Regional Affiliate shall collect from the Member and pay to the Institute the applicable membership fees (and any applicable 


taxes). Applications for membership in the Institute shall be accepted or denied by the Board and the decision of the Board shall be final and 


binding in accordance with these Bylaws.  


b. In the event that a Regional Affiliate is removed from Regional Affiliate status in accordance with these By-laws, applications for membership 


in the Institute may be made directly to the Institute and persons who are Individual Members of such affiliate shall continue as Members of the 


Institute, subject to such conditions and time limitations as the Board may determine.   


4.  Corporate Representative  


a. Each Sustaining Corporate Member is entitled to nominate one (1) Corporate Representative for that Sustaining Corporate Member, for the 


following purposes:  


i. receiving communication and notices;  


ii. exercising voting rights; and  


iii. holding elected office at any level of the Institute.  


VIII. BOARD OF DIRECTORS  


1. Responsibilities  


The property, funds and affairs of the Institute shall be managed within the limits of the By-laws by the Board.  


2. Composition  


a. The Board shall consist of a number of Directors not more than the sum of VIII. 2. b. i, ii and iii below.  


b. The Board shall be comprised of:  







Page | 8  
 


i. one (1) Member in Good Standing from each Regional Affiliate (as elected by the Members in Good Standing who are members of each such 


Regional Affiliate, and ratified by the Board);  


ii. the same number of Corporate Representatives (as elected by Sustaining Corporate Members in Good Standing, and ratified by the Board); 


and  


iii. up to four (4) Directors appointed by the Directors then in office from among Members in Good Standing.  


XV. REGIONAL AFFILIATES  


1. Establishment  


The Board shall have the authority to approve, on application, Regional Affiliates of the Institute, which shall have integrated status with the 


Institute provided that such approval shall require a majority vote.  


2. Application  


All applications to establish Regional Affiliates shall be submitted to the Board and shall be accompanied by a report on the anticipated number 


of Members and the reason for the application.  


3. Administration  


The affairs of a Regional Affiliate shall be managed by a regional administration committee or board of directors in accordance with the By-laws 


and Policies of the Institute and those of the Regional Affiliate.  


4. Minutes  


Minutes of all meetings of the board of directors of the Regional Affiliate and annual general or special meetings of the Regional Affiliate shall be 


submitted to the Institute on request. The number of members of the Regional Affiliate, or directors present shall be recorded in the Minutes of 


all meetings.  


5. Regional Affiliate Representation on the National Board of Directors  


Each Regional Affiliate shall elect one Director to the Board in accordance with VIII.2.b.i and VIII.6 above.  


6. Membership Lists  


a. Each Regional Affiliate shall apprise the Secretary on a timely basis of all new Members, resignations, and changes in Member contact 


information that come to the Regional Affiliate’s attention.  







Page | 9  
 


b. Each Regional Affiliate shall provide the Institute with a list of all Members in Good Standing who are members of such Regional Affiliate 


within 30 days of the end of each quarter of the Institute’s fiscal year. This membership list shall state the name, phone number, fax number, e-


mail and full mailing address of each such Member in Good Standing.  


7. Transfer of Responsibilities  


The Board may transfer responsibilities to a Regional Affiliate as it sees fit from time to time, and may resume any such transferred 


responsibilities on notice to a Regional Affiliate. However, the Board retains the authority to establish national Policies in all Institute matters.  


8. Removal from Regional Affiliate Status  


A Regional Affiliate can be removed from Regional Affiliate status after a resolution of the Board recommending such action to an annual general 


or special meeting of the Members. At least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting at which such motion will be addressed, notice of the meeting 


and its purpose shall be given to the Members in Good Standing (other than Associate Corporate Members). Such motion will require approval 


of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast in person or by proxy at such meeting. 


EXCERPTS FROM ADRIC “THE WAY FORWARD” 2014-16 STRATEGIC PLAN & FRAMEWORK  


1: What is the appropriate role for Directors to play at the national level in terms of operations and policy, and what is the appropriate 


orientation as between provincial and national organizational interests?   


Board Level  


The Board is both a policy-making and an operational board. At this stage in ADRIC’s development, all members of the Board are expected for 


example to be active on ADRIC committees between Board meetings, and to help implement many ADRIC initiatives “on the ground” on behalf 


of the national organization, supported by ADRIC’s dedicated professional staff where appropriate.    


All Directors – whether they are corporate representatives or representatives of the regional affiliates – are expected to act at all times in the 


best interest of the national organization. 


Committee Level  


ADRIC depends heavily on the work of its committees.  ADRIC’s work could not continue at the high levels it currently enjoys without engaged, 


committed volunteer participation on national committees. We depend on volunteers from across Canada to populate and propel the work of 


each committee. Moreover, every Director is expected to serve on one or two committees.    







Page | 10  
 


 All Directors – whether they are corporate representatives or representatives of the regional affiliates – are expected to act at all times 


in the best interest of the national organization 


2: How do we enhance the relevance and value that the regional affiliates associate with ADRIC, including by supporting them in increasing 


our shared membership base?   


We are fortunate that the Board includes regional affiliate representatives and corporate representatives from every region of the country 


except the Northwest Territories, the Yukon and Nunavut. While the Board is drawn from almost all parts of Canada, common themes emerged 


quickly during the strategic planning session on the question of enhancing value for the affiliates and our shared members.  In no particular 


order, those common themes were:   


General Theme:  More Marketing of ADRIC Brand   


General Theme:  Continued Positioning of ADRIC as Canada’s Leading ADR Organization Internationally   


General Theme:  Enhanced Sense of Belonging and Support within Umbrella of a Canadian ADR Organization 


3 How can we (a) expand our corporate membership base and (b) promote roster use, case administration and engagement of our members 


in professional services? 







Page | 11  
   







Page | 12  
 


APPENDIX C: (DRAFT WORKSHEET– TO BE FURTHER DEVELOPED) 


Looking at the key functions and the roles and responsibilities of our organizations – what do you see as the Roles and 
responsibilities of ADRIC, Regions and Corporate Members? 


Function ADRIC Role Regions Role Corporate Member Role 


Larger\self 
sufficient 


Smaller – greater 
reliance on ADRIC 


Professional 
Designations 


General Designation Owner    


Recruiting Members to 
Profession 


    


Reviewing\Approving 
Applications 


    


Discipline      


Maintenance (Ed 
credits)  


    


Financial benefits     


     


Education & 
Training for 
professionals 


General       


     


Delivering courses     


Sending information      


Financial Benefits      


      


     







Page | 13  
 


Function ADRIC Role Regions Role Corporate Member Role 


Larger\self 
sufficient 


Smaller – greater 
reliance on ADRIC 


     


     


Promoting use 
of and 
awareness of 
ADR  


General      


To Public      


To Possible Clients     


Lobbying Government     


     


     


International 
Work 


     


     


     


Promoting 
Membership 
Work  


Rosters      


     


     


Financial Benefit     


Sustaining our 
Organizations  


     


     


Financial      


Membership      







Page | 14  
 


Function ADRIC Role Regions Role Corporate Member Role 


Larger\self 
sufficient 


Smaller – greater 
reliance on ADRIC 


Accountability?      


???????      


     


     


??????      


     


     


 


 








 
From: Paul Conway  


Sent: August-25-16 3:15 PM 


To: Truus Souman 
Subject: Board attachment - DRAFT Board Course Monitoring Policy 


 


DRAFT Board Policy for the monitoring of ADRIA-delivered courses 


Acknowledging the value of having Board members that stay current and are fully 
aware of the current ADRIA course offerings, the Board has determined that there 
will be provisions to facilitate such monitoring when practical (Ref: minutes from 
April & June 2016 Board meetings).  Monitoring could be for all or any portion of 
the course.  The Board stipulates that the monitoring of courses will remain at the 
discretion of the Instructor, and must in no way disrupt or diminish the learning 
experience for paying students.  The Instructor will stipulate in advance the level 
of engagement and participation that will be allowed.  The Board further 
stipulates that the Board member must cover any ADRIA out of pocket costs 
associated with monitoring, and the Board understands that no more than one 
individual will be allowed to monitor any one course at a time.  Board members 
will not seek any evaluation, credit (other than for CPD) or qualification (for 
designations, certificate programs or the like) when permitted to monitor a course 
offered through ADRIA, but will instead pay full price should they seek such 
consideration.  Board member requests to monitor a course are to be made 
directly to the Director Professional Development, with an info copy to the 
Executive Director.  Board members who monitor a course are to provide feedback 
on their experience to the ADRIA instructor(s) and staff, as well as a verbal report 
to their Board colleagues at the next Board meeting.  


 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 550 members and still growing! 
 
CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  
 


Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 


Concordia University of Edmonton 
Corner of 112th Ave & 73rd Street 
 
Contact details:                fax. (780) 433-9024    
7128 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
1-800-232-7214  or  (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


 
ADRIA has engaged a dedicated team of part-time staff, so 
calls and e-mails are usually returned within 2 business days. 
Calls & visits are best accomodated weekdays from 10am-2pm. 



http://www.adralberta.com/






7.1 


From: Paul Conway  
Sent: August-31-16 2:46 PM 


To: Truus Souman 
Subject: FW: ......s haring of Associate member data 


 
 
From: ADRIC - Janet McKay [mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca]  
Sent: June-21-16 3:27 PM 


To: Paul Conway; Stan Galbraith 
Cc: Siemens, Scott; Andrew Butt 


Subject: RE: Retired member policy, and the sharing of Associate member data 


 
Yes, I had brought the topic up at a PRT meeting.  I indicated at the time that the only information we 
would share is what we share with any non-members on our mailing list: the Canadian Arbitration and 
Mediation JOURNAL, ADR Perspectives and Conference information.  I believe Presidents were to 
consider with their Boards and respond to me.  I haven't heard from any yet. 
 
We do, of course, have access to all member types for ADRIO, ADRSK and ADRIM and do send them the 
items noted. 
 
Agreed to your last paragraph. 
 
Thanks, 
 


  Janet 
416-487-4733 ext 105 


877-475-4353 ADRIC.ca 


 
 
From: Paul Conway [mailto:paul@adralberta.com]  


Sent: Tuesday, June 21, 2016 3:14 PM 


To: ADRIC - Janet McKay; Stan Galbraith 
Cc: Siemens, Scott; Andrew Butt 


Subject: RE: Retired member policy, and the sharing of Associate member data 


 
Thanks Janet.  There was indeed a discussion at PRT regarding the sharing of Associate information with 
ADRIC, which I believe you were following up on (collectively or individually?).  ADRIA's response at the 
time was centred the question of what ADRIC information and services will our Associate members gain 
access to, and would that erode the advantages of FULL membership in the eyes of our Associate cadre.  
This same concern was expressed by several other Affiliates as well during the call.  Have there been any 
Affiliate decisions to share additional membership data since that PRT meeting?  In Alberta, the majority 
of our 150+ Associates are learners, and we hope that offering learners an inexpensive entry-level 
Associate membership will entice them to progress to FULL ADRA/ADRIC membership - provided they 
see the benefits.  I believe I got an answer from you on some of these questions at one point, but it has 
not been discussed further at PRT or by our Board.  Do you know if this collective discussion will be 
continued, or is it already concluded from your perspective?  if the latter is the case, Stan & I will ensure 
that the issue is raised to the ADRIA Board for discussion and decision in the months ahead. 
 
..... 



mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca

http://www.adric.ca/

mailto:paul@adralberta.com





 
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 500 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  


  


 
From: ADRIC - Janet McKay [mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca]  


Sent: June-21-16 11:56 AM 


To: Paul Conway 
Subject: RE: Retired member policy 


 
Paul, currently, ADRIA shares information only about its full members with ADRIC.  If you would like to 
share other categories, you are welcome (and encouraged) to do so and we would add to our mailing 
list. 
 


  Janet 
416-487-4733 ext 105 


877-475-4353 ADRIC.ca 


 
 
 



http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca

http://www.adric.ca/






ADRIA LINK memberships 


Priced at $75 + GST/year 


ADRIA LINK Memberships 


LINK memberships are available to those who have fully or temporarily withdrawn from the 


workforce, either through retirement, personal, family or medical circumstances that preclude 


meaningful employment or contract income from any sector.  Full-time students in a College, 


University or training program qualify for a LINK membership, which includes both ADRIA & ADRIC 


communications and limited benefits. Click here for full details. 


 


ADRIA Link Memberships – detailed information: 


If you are a full-time student, retired or temporarily unable to work, you can still maintain your 
connection to Alberta's vibrant ADR community through an ADRIA LINK membership.  Contact 
ADRIA at 780-833-4881 ext 110 or membership@adralberta.com to discuss. 


Those eligible for a LINK membership include: 


 Those who are fully retired from the workforce and not earning employment or contract 
income from any sector 


 Those with ADRIC designations, who have applied for and been granted ADRIC's 
permission to pause their designation OR have advised ADRIC of their retirement and have 
been approved to retain their designation (annotated as retired) 


 Full-time students at a recognized College, University or training program, including those 
who have temporarily withdrawn from employment or contract work to pursue full-time 
educational or skills upgrading 


 Those on maternity or medical leave for more than 6 months, or those caring for children or 
relatives on a full-time basis for more than 6 months 


 Those temporarily unemployed on a non-voluntary basis, and who have had no employment 
or contract income for more than 6 months 


 Those on a temporary sabbatical of 12 months or more from employment or contract work, 
for personal reasons including travel 


LINK membership benefits are limited to: 


 Connectivity to the ADR community, ADRIA and ADR Canada (ADRIC) through newsletters, 
communiqués and limited publications 


 Member discounts to ADRIA and ADR Canada (ADRIC) conferences and events 


 National designation fees waived by ADR Canada (ADRIC), if applicable 
 Recognition, including long-term membership awards 


Those NOT eligible for a LINK membership, but who instead should consider a FULL or 
ASSOCIATE membership, include: 


 Those planning to take ADRIA courses (Note - ADRIA training is not considered full-time) 
 Those who have not applied for and been granted ADRIC's permission to pause or have 


their national designation annotated as retired 



http://www.adralberta.com/LINK-Membership

https://remote.adralberta.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=dDS3-YscBEmNmsy3H9I7ECd_BliJvNNIjtPy79bBkmgEAxhSXZ_KRFOeWuFswpDOZekGP7CGCDA.&URL=mailto%3amembership%40adralberta.com





 Those who have not or will not be working for a period of less than 6 months 
 Those who have changed roles, contract or employment sectors (as ADR skills and 


qualifications are relevant and valuable to all sectors of our economy) 
 Those experiencing a drop in demand for their professional services 
 Those taking part-time College or University courses 
 Those who still require professional liability insurance because they continue to practice 
 Those who are semi-retired and still earning a professional income 
 Those maintaining a professional practice abroad 


LINK members are NOT eligible for: 


 ADRIA course registrations 
 Professional liability insurance (Marsh Canada), aside from post-practice coverage if/where 


applicable 
 National designations, unless paused or annotated as retired by ADR Canada (ADRIC) 
 ADR Connect or ADRIA's Online Directory of ADR Professionals 
 Instructor or coaching opportunities, rosters, and Select & Appoint processes 
 Advertising in ADRIA publications 


 








7.3 
From: Paul Conway  
Sent: August-31-16 3:05 PM 


To: Truus Souman 


Subject: FW: Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges 


 
 
From: Stan Galbraith [mailto:Stan@galbraith.ab.ca]  


Sent: April-20-16 2:58 PM 
To: Marshall, Barrie; Paul Conway 


Cc: Wendy Hassen; Joanne Munro; Dolores Herman; Don Goodfellow; Michael Hokanson; Michelle 
Simpson; Chuck Smith; John Welbourn 


Subject: RE: Judges / C ARB Applications 


 
I agree with you Barrie. Seems to be the appropriate call by ADRIC. 
Stan 
 
From: Marshall, Barrie [mailto:Barrie.Marshall@gowlingwlg.com]  


Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 2:54 PM 
To: Paul Conway (paul@adralberta.com) 


Cc: Stan Galbraith; Wendy Hassen; Joanne Munro (joannepmunro@gmail.com); Dolores Herman; Don 
Goodfellow; Michael Hokanson; Michelle Simpson; Chuck Smith (chucksmithaams@hotmail.com); John 


Welbourn 


Subject: FW: Judges / C ARB Applications 


 
Very interesting.  Instead of elevating the status of Provincial Court Judges to the same status of 
Superior Court Justices, ADRIC has chosen to demote Superior Court Justices to the status of Provincial 
Court Judges – by eliminating the waiver altogether.  This is somewhat consistent with Michelle’s 
comments at our last board meeting.  I think that it’s the right call but would be interested in hearing 
John Welbourn’s views on the matter. 
 


J. Barrie Marshall QC  


Partner  


T +1 403 292 9884 
M +1 403-616-8257 
F +1 403 263 9193 


 
From: ADRIC - Janet McKay [mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca]  
Sent: April-20-16 2:02 PM 
To: Paul Conway 
Cc: John Welbourn; Stan Galbraith; Chuck Smith; Marshall, Barrie; ADRIC - Mena Sestito 
Subject: RE: Judges / C ARB Applications 
 
Paul, I want to share the results of ADRIC Board meeting on this issue: 
 
1.       Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges 
 
ADRIC  Principles, Criteria, Protocol, Competencies section IV C: WAIVER 


Where the Regional Committee determines that the applicant has satisfied or exceeded IV A and IV B above, 
through proven skills and competency, longevity in practice and recognition and recommendation by peers, the 



mailto:Stan@galbraith.ab.ca

mailto:Barrie.Marshall@gowlingwlg.com

mailto:paul@adralberta.com

mailto:joannepmunro@gmail.com

mailto:chucksmithaams@hotmail.com

mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca





requirements listed above may be waived. The decision of the Regional Committee must be supported by 
documented reasons for the recommendation including its determination that the applicant has the competencies 
of an arbitrator as per Appendix A.  
The Committee will waive requirements under IV A and IV B for a retired justice of a superior court or higher. 
 


While answering a question from an ADRIA member about why ADRIC’s Principles, Criteria, Protocol, 
Competencies for the designation Chartered Arbitrator required the Regional Committees to waive the 
education and practical experience requirements for a retired judge of a superior court or higher, but 
not for a retired judge of the provincial court, the Arbitration Designation Standards, Audits, Appeals & 
CEE (ADSAAC) Committee considered whether that document should provide that Regional Committees 
were required to waive those are requirements for any retired judges. It was the unanimous view of the 
committee members who participated in that discussion that it should not. 
 
While they have some conceptual similarities, arbitration and litigation are in practice two very different 
dispute resolution mechanisms. That's the whole point of arbitration. That's why we are the Alternative 
Dispute Resolution Institute of Canada. 
 
The value of the Chartered Arbitrator designation is that it gives the public the assurance that those 
bearing it are competent arbitrators. Education and practical experience in adjudicating litigation are 
virtually irrelevant to that competence. 
 
Retired judges may well become competent arbitrators. But they are not competent arbitrators solely 
by virtue of having been judges. Indeed, given that while they were judges they could not serve as 
arbitrators, newly retired judges cannot, almost by definition, have that competence. A blanket 
requirement to waive the education and practical experience requirements for all retired superior court 
judges devalues the Chartered Arbitrator designation. 
 
It may be that there are special cases. (e.g. Someone who was a very experienced arbitrator before he 
was appointed a judge, and has now retired and returned to practice.) The Regional Committees already 
have the ability to waive the education and practical experience requirements in those cases, if 
supported by documented reasons and the Committee’s determination the applicant does in fact have 
the necessary competence (section IV C) 
 


The ADSAAC committee recommends the board changes that document to delete the requirement in 
the document that the  Regional Committees waive the education and practical experience 
requirements for retired judges of a superior court or higher, retaining the Committees’ ability to waive 
those requirements on a case by case basis, where appropriate. 
 
Moved by Stephen Antle to delete the requirement in the document [sentence highlighted above] that 
the  Regional Committees waive the education and practical experience requirements for retired judges 
of a superior court or higher. Seconded by Jim McCartney. Motion carried. 
 
As you can see, it is left to the Regional Committee to determine whether requirements be waived if 
appropriate, but not based solely on the applicant's former role as a judge. 
 
Best regards, 
 


  Janet 







416-487-4733 ext 105 


877-475-4353 ADRIC.ca 


 
 
From: Paul Conway [mailto:paul@adralberta.com]  
Sent: Saturday, April 09, 2016 10:30 AM 


To: ADRIC - Janet McKay 
Cc: John Welbourn; Stan Galbraith; Chuck Smith; Barry Marshall 


Subject: Judges / C ARB Applications 
Importance: High 


 
Janet - In addition to Judge Nancy Flatters question and thoughts (below) which you already have, the 
item was placed on our Board agenda for discussion.  Unfortunately, time did not permit, so the Board 
has NOT discussed NOR made any recommendations. Nor have I heard from our Arbitration Designation 
Committee on this issue.   The Board may yet have opportunity to discuss when they meet by phone on 
the 12th, in which case I will send Chuck and you their thoughts. 
 
One Board member has, however,  forwarded her personal thoughts on the issue (below), which have 
been shared with Chuck and are forwarded to you below.  Again, these do NOT represent a Board 
consensus at this point. 
 
Have a great flight home, and a great meeting in Winnipeg! 
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 500 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  


  


 
From: Michelle Simpson [mailto:Michelle@simpsonlaw.ca]  


Sent: April-04-16 11:09 AM 


To: Paul Conway 
Cc: Chuck Smith 


Subject: CArb waiver for Retired Judges 


 
Hello Paul and Chuck, 
 
Further to this weekend’s ADRIA meeting, item 7.2, CArb waiver for retired judges, here are a few 
comments that I threw out at the meeting for consideration by ADRIC.  We should likely determine 
rather quickly (and before ADRIC responds to the CArb Application) how we should submit our 
combined thoughts to ADRIC so, to start the ball rolling, here are my thoughts: 
 
Retired Judges should be encouraged to apply for their CArb designation as we would love to bring them 
into the fold.  That having been said, there should be some criteria and here are a few to be considered: 



https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.adric.ca_&d=CwMFAg&c=d0WXBk_Z-g8VkGhzz_gPiQ&r=PS5V4lL3aYnDAnphFB_5CPm5aM5Chz_AgBLzGPUbWWw&m=7EB01tN6wRmySjEq1d2dblgDhCS_e2fizwktlduoe14&s=ENeSe9uDMsNfj2OHVAAFIGSdUwdObn2HoTPlRBME0Y8&e=

mailto:paul@adralberta.com

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.adralberta.com_&d=CwMFAg&c=d0WXBk_Z-g8VkGhzz_gPiQ&r=PS5V4lL3aYnDAnphFB_5CPm5aM5Chz_AgBLzGPUbWWw&m=7EB01tN6wRmySjEq1d2dblgDhCS_e2fizwktlduoe14&s=nDoSbAphQxS_1GLSgLBdGfrRqu_GSScmQnueaAsuQMA&e=

mailto:Michelle@simpsonlaw.ca





 
1.       There should be a maximum time period from retirement to the time of making his/her 


application for CArb.  I suggest 6 months; 
2.       CArb application should be accompanied by a letter of reference from the Chief Judge under 


whom the candidate for CArb last worked.  If the candidate is the Chief Judge then the letter of 
reference should come from the Associate Chief Judge; and 


3.       The CArb applicant must take the National Arbitration Introductory Course because being a 
Judge under the Court of Queen’s Bench Act is different in many respects from being a private 
arbitrator and those are all set out in the Course. 


 
I welcome your thoughts.  Again, I believe that time remains of the essence. 
 
Thank you, 
Michelle M. Simpson JD, CMed and CArb 
Lawyer, Chartered Mediator, and Chartered Arbitrator 
 
Simpson Law 
#1600 College Plaza Professional Building 
8215-112 Street 
Edmonton, Alberta T6G 2C8 
Phone: 780-966-9226 
Fax: 780-435-1424 
e-mail: michelle@simpsonlaw.ca 
Website:  www.simpsonlaw.ca 
 
 
 
From: Nancy Flatters [mailto:nancy.flatters@shaw.ca]  


Sent: March-31-16 3:24 PM 
To: Paul Conway 


Subject: RE: please delete C ARB Application e-mail just sent - replacement to be provided 


Importance: High 


 
Dear Paul – I mistakenly sent the e-mail below in error as I was proof-reading it. Please delete it and I 
will send the replacement a bit later. You get the drift but I prefer you have the final and not a draft 
which I had not finished proofing and “touching up”.  
 
Thanks – Nancy 
 
From: Nancy Flatters [mailto:nancy.flatters@shaw.ca]  
Sent: March 31, 2016 3:20 PM 
To: 'Paul Conway' <paul@adralberta.com> 
Subject: C ARB Application 
 
Dear Mr. Conway: 
 
I write to advise that at this time I will not be applying for a C Arb designation. As you know I am a 
retired Provincial Court Judge. I have reviewed the Judicial Waiver and noted it applies to a Section 96 



mailto:michelle@simpsonlaw.ca

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.simpsonlaw.ca_&d=CwMFAg&c=d0WXBk_Z-g8VkGhzz_gPiQ&r=PS5V4lL3aYnDAnphFB_5CPm5aM5Chz_AgBLzGPUbWWw&m=7EB01tN6wRmySjEq1d2dblgDhCS_e2fizwktlduoe14&s=Yjdsf7XUSLwODPftY0pj1Ki-U0Gan5Yx-TEOfbWTDQA&e=

mailto:nancy.flatters@shaw.ca

mailto:nancy.flatters@shaw.ca

mailto:paul@adralberta.com





appointment (judge of a court of superior jurisdiction and thereby excludes a judge who has been 
appointed to a Provincial Court. In my case, I was appointed on July 8, 1996 to the Provincial Court of 
Alberta, and sat in Calgary Family and Youth Court (although in Civil Division as well). In my capacity as a 
Judge, I was a member of an independent Judiciary where as with a section 96 judge, it was necessary 
that I had practiced for a minimum of 10 years. I submitted a written application for appointment and 
thereafter was interviewed by the Judicial Council, which assessed my suitability as an appointment (an 
added step to that required for a section 96 judicial appointment at the time).  
 
In my work as a Judge, I wrote judgments, including those constitutional. I delivered oral judgments. I 
presided over my courtroom. I was in control of the proceedings. I applied the Alberta Rules of Court. I 
applied the evidentiary rules. I assessed credibility. I qualified experts. I maintained decorum. In fact, I 
did all that a section 96 judicial appointment, as a Judge, would do. In light of this, I fail to understand 
the differentiation of judicial appointment and the lack of inclusion in this respect. As a matter of 
principle, I take exception to the narrowness of the waiver in the context of an arbitration designation. 
As a Judge, now retired, I submit I have met the requirements for a C Arb Waiver just like any other 
judge regardless of court appointment.  
 
In the event the Board of ADR Canada decides to enlarge the waiver to include Provincial Court Judicial 
appointments, then I will apply. Otherwise, I do not wish to apply for C Arb status which, by its nature, 
excludes a significant number of jurists without a principled nor justified basis. 
 
In the event you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. In the event the Board in its 
wisdom enlarges the waiver, then I would appreciate being advised of that change.  
 
Thank you for your assistance. 
 
Regards, 
 
Nancy Flatters 
Retired Judge,  
ADR teacher, trainer, practitioner 


 


 


The information in this email is intended only for the named recipient and may be privileged or 


confidential. If you are not the intended recipient please notify us immediately and do not copy, 


distribute or take action based on this email. If this email is marked 'personal' Gowling WLG is 


not liable in any way for its content. E-mails are susceptible to alteration. Gowling WLG shall 


not be liable for the message if altered, changed or falsified.  


 


Gowling WLG (Canada) LLP is a member of Gowling WLG, an international law firm which 


consists of independent and autonomous entities providing services around the world. Our 


structure is explained in more detail at www.gowlingwlg.com/legal.  


 


References to 'Gowling WLG' mean one or more members of Gowling WLG International 


Limited and/or any of their affiliated businesses as the context requires. Gowling WLG (Canada) 


LLP has offices in Montréal, Ottawa, Toronto, Hamilton, Waterloo Region, Calgary and 


Vancouver.  



http://www.gowlingwlg.com/legal





 
From: Paul Conway  
Sent: March-22-16 8:17 AM 


To: 'ADRIC - Mena Sestito'; Truus Souman; 'Nancy Flatters' 


Cc: Tammy Borowiecki; Jocelyn Christian; Jennifer Warren; Stan Galbraith; ADRIC - Janet McKay; 
'Siemens, Scott' 


Subject: RE: Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges 


 
Thanks you Mena.  We will await further feedback. 
 
Nancy - FYI.  I believe you should still submit your designation application(s) this month while we seek 
clarification on the issue.  Your thoughts on the views expressed below are welcome. 
 
Truus - Please add to our own Board agenda as an info item for April, and distribute this email chain to 
the to the ADC for info and/or comment.  
Please track the issue until we have a definitive answer from ADRIC 
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 500 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


   CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn  &&  LLooggoo!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  


  


 
From: ADRIC - Mena Sestito [mailto:mena@adric.ca]  


Sent: March-22-16 7:56 AM 


To: Paul Conway 
Subject: FW: Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges 


Importance: High 


 
Hi Paul… I’m afraid we don’t have a definitive answer yet to your question about a waiver (education 
and experience) for retired judges at the provincial level.  The matter is on the Agenda for the next 
board of directors meeting.  I will let you know the outcome after this meeting. 
 
In the meantime, here are the responses/comments (below) from the various members of the National 
Audit and Appeal Committee, for your information. 
 
Thank you for your patience.  
 
Mena 
 
From: bceffler@mymts.net [mailto:bceffler@mymts.net]  


Sent: Monday, March 21, 2016 10:59 PM 
To: Glen Bell 


Cc: Guy G. Couturier; ADRIC - Mena Sestito; Stephen' 'Antle; Michael Erdle; rm@robertmasson.ca; 



http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:mena@adric.ca

mailto:bceffler@mymts.net

mailto:bceffler@mymts.net

mailto:rm@robertmasson.ca





JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com; ADRIC - Janet McKay; barry.effler@outlook.com 


Subject: Re: Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges 


 
Hello all, 
 
My apologies for not responding earlier.  I lost access to this email account a couple of months ago with 
a change in providers.  Finally got it back today. 
 
The comments of Glen Bell are accurate.  The related reason was that provincial court jurisdictions vary 
across the provinces.  In Manitoba as an example, the provincial judges are solely criminal court 
jurisdiction. 
 
Each of the provincial reviewing accreditation committees may use the other waiver provisions to 
respond to individual applications where the relevant experience relates to arbitration. 
 
my understanding is that this committee may recommend amendments to standards.  In the end, the 
decision belongs to the Board of Directors. 
 
If possible, please send future messages to me at  
 
barry.effler@outlook.com 
 
Barry Effler 
 
 


 
From: "Glen Bell" <glen.w.bell@shaw.ca> 
To: "Guy G. Couturier" <ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com>, "ADRIC - Mena Sestito" 
<mena@adric.ca>, "Stephen' 'Antle" <SAntle@blg.com> 
Cc: bceffler@mts.net, "Michael Erdle" <michael.erdle@practicalresolutions.ca>, 
rm@robertmasson.ca, JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com, "ADRIC - Janet McKay" 
<janetmckay@adric.ca> 
Sent: Monday, March 14, 2016 11:18:22 AM 
Subject: RE: Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges  
 
The reason the automatic exemption does not apply to provincial court judges is that the standards for 
appointment to a provincial court bench are not consistent across the ten provinces.  Some members of 
the committee with experience in provincial court were concerned that some unqualified ex-judges 
could be granted the designation.  Provincial court judges may nevertheless apply for C.Arb. designation 
under the general waiver for equivalent experience.   
  
  


Glen W. Bell, C.Arb.  


Arbitrator – Mediator 
  
1400 – 1125 Howe Street 
Vancouver, BC  V6Z 2K8 
Tel. 604 831-7400 



mailto:JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com

mailto:barry.effler@outlook.com

mailto:barry.effler@outlook.com

mailto:glen.w.bell@shaw.ca

mailto:ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com

mailto:mena@adric.ca

mailto:SAntle@blg.com

mailto:bceffler@mts.net

mailto:michael.erdle@practicalresolutions.ca

mailto:rm@robertmasson.ca

mailto:JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com

mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca





Fax. 604 688-0933 


  
  
From: Guy G. Couturier [mailto:ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com]  
Sent: March 4, 2016 8:29 AM 
To: 'ADRIC - Mena Sestito' <mena@adric.ca>; 'Antle, Stephen' <SAntle@blg.com> 
Cc: glen.w.bell@shaw.ca; bceffler@mts.net; 'Michael Erdle' <michael.erdle@practicalresolutions.ca>; 
rm@robertmasson.ca; JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com; 'ADRIC - Janet McKay' <janetmckay@adric.ca> 
Subject: RE: Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges  
  
Good afternoon everyone, 
  
I apologize for my tardiness. As I was not a party to the initial discussions, I prefer not to comment on 
the existing standards, or how and why they came to be. Nevertheless, I do agree with Stephen’s 
perspective on the issue. 
  
Best Regards 
  
Guy 
  
From: ADRIC - Mena Sestito [mailto:mena@adric.ca]  


Sent: March-03-16 2:12 PM 
To: Antle, Stephen 


Cc: glen.w.bell@shaw.ca; ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com; bceffler@mts.net; Michael Erdle; 
rm@robertmasson.ca; JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com; ADRIC - Janet McKay 


Subject: RE: Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges  
  
Thank you, Stephen.  I agree.  Let's wait for a decision until we receive comments from the other 
committee members. 
Cheers, 
Mena 
  
From: Antle, Stephen [mailto:SAntle@blg.com]  
Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 11:45 AM 


To: ADRIC - Mena Sestito 


Cc: glen.w.bell@shaw.ca; ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com; bceffler@mts.net; Michael Erdle; 
rm@robertmasson.ca; JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com; ADRIC - Janet McKay 


Subject: RE: Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges  
  
Mina: 
  
Short answer: I don’t know. 
  
I recall some debate some time ago (presumably in 2012 when the C.Arb. principles, criteria, protocol 
and competencies were approved by ADRIC’s board of directors) about whether regional committees 
should have the option of waiving the education and practical experience criteria for retired judges at 
all, but not about provincial vs. superior court judges. 
  



mailto:ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com

mailto:mena@adric.ca

mailto:SAntle@blg.com

mailto:glen.w.bell@shaw.ca

mailto:bceffler@mts.net

mailto:michael.erdle@practicalresolutions.ca

mailto:rm@robertmasson.ca

mailto:JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com

mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca

mailto:mena@adric.ca

mailto:glen.w.bell@shaw.ca

mailto:ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com

mailto:bceffler@mts.net

mailto:rm@robertmasson.ca

mailto:JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com

mailto:SAntle@blg.com

mailto:glen.w.bell@shaw.ca

mailto:ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com

mailto:bceffler@mts.net

mailto:rm@robertmasson.ca

mailto:JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com





My personal view, which I expressed at the time, is that arbitration and litigation are so different that 
experience as a judge is irrelevant to competence as an arbitrator, and so the regional committees 
should not have this option, for any retired judges. I think that’s almost too obvious for words. But the 
board obviously disagreed. 
  
Given the regional committees do have this option, I can’t think of a principled reason it shouldn’t apply 
to retired provincial court judges as well as superior court judges. 
  
I’m new to this chair gig, so I’m not sure how to proceed. Does this committee have any authority to 
change the principles etc.? Or is that for the board, on our recommendation? 
  
I suggest the other committee members share their views by email. Let’s see where it makes sense to go 
from there. 
  
Stephen 
  
From: ADRIC - Mena Sestito [mailto:mena@adric.ca]  


Sent: March-03-16 7:25 AM 


To: Antle, Stephen; glen.w.bell@shaw.ca; ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com; bceffler@mts.net; Michael Erdle; 
rm@robertmasson.ca; JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com 


Cc: ADRIC - Janet McKay 
Subject: Chartered Arbitrator Waiver for Retired Judges  


Importance: High 
  
TO:   
Arbitration Designations Standards, Audits, Appeals & CEE  
Chair: Stephen Antle ; Glen Bell, BC ; Guy Couturier, Atlantic ; Barry Effler, MB ; Michael Erdle, ON; Robert Masson, 
QC; Jim Musgrave, Atlantic 
  
Dear Members of the Arbitration Designation Standards Committee: 
  
There has been an inquiry about the C.Arb criteria from an Alberta Member who is a retired provincial court judge. 
She is questioning  the educational and practical experience waiver for retired judges (C.Arb Criteria..., Section C. 
Waiver - last paragraph).  According to our criteria, the accreditation committee will waive the educational and 
practical experience requirements for a retired justice of a superior court or higher.  She is asking why the waiver 
is not inclusive of provincial court judges.  Paul Conway, ADR Alberta's E.D. is also seeking clarification.  
  
Thank you very much for taking the time to respond to this inquiry. 
  
  


Mena Sestito 
Manager, Membership, Accreditations & Arbitration Admin / 
Directrice, Adhésions, accréditations et administration des arbitrages 


 
405 - 234 Eglinton Avenue East 



mailto:mena@adric.ca

mailto:glen.w.bell@shaw.ca

mailto:ggcouturier@nb.aibn.com

mailto:bceffler@mts.net

mailto:rm@robertmasson.ca

mailto:JMusgrave@coxandpalmer.com





Toronto, ON, Canada M4P 1K5 
416-487-4733 • 1-877-475-4353 #101 
fax/télécopieur: 416-487-4429 
mena@adric.ca            ADRIC.ca  


       @ADRCanada  #ADRIC 
unsubscribe/désabonner 
  
 
From: Paul Conway  


Sent: March-02-16 11:53 AM 
To: 'ADRIC - Mena Sestito'; 'ADRIC - Janet McKay'; 'Nancy Flatters'; Tammy Borowiecki 


Cc: Truus Souman 
Subject: RE: Designation application forms + waiver 


 
Let me check Nancy - I don't think ADRIC intended to make such a distinction. 
 
Mena/Janet/Tammy - can you clarify this issue for us? 
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 500 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


   CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn  &&  LLooggoo!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  


  


 
From: Nancy Flatters [mailto:nancy.flatters@shaw.ca]  
Sent: March-02-16 11:19 AM 


To: Truus Souman; Paul Conway 
Subject: RE: Designation application forms + waiver 


Importance: High 


 
Dear Paul and Truus: 
 
I have reviewed the waiver form for the judiciary and it speaks to only superior court judges and not 
provincial court judges. I am surprised it is not inclusive of the Provincial Court. On this basis as a retired 
Judge, I am ineligible to apply for the waiver.  
 
Can you help me understand this distinction please. 
 
Thanks. 
 
Nancy Flatters 
Retired Judge 
 
From: Truus Souman [mailto:membership@adralberta.com]  
Sent: February 25, 2016 1:29 PM 



mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca

http://www.adric.ca/

mailto:janetmckay@adrcanada.ca?subject=Unsubscribe/%20Désabonner

http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:nancy.flatters@shaw.ca

mailto:membership@adralberta.com

http://www.facebook.com/home.php#!/group.php?gid=149752171707351

http://www.linkedin.com/groups?gid=3303518&trk=hb_side_g





To: nancy.flatters@shaw.ca 
Subject: Designation application forms + waiver 
 
Good afternoon Nancy, 
 
Nice talking to you! 
 
Please see attached the forms requested. 
 
With kind regards, 
 
Truus Souman | Executive & Membership Coordinator (part-time) 


 


 
 
Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 
7128 Ada Boulevard 
Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 or 1-800-232-7214 ext. 110 
fax. (780) 433-9024 
www.adralberta.com 
 
Vision 
No Albertan Fears Conflict 


 
Mission 
To provide leadership and services in Appropriate Dispute Resolution (ADR) to our members and to the public by: 


         Fostering understanding of, and excellence in, negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and restorative practices 


         Supporting the viable practice of ADR in Alberta 


         Providing excellence in ADR professional development 


         Promoting the ethical use of ADR processes 


         Maintaining accreditation standards, accountability, and designations for the ADR profession 


         Encouraging those practicing ADR to join our organization 


         Connecting Albertans with ADR resources and expertise 


 


 
 



mailto:nancy.flatters@shaw.ca

http://www.adralberta.com/






Calgary Edmonton Other


CORE PROGRAMS 24 83 0


SPECIALTY 0 14 0


ARBITRATION 24 9 0


2016 YTD TOTALS 48 106 0


2015 TOTALS 42 134 11


2014 TOTALS 70 201 0


2013 TOTALS 107 193 0


Calgary Edmonton Other


CORE PROGRAMS 144 438 0


SPECIALTY 0 49 0


ARBITRATION 120 45 0


2016 YTD TOTALS 264 532 0


2015 TOTALS 215 656 66


2014 TOTALS 314 813 0


2013 TOTALS 516 896 0


2016 TOTAL STUDENTS


2016 STUDENT DAYS


0


50


100


150


200


250


24
0


24
48 42


70
107


83


14 9


106
134


201 193


2016 COURSE REGISTRATIONS


Calgary Edmonton


0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900


144
0


120
264 215


314


516
438


49 45


532
656


813
896


2016 STUDENT DAYS


Calgary Edmonton







Quarter 1 $65,570


Quarter 2 $0


Quarter 3 $0


Quarter 4 $0


2016 YTD Totals $65,570


2015 Totals $12,075


2014 Totals $25,750


2013 Totals $97,110


November $0


May $0


June $0


July $0


February $4,250


March $53,820


April


December $0


Total $65,570


August $0


September $0


October $0


$0


PRIVATE CONTRACTS PRIVATE CONTRACTS


January $7,500


$65,570


$0 $0 $0


$65,570


$12,075


$25,750


$97,110


$0


$20,000


$40,000


$60,000


$80,000


$100,000


$120,000


Private Contract Revenue








Executive Director’s Report – September 2016 
 


I'm hoping that this week marks the end of a great summer for Board and staff alike.  It is also the real 


start of the full Board's engagement in policy revisions, strategic and budgetary planning.  I've 


appreciated the opportunity over the summer to meet and work with several of the Board members, and 


I encourage every Board member to engage on issues of personal interest, and projects that will benefit 


the entire membership. 


 
Note - Potential elements of this report that have been adequately addressed elsewhere in the Board’s agenda are, for the most 


part, not included herein.  Dashboard display elements continue be incorporated slowly into Board presentation materials, and 


will progressively linked to ADRIA’s strategic plan and success indications.  Dashboard metrics are intended to provide Board 


members with clear, succinct and meaningful data, charts and indicators upon which they may base their decisions, establish 


new initiatives, and provide strategic direction.  It is important that all Board members provide feedback and suggestions 


regarding the topics, materials and metrics presented – what’s useful, what’s not, and what might be needed in the future. 


 


Designations  
Tammy Borowiecki, Director Professional Development 


Truus Souman, Executive & Membership Coordinator 


Jon Souman, Chair MDC 


John Welbourn, Chair ADC 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                           


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 The September application has begun, and ADRIA has issued numerous 


reminders to the membership. 


 Already, 6 applications have been received, representing a good start. 


 Alberta continues to lead the country in terms of growth in designations.  


The PRT recently asked for a report from Alberta how we've achieved this 


success, and this has been attached to the PRT feedback (agenda item 6.6) 


 ADRIA staff continue to note and observe upon differences in how each 


province administers and qualifies those with designations.  Ontario, it 


appears, accepts co-mediations for Q.Med applications - a practice that 


appears to contravene the ADRIC Q.Med criteria. 


 In part to address the observation above, an ADRIC workshop is being 


scheduled for the Toronto Conference, with the goal of having all 


designation assessment committees across the country working at the 


same level.  Alberta has been directly asked to bring forward its best 


practices.  This workshop will also be made available by webinar.  


 Designation fees (payable to ADRIC in January) and membership fees 


(payable to ADRIA on the anniversary date) continue to cause some 


confusion to our membership.   


 At ADRIA's request, ADRIC has adopted a 25% Q2 discount for designations 


approved in the April thru June timeframe. 







  Membership  


Paul Conway, Executive Director 


Truus Souman, Executive & Membership Coordinator 


 


The ADRIA membership stood at 563 Members (Combining Full, Associate & Link) .  


As a membership organization first and foremost, our focus remains on attracting 


and retaining new FULL members and, given the number of non-member ADR 


Practitioners in the Province, we continue to set our sights on having 400 Full 


members as soon as possible!  Outreach efforts to the AFMS, HRIA and the legal 


community will continue, as these are considered to be rich sources of new 


members.  


 


Reporting date Full Members, 
which includes 
ADRIC 
memberships 


Associate Members 
(non-ADRIC) 
 + Student Affiliates 
+ LINK members 
(see note) 


Total 
Members, 
including non-
ADRIC 
learners 


BoD Meeting Sep 2016* 388 173 + 2 563 


AGM June 2016** 381 165 546 
     End-2015 380 163+2 545 


AGM June 2015 369 150+2     521 
     End-2014 361 144+4     509 


AGM May 2014 338 145 483 
     End-2013 328 151 479 


     End-2012 329 102 431 


ADRIA Sep 2012 
(Stand-up of ADRIA) 


311 92 403 


AAMS (May 2012) 354 113 467 


AAMS (May 2011) 333 104 437 


    


ADRIA High (BoD Mtg)  
Sep 2016* 


388 173+2    563 


Previous recorded low 
(ADRIA start Sep 2012) 


311 92 403 


* end-Aug stats 
** end-May stats 


   


NOTE:  The category of Student Affiliate Member (introduced in 2015) is similar to 
an Associate Member/Student  – typically corporate or out-of-province members. 


 







 Online ADR Directory 


 


 


 


 


 


 


   
Professional Development & Education 
Tammy Borowiecki, Director Professional Development 


Jocelyn Christian, Education Assistant 


 


May – August 2016 Courses: 


Edmonton 


 Communications in ADR (July) – 10 students 


 National Introductory Mediation (July) – 10 students 


 Separation and Divorce Mediation Module 3 (June) – 7 students 


 Specialty Courses: 


o Restorative Practices (June) – 6 students 


Calgary 


 Communications in ADR (July) – 5 students 


 National Introductory Mediation (August) – 6 students 


 National Introductory Arbitration (June) – 12 students  


 


Private Training  - There was no Private Training from May to August 2016 


 


 We've had a big jump in numbers, and now feature 77 members on the directory   


 Effective January 2017, a national designation will be required in order to be listed. 


 We will likely lose some listings as a consequence. 


 Anyone approved before end-December 2016, but not holding a designation, will be 


allowed to maintain their listing until their membership renewal date (but not beyond). 


 Members have been repeatedly notified by newsletter and email of this policy change 


 ADRIC is contemplating a similar policy for its ADR Connect feature 


 ADRIA revenue projection for 2016 > $5000 


 Revenue projection for 2017 > $7000 


 Approval process recently streamlined, and vested in Truus & Tammy 


 







Upcoming courses and student registrations as of August 31, 2016 


Edmonton 


 Communications in ADR (September) – 4 students 


 Conflict Coaching (September) – 5 students 


 National Introductory Arbitration (October) – 2 students 


 Mediation Case Development (October) – 4 students 


 Conflict Management for HR Professionals (November) – 3 students 


 National Introductory Mediation (November) – 2 students 


 Multi-party Mediation (December) - just posted, in response to 11 expressions of interest 


 Communications in ADR (January) – 0 students 


 Separation and Divorce Mediation: Module 1 (January) – 0 students 


 National Introductory Mediation (February) – 0 students 


 Separation and Divorce mediation: Module 2 (March) – 0 students 


 National Introductory Arbitration (April) – 0 students 


 Conflict Management for HR Professionals (April) – 0 students 


 Restorative practices (June) – 0 students 


Calgary 


 Conflict management for HR Professionals (September) – 2 students [now cancelled] 


 Communications in ADR (October) – 1 student 


 Conflict Coaching (October) – 0 students 


 National Introductory Arbitration (October) – 5 students 


 National Introductory Mediation (November) – 0 students 


 Communications in ADR (January) – 0 students 


 Conflict Management for HR Professionals (February) – 0 students 


 National Introductory Mediation (March) – 0 students 


 National Introductory Arbitration (April) – 0 students 


 


Private Contracts 


Edmonton 


 PHBI (November) – unknown # 


 ECVO (Edmonton Chamber of Voluntary Organizations) 


o 1 half-day conflict management training 


o 2 days Custom Consensus Decision Making training (pending) 


Calgary 


 PHBI (November) – unknown # 


 


General Information 


 Our core classes (Communications, Mediation, Arbitration, Separation and Divorce Mediation 


(Modules 1&2), and Conflict Management for the HR Professionals) are scheduled until the end of 


summer 2017 and courses are open for registration on our website up to June 2017.   Summer 2017 







courses (Communications in ADR and the National Introductory Mediation will be open for 


registration this fall. 


 Calgary summer courses (Communications in ADR and National Introductory Mediation) ran with a 


minimum number of students (5 and 6, respectively). This was the first year we scheduled summer 


classes in Calgary. 


 Our Expression of Interest forms have met with some success.   We are currently trying to book a 


Multi-Party Mediation course for this fall using the expression of interest forms and a Doodle Poll in 


order to schedule the most convenient date for the students [update: now scheduled for December]. 


 We still haven’t received any traction on the online practice groups. We continue to promote them 


on our website and to students that take our training.   At the end of August we informed students, 


via the forum, that participating in online practice sessions (as mediator) will help students earn 


educational credit hours (up to a maximum of 10 educational credit hours). 


 The How to Start an ADR Business and the Consensus Decision Making courses are not ready for 


student enrollment, however those are high on our priorities to launch.  


 CAB (Conciliation and Arbitration Board) has inquired about presenting some of our existing course 


content as webinars for their members. This option is being explored. 


 Rebranding to the new logo is almost complete.  Separation and Divorce Mediation: Module 2 is not 


yet updated, but will be ready for the spring delivery of the course. 


 This past spring the Conflict Management for HR Professionals course was updated. Paul is working 


on minor tweaks that will be completed in the coming week to reflect student and instructor 


feedback but for the most part the course is set. This course is another great opportunity to reach 


past the traditional ADR professional as a target audience.  


 Evaluation consistency is a challenge for our courses due to the subjective nature of role-play 


evaluations. To further enhance consistency we have tested a new way of grading the Mediation 


evaluations in the summer Mediation courses in Edmonton and Calgary. The students still complete 


their Skills Evaluation Role play (SER) in class on day 6, however instead of having the 


coach/evaluator that is in the room grade the SER, the coach completes an new observation sheet 


and that sheet along with the audio recording of the SER is submitted to a our new evaluation team 


for grading. The goal is to improve consistency in our grading of the SERs. 


 ADRIC has requested full application forms be filled out for all instructors and coaches for the 


National Mediation and Arbitration courses. The paperwork required is cumbersome and time 


consuming but we hope to have all of that complete by the fall semester. Tammy has requested 


applications from 32 instructors and coaches and we have received 10 applications at this point. 


 We have been working with ADRIC to smooth out the administrative challenges required of the 


National courses with some success. We are still working on a more efficient process for printing 


materials and more collaboration on survey information.  


 Tammy has been appointed to two ADRIC National course committees. One for course approvals and 


another for trainer approvals.   


 In collaboration with GOA Resolution Services we have launched a practicum program for students 


that complete our Certificate in Separation and Divorce Mediation. This will support the development 


of newly trained mediators and hopefully increase interest in our Separation and Divorce mediation 


courses.   







 Truus and Tammy have reviewed and updated the designation website content and forms to ensure 


accuracy and so that the information is easier to understand.  All forms have also been updated to 


allow to be completed electronically.  


 We have finally completed the Training and Professional Development Contractor Manual. This has 


been an extensive project as we wanted to provide a thorough outline of all expectations and 


responsibilities. The manual and all related appendices will be posted on our website in a secure 


section only accessible to our Training and Professional Development Contractors.  The website will 


also have a private forum in which contractors can share information and ask questions. We will also 


be requesting that all contractors read the manual and sign an updated contract for services in 


September.  


 


Professional Development & Education notes from the ED: 
 
There have been improvements in the ADRIC/ADRIA interface on several levels.  As mentioned above, 


course administration processes are more streamlined, and ADRIC is being cooperative in this regard.  


There is still an impasse regarding some printing issues (operational).   Deborah Howes, Tammy, Joanne 


and Michelle now have roles on various influential ADRIC Education Committees, so I am satisfied that 


the ADRIA Board & Staff perspectives on this important subject will be heard at the national level. 


 


While we had banner Winter, Spring & Summer sessions, and our financial situation is positive, we have 


been surprised by the low Fall registrations.  Some are understandable (for example, the HR courses are 


still not being actively marketed thru the HRIA), but others are not so easily understood (eg core 


mediation and arbitration programs).  We have expanded our marketing efforts, adjusted our 


expectations, and will continue to explore new ways to fill these sessions.   


 


We have taken steps to enhance our capacity to market private ADR training.  The 2016 AHS contract was 


a huge boost to our revenues, but we need to find more such opportunities in the future. 


 


 


Strategic Planning    
 


 


 


 


 


 The Board's work in this area has been key to ADRIA's recent  successes 


 A review of ADRIA's 2016 accomplishments will be presented at the Board's November meeting, 


as a preamble to a review of the strategic plan and priorities for 2017 


 No Albertan Fears Conflict, and no Board member fears strategic planning!  







Communications & Marketing   
 


With Jennifer officially departed, and Kristy Rhyason quickly coming up to speed, we are starting to regain 


any marketing momentum lost over the summer and, in fact, begin taking ADRIA to a new level in terms 


of website presentation, social media, targeted marketing and the development of new marketing 


materials.  The Board will get a chance to meet Kristy in November, and share their ideas and energy. 


 


ADRIA rebranding to the new logo is virtually complete, and a restructuring of the website has 


commenced.  Board feedback on what works and what doesn't is greatly appreciated.   


 


ADRIC continues to advance its new member database initiative, in concert with (or directly supporting) 


Ontario, Quebec, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and (most recently) BC.   This leaves only Alberta and Atlantic 


outside of the national database.  The new ADRIC  database and website will be announced and 


introduced at the Toronto conference in October.  ADRIA continues to monitor the roll-out, and will 


consider migration in due course once capabilities and costs are fully understood.   Best estimates place 


the entry cost at $8-12K, based on our size.  Acting upon our request, ADRIC has begun sharing 


implementation details with ADRIA again, so that we may more fully understand our future options.   


 


 


   Outreach 
 


The bulk of our summer outreach activities have been focussed on the Mediation Advocacy White Paper. 


 


Other outreach contacts have included: 


 Alberta Law Reform Institute (ALRI) 


 Aga Khan Conciliation & Arbitration Board (CAB) 


 Foundation of Administrative Justice (FOAJ) 


 Alberta Family Mediation Society (AFMS) 


 Alberta School  Councils` Association (ASCA) 


 Mediation & Restorative Justice Centre (MRJC) 


 Peer Mediation & Skills Training (PMAST) 


 Dispute Resolution Network (DRN) 


 International Conflict Resolution  Day Committee (CRDay) 


 ADRIC Committees (Insurance, PRT, etc) 







 


 


 
 


The Treasurer will provide a verbal report, accompanied by the end-August financial reports from Karen.  


I have added some financial summaries in the graphs below.  A balanced and conservative budget 


continues to be the touchstone for all important spending decisions.  We got a nice bounce in the first 


half of the year, but registrations are unexpectedly down for the Fall.   We are not rushing into any new 


hiring or expenditure decisions until we better understand the dynamics currently at play.  Quarterly 


reviews will obviously continue, with the important Q3 review coming up shortly. 


 


Some positive developments that will influence our finances:  We completed our contractual obligations 


to AAMS ($1000/yr), our phone system has been paid off ($2000/yr), memberships are up (by approx 


$4000/yr), directory listings are up (adding an extra $2000/yr), CAMVAP has proposed a 5% increase over 


the next 2 years (a $1300 increase in 2017), and our current insurance negotiations should save us appox 


$3-4000/yr.  It all adds up!  In fact it adds up to over $10,000 in added revenue or reduced costs for 2017. 


 


 


 


Cash+Reserves: 


 
 


 


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


100000


120000


140000


160000


180000


Ja
n


-1
5


Fe
b


-1
5


M
ar


-1
5


A
p


r-
1


5


M
ay


-1
5


Ju
n


-1
5


Ju
l-


1
5


A
u


g-
1


5


Se
p


-1
5


O
ct


-1
5


N
o


v-
1


5


D
e


c-
1


5


Ja
n


-1
6


Fe
b


-1
6


M
ar


-1
6


A
p


r-
1


6


M
ay


-1
6


Ju
n


-1
6


Ju
l-


1
6


A
u


g-
1


6


Financial 
footnotes 







Cash+Reserves vs Deferred Revenue: 


 
 


Total Member Equity (2012-2016): 


 


 


Human Resources    


ADRIA is once again at full strength with 7 Full & Part time staff (2 employees, and 5 Contractors).  When 


finances seem secure, our future hiring options include, a part-time Business Development Officer 


(stipend + commission), a volunteer coordinator (1 day/week?), and consideration of a Calgary presence.   


-20000


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


100000


120000


140000


-40000


-20000


0


20000


40000


60000


80000


100000


120000


140000


Se
p


-1
2


N
o


v-
1


2


Ja
n


-1
3


M
ar


-1
3


M
ay


-1
3


Ju
l-


1
3


Se
p


-1
3


N
o


v-
1


3


Ja
n


-1
4


M
ar


-1
4


M
ay


-1
4


Ju
l-


1
4


Se
p


-1
4


N
o


v-
1


4


Ja
n


-1
5


M
ar


-1
5


M
ay


-1
5


Ju
l-


1
5


Se
p


-1
5


N
o


v-
1


5


Ja
n


-1
6


M
ar


-1
6


M
ay


-1
6


Ju
l-


1
6


2014 


2015 


2016 


2013 







 
Networking 
We have not managed to secure a sponsor for our Fall networking events, so suggestions from the Board 


are welcome.  CAPLINK has asked to be contacted again for sponsorship in the Spring of 2017.  In the 


meantime, ADRIA will move to lower cost venues to eliminate the entry fee and encourage greater 


participation from the ADR community (notably non-ADRIA members).  


 


The Edmonton networking event is again scheduled for Boston Pizza on Jasper Avenue on Tuesday 


October 18th, 5:30 to 8pm.  A similar Calgary venue is being sought and, to accommodate the search, the 


event might slide into early November.  Board participation is very important, so please note the dates.    


 


   


Conferences & Learning Events 
2016 Learning events: 


 Edmonton learning event - the DRN conference was well received by those attending 


 Calgary learning event  (Arbitration focus?  November?  unlikely at this point) 


 Potential for live streaming or recording the Calgary ADR luncheon presentations 


 Potential launch of Edmonton ADR luncheons 


 Networking events could commence with or include a speaker 


 White Paper Mediation Advocacy feedback sessions (Sept 13th and 22nd) 


 Potential collaboration with the CAB for an October speaker/event (CR Day) 


 ADRIC NAtional conference in Toronto, October 2016 
 


2017 Learning Events 


 ADR luncheons, networking and member communications to continue as described above 


 ADRIA is committed to hosting or collaborating on a 2017 conference.  Discussions continue with 


the broader ADR non-profit community, with the DRN emerging as a key partner.   


 ADRIC National Conference in October - likely in Newfoundland & Labrador  
 


2018 Learning Events 


 ADRIC National Conference in Western Canada? 


 


Yours in ADR,     Paul Conway | Executive Director   ADR Institute of Alberta (ADRIA) 


 








7.4 
 
From: ADRIC - Janet McKay [mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca]  
Sent: August-09-16 2:49 PM 


To: Paul Conway 


Cc: ADRIC - Morgan Horst; Truus Souman; Tammy Borowiecki; Jocelyn Christian; Karen Sommerfeld; 
kkelly@kpkellylaw.com; Wendy Hassen; Stan Galbraith 


Subject: RE: Certificates/Designations (ADRIC pro-rating policy) 


 
Correct!  Thanks, Paul. 
  


  Janet 
416-487-4733 ext 105 
877-475-4353 ADRIC.ca 
  
  
From: Paul Conway [mailto:paul@adralberta.com]  


Sent: Tuesday, August 09, 2016 4:47 PM 
To: ADRIC - Janet McKay 


Cc: ADRIC - Morgan Horst; Truus Souman; Tammy Borowiecki; Jocelyn Christian; Karen Sommerfeld; 
kkelly@kpkellylaw.com; Wendy Hassen; Stan Galbraith 


Subject: RE: Certificates/Designations (ADRIC pro-rating policy) 
  
So my understanding now is that commencing 2017, applicants whose designations are approved by 
ADRIC in the Q2 window of 1 April through end-June will have their fees prorated at 75% (ie their annual 
designation fees will be discounted by 25%).  Q3 and Q4 discounts or 50% and 75% will remain as-is.   
  


That's very equitable formula, and terrific news - many thanks. 
  
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 
   Over 550 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!! 
                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt.. 
            Visit: www.adralberta.com 
   
  
From: ADRIC - Janet McKay [mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca]  
Sent: August-09-16 2:13 PM 


To: Paul Conway 
Cc: ADRIC - Morgan Horst 


Subject: RE: Certificates/Designations (ADRIC pro-rating policy) 
  
I have learned that the issue that led to no Q2 prorating was with MemberNation:  If members were late 
renewing they could easily get the prorated "discount".   
  



mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca

mailto:kkelly@kpkellylaw.com

http://www.adric.ca/

mailto:paul@adralberta.com

mailto:kkelly@kpkellylaw.com

http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca





That will not be an issue with iMIS, so newly designated members can receive a prorated amount in Q2 
in 2017 and going forward. 
  


  Janet 
416-487-4733 ext 105 
877-475-4353 ADRIC.ca 
  
  
From: Paul Conway [mailto:paul@adralberta.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 09, 2016 1:50 PM 


To: ADRIC - Janet McKay 
Cc: Truus Souman; ADRIC - Morgan Horst; ADRIC - Mena Sestito; Wendy Hassen; 


kkelly@kpkellylaw.com; Tammy Borowiecki 


Subject: RE: Certificates/Designations (ADRIC pro-rating policy) 
  
Due to ADRIA Board orientation, this item was deferred until September. 
  
Any feedback from the ADDRIC Finance Committee?  We are preparing now for the September 
applications. 
  
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 
   Over 550 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!! 
                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt.. 
            Visit: www.adralberta.com 
   
  
From: Paul Conway  


Sent: May-10-16 1:58 PM 
To: 'ADRIC - Janet McKay' 


Cc: Truus Souman; Chuck Smith; ADRIC - Morgan Horst; ADRIC - Mena Sestito; Wendy Hassen; Stan 


Galbraith 
Subject: RE: Certificates/Designations (ADRIC pro-rating policy) 
  
Thanks Janet 
  
Truus - please make an informational note on the Board's June agenda 
  
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 
   Over 500 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!! 



http://www.adric.ca/

mailto:paul@adralberta.com

mailto:kkelly@kpkellylaw.com

http://www.adralberta.com/





                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt.. 
            Visit: www.adralberta.com 
   
  
From: ADRIC - Janet McKay [mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca]  


Sent: May-05-16 12:41 PM 
To: Paul Conway 


Cc: Truus Souman; Chuck Smith; ADRIC - Morgan Horst; ADRIC - Mena Sestito 


Subject: RE: Certificates 
  
I will bring to ADRIC Finance committee, thanks. 
  
  


  Janet 
416-487-4733 ext 105 
877-475-4353 ADRIC.ca 
  
  
From: Paul Conway [mailto:paul@adralberta.com]  
Sent: Thursday, May 05, 2016 1:24 PM 


To: ADRIC - Janet McKay 


Cc: Truus Souman; Chuck Smith; ADRIC - Morgan Horst; ADRIC - Mena Sestito 
Subject: RE: Certificates 
  
My question pertained only to the designation fees since, as you know, we already submit membership 
fees on a quarterly basis (based on anniversary date renewals). 
  
Janet - We still face challenges explaining why they pay 100% for a 7-8 month period.  Do you need our 
Board to raise the question formally, or is this an operational decision? 
  
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 
   Over 500 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!! 
                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt.. 
            Visit: www.adralberta.com 
   
  
From: ADRIC - Morgan Horst [mailto:morgan@adric.ca]  
Sent: May-05-16 11:19 AM 


To: Paul Conway; ADRIC - Janet McKay; ADRIC - Mena Sestito 
Cc: Truus Souman; Chuck Smith 


Subject: RE: Certificates 
  
National does not prorate the national dues portion of full memberships until after July 1 and 
designations follow the same logic. 
  



http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:janetmckay@adric.ca

http://www.adric.ca/

mailto:paul@adralberta.com

http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:morgan@adric.ca





This of course would be a National board decision to change. 
  
  


Morgan Horst 
Accountant/CRM Manager 
Commis comptable/administrateur de l'informatique 


 
405 - 234 Eglinton Avenue East 
Toronto, ON, Canada M4P 1K5 
416-487-4733 • 1-877-475-4353 #102 
fax/télécopieur: 416-487-4429 
morgan@adric.ca            ADRIC.ca  


       @ADRCanada  #ADRIC 
unsubscribe/désabonner 
ADRIC 2016 Conference - October 12-14, 2016 
IMI Global Pound Conference - October 12, 2016 
Ritz-Carlton, Toronto 
  
  
  
From: Paul Conway [mailto:paul@adralberta.com]  


Sent: Thursday, May 05, 2016 1:16 PM 
To: ADRIC - Janet McKay; ADRIC - Mena Sestito; ADRIC - Morgan Horst 


Cc: Truus Souman; Chuck Smith 
Subject: RE: Certificates 
  
Janet/Mena/Morgan - Since the fees are already prorated for Q3 and Q4, would ADRIC consider further 
prorating the designation fee for Q2?  (ie 75% after April 1st).   
It is proving difficult to explain to our members why they are paying 100% when their applications are 
only approved in the May/June timeframe. 
  
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 
   Over 500 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!! 
                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt.. 
            Visit: www.adralberta.com 
   
  
From: Truus Souman  


Sent: May-05-16 11:10 AM 



mailto:morgan@adric.ca

http://www.adric.ca/

mailto:morgan@adrcanada.ca?subject=Unsubscribe/%20Désabonner

http://adric.ca/adric2016/

http://adric.ca/global-pound-conference/

mailto:paul@adralberta.com

http://www.adralberta.com/

http://www.facebook.com/home.php#!/group.php?gid=149752171707351

http://www.linkedin.com/groups?gid=3303518&trk=hb_side_g





To: Paul Conway 


Subject: FW: Certificates 
  
  
  
From: ADRIC - Morgan Horst [mailto:morgan@adric.ca]  
Sent: May-05-16 11:08 AM 


To: Truus Souman 


Subject: RE: Certificates 
  
Jan 1 100% 
Jul 1 50% 
Oct 1 25% 
  
  


Morgan Horst 
Accountant/CRM Manager 
Commis comptable/administrateur de l'informatique 


 
405 - 234 Eglinton Avenue East 
Toronto, ON, Canada M4P 1K5 
416-487-4733 • 1-877-475-4353 #102 
fax/télécopieur: 416-487-4429 
morgan@adric.ca            ADRIC.ca  


       @ADRCanada  #ADRIC 
unsubscribe/désabonner 
ADRIC 2016 Conference - October 12-14, 2016 
IMI Global Pound Conference - October 12, 2016 
Ritz-Carlton, Toronto 
  
  
  
From: Truus Souman [mailto:membership@adralberta.com]  


Sent: Thursday, May 05, 2016 12:49 PM 
To: ADRIC - Morgan Horst 


Cc: Paul Conway 
Subject: RE: Certificates 
  
Good morning Morgan, 
  
How do you break this down? 
Is it from the 1 of July prorated on a sliding scale, or is it just 50% after July 1st? 
Can you please explain? 
  
Truus. 
  



mailto:morgan@adric.ca

mailto:morgan@adric.ca

http://www.adric.ca/

mailto:morgan@adrcanada.ca?subject=Unsubscribe/%20Désabonner

http://adric.ca/adric2016/

http://adric.ca/global-pound-conference/

mailto:membership@adralberta.com

http://www.facebook.com/home.php#!/group.php?gid=149752171707351

http://www.linkedin.com/groups?gid=3303518&trk=hb_side_g





From: ADRIC - Morgan Horst [mailto:morgan@adric.ca]  


Sent: May-05-16 8:22 AM 
To: Truus Souman 


Subject: FW: Certificates 
  
Truus: 
  
Designation annual fees are not prorated until after July 1. 
  
  


Morgan Horst 
Accountant/CRM Manager 
Commis comptable/administrateur de l'informatique 


 
405 - 234 Eglinton Avenue East 
Toronto, ON, Canada M4P 1K5 
416-487-4733 • 1-877-475-4353 #102 
fax/télécopieur: 416-487-4429 
morgan@adric.ca            ADRIC.ca  


       @ADRCanada  #ADRIC 
unsubscribe/désabonner 
ADRIC 2016 Conference - October 12-14, 2016 
IMI Global Pound Conference - October 12, 2016 
Ritz-Carlton, Toronto 
  
  
  
From: ADRIC - Mena Sestito  


Sent: Thursday, May 05, 2016 9:24 AM 
To: ADRIC - Morgan Horst 


Subject: FW: Certificates 
  
M., please let Truus know about our designation fee structure. 
Thanks, 
Mena 
  
From: Truus Souman [mailto:membership@adralberta.com]  


Sent: Wednesday, May 04, 2016 11:13 AM 
To: ADRIC - Mena Sestito 


Subject: Certificates 
  
Good morning Mena, 
  
Can you tell me if Don Schapira and Tegan received their designation certificates? They separated. She is 
not even living in Alberta anymore at this time. 
  



mailto:morgan@adric.ca

mailto:morgan@adric.ca

http://www.adric.ca/

mailto:morgan@adrcanada.ca?subject=Unsubscribe/%20Désabonner

http://adric.ca/adric2016/

http://adric.ca/global-pound-conference/

mailto:membership@adralberta.com

http://www.facebook.com/home.php#!/group.php?gid=149752171707351

http://www.linkedin.com/groups?gid=3303518&trk=hb_side_g





Also, did Kristian Hawkins and Deborah Kay pay for the QArb designation fee? 
  
Leanne Young was charged the full year designation fee. Should hers not be pro rated, since she got her 
designation in May? 
  
Looking forward to your answers. 
  
Cheers, 
  
Truus Souman | Executive & Membership Coordinator (part-time) 
  


 
  
Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 
7128 Ada Boulevard 
Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
ph. (780) 433-4881 or 1-800-232-7214 ext. 110 
fax. (780) 433-9024 
www.adralberta.com 
  
 



http://www.adralberta.com/






ADR Institute of Alberta
BALANCE SHEET


August 31, 2016


September 07, 2016 6:21PM 1 Report 1


ASSETS


CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 88,835 $
Reserve Funds 59,018 
Accounts Receivable 16,600 
Prepaid Expenses 1,390 
Due from ADRIC - License 5,775 


Total Current Assets 171,618 $


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Office Furniture & Fixtures 3,029 $
Computer Equipment 6,749 
Classroom Furniture & Equipment 1,876 


Total Property and Equipment 11,654 $


OTHER ASSETS
DRN Conference 4,867 $


Total Other Assets 4,867 $


TOTAL ASSETS 188,139 $


LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY


CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 0 $
Accrued Liabilities 18,064 
Deferred Revenue 44,904 
Due to ADRIC - Membership 4,450 
Due to ADRIC - License 4,500 
Payroll Liabilities 183 
GST/HST Payable (697)
DRN Conference 4,367 


Total Current Liabilities 75,771 $


LONG TERM LIABILITIES


Total Long Term Liabilities 0 $


TOTAL LIABILITIES 75,771 $


MEMBERS' EQUITY
General Surplus 19,644 $
Net Income (Loss) 92,724 


Total Members' Equity 112,368 


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY 188,139 $

















 ADR Institute of Alberta


 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 August


 2016


Jan - Aug Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget


Income


Membership Fees Net of ADRIC 79,151 78,996 155 100%


Membership Services 6,840 6,500 340 105%


ADR Business Services 60,037 58,600 1,437 102%


Professional Development & Education 348,991 253,243 95,748 138%


Other Income 242 0 242 100%


Total Income 495,261 397,339 97,922 125%


Expense


Member Services 29,456 31,884 -2,428 92%


ADR Business Services 56,219 55,284 935 102%


Professional Development & Education 211,673 207,380 4,293 102%


Operations 74,276 71,558 2,718 104%


Governance 30,915 29,470 1,445 105%


Total Income 402,539 395,576 6,963 102%


Net Income 92,722 1,763 90,959 5,259%


 Page 1 of 1








7.6 
From: Paul Conway  
Sent: August-31-16 1:24 PM 


To: ADRIO - Susette Clunis 


Cc: Tammy Borowiecki; Siemens, Scott; Dolores Herman; Dolores Herman; Marshall, Barrie; Truus 
Souman; John Souman; Wendy Hassen 


Subject: RE: Q.Med solo vs co-mediations 


 
Good to know, and thanks for the feedback Susette.  Do you also require the written description and/or 
reflection? 
 
ADRIA still complies with the ADRIC direction as we interpret it (ie 2 solo mediations with written 
reflections, or 2 assessed practice mediations, or one of each), although as we've discussed, I can 
envision added restricted provisions for co-mediations (ie to recognize the Alberta Civil Claims co-
mediation program, or the Aga Khan's CAB co-mediation program, etc., where the applicant led the 
process) 
 
Your note suggests the need for a broader national discussion of the Q.Med designation requirements, 
the ADRIC standards as currently written, and the extent to which Affiliates can raise or lower the 
published ADRIC standard. 
 
I've added this to our own Board's agenda for discussion in September. 
 
Janet - is it sole or solo?  The ADRIC Q.Med form uses both. 
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 550 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  


  


 
From: ADRIO - Susette Clunis [mailto:susetteclunis@adrontario.ca]  


Sent: August-31-16 1:09 PM 
To: Paul Conway 


Cc: Tammy Borowiecki 


Subject: RE: Q.Med solo vs co-mediations 


 
Hi Paul  
Ontario has a different criteria- one can acquire Q. Med designation using  


 2 sole mediations or 


 1 sole and 1 co-mediation or 


 2 co-mediation where one is lead by the applicant or  


 the completion of the ADRIO Internship Program 
 



http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:susetteclunis@adrontario.ca





Susette  


 
From: Paul Conway [mailto:paul@adralberta.com]  


Sent: Tuesday, August 30, 2016 5:42 PM 


To: ADRIO - Susette Clunis 
Cc: Tammy Borowiecki 


Subject: Q.Med solo vs co-mediations 


 
http://adric.ca/wp-content/uploads/2015/12/ADRIC_QMed_Application.pdf 
 
Susette - just to follow up on our phone conversation last week, page 3 of the ADRIC application form 
specifies two solo mediations, paid or unpaid. 
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 550 members and still growing! 
 
CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  
 


Room CE 223A - Ralph King Athletic Centre 


Concordia University of Edmonton 
Corner of 112th Ave & 73rd Street 
 
Contact details:                fax. (780) 433-9024    
7128 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton AB T5B 4E4 
1-800-232-7214  or  (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


 
ADRIA has engaged a dedicated team of part-time staff, so 
calls and e-mails are usually returned within 2 business days. 
Calls & visits are best accomodated weekdays from 10am-2pm. 


 
 
 



mailto:paul@adralberta.com

http://adric.ca/wp-content/uploads/2015/12/ADRIC_QMed_Application.pdf

http://www.adralberta.com/






September 07, 2016 6:35PM ADR Institute of Alberta
BUSINESS UNIT REPORT


Eight Months Ended August 31, 2016


2016 2016 8 Months Ended YTD Variance 2015 2014 2013
Budget YTD Budget Aug 31, 2016 Better (Worse) Audited Audited Audited


than Budget


Governance
Less: Direct Costs 45,455 $ 29,470 $ 30,915 $ (1,445)$ 45,887 $ 47,375 $ 41,163 $
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 5,613 3,578 3,714 (136) 5,617 6,520 7,898 


Total Governance (51,068)$ (33,048)$ (34,629)$ (1,581)$ (51,504)$ (53,895)$ (49,061)$


Membership 115,455 $ 85,496 $ 85,992 $ 496 $ 107,855 $ 93,375 $ 101,780 $
Less: Direct Costs 48,376 31,884 29,456 2,428 45,158 43,485 56,199 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 28,065 17,890 18,569 (680) 28,084 32,604 39,491 


Net Profit (Loss) Membership 39,014 $ 35,723 $ 37,967 $ 2,244 $ 34,613 $ 17,286 $ 6,090 $


ADR Business Services 87,800 $ 58,600 $ 60,037 $ 1,437 $ 78,495 $ 80,810 $ 66,491 $
Less: Direct Cost 82,676 55,284 56,218 (934) 81,351 68,882 63,933 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 11,226 7,156 7,428 (272) 11,234 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) ADR Business Services (6,102)$ (3,840)$ (3,609)$ 231 $ (14,090)$ (1,114)$ (13,238)$


PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT


Certificate Programs 319,980 $ 196,068 $ 261,506 $ 65,438 $ 308,105 $ 320,212 $ 393,982 $
Less: Direct Costs 198,330 128,690 134,564 (5,874) 184,323 188,662 225,590 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 25% 28,065 17,890 18,569 (680) 28,084 32,604 39,491 


Net Profit (Loss) Certificate Programs 93,585 $ 49,489 $ 108,373 $ 58,884 $ 95,698 $ 98,946 $ 128,901 $


Specialty & Professional  Dev 38,100 $ 27,300 $ 13,200 $ (14,100)$ 29,160 $ 67,721 $ 13,500 $
Less: Direct Costs 43,990 30,360 21,550 8,810 38,649 48,319 25,379 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 11,226 7,156 7,428 (272) 11,233 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Specialty & Professional Dev (17,116)$ (10,216)$ (15,778)$ (5,562)$ (20,722)$ 6,360 $ (27,675)$


Contract Training 34,200 $ 17,100 $ 67,910 $ 50,810 $ 28,600 $ 27,295 $ 132,032 $
Less: Direct Costs 31,080 18,020 32,125 (14,105) 29,968 40,935 94,038 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 11,226 7,156 7,428 (272) 11,233 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Contract Training (8,106)$ (8,076)$ 28,357 $ 36,433 $ (12,601)$ (26,682)$ 22,198 $


Conference 25,000 $ 7,500 $ 0 $ (7,500)$ 0 $ 23,693 $ 26,865 $
Less: Direct Costs 47,100 21,400 11,919 9,481 16,616 32,811 29,836 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 10% 11,226 7,156 7,428 (272) 11,233 13,042 15,796 


Net Profit (Loss) Conference (33,326)$ (21,056)$ (19,347)$ 1,709 $ (27,849)$ (22,160)$ (18,767)$


Designation & Accreditation 8,550 $ 5,275 $ 6,375 $ 1,100 $ 8,875 $ 9,700 $ 15,145 $
Less: Direct Costs 13,540 8,910 11,516 (2,606) 14,879 11,949 13,093 
Less: Indirect Costs Allocated at 5% 5,613 3,578 3,714 (136) 5,617 6,521 7,898 


Net Profit (Loss) Designation & Accreditation (10,603)$ (7,213)$ (8,855)$ (1,642)$ (11,621)$ (8,770)$ (5,846)$


Revenue Other Income 0 $ 0 $ 242 $ 242 $ 480 $ 1,907 $ 1,826 $


Total Revenue 629,085 $ 397,339 $ 495,262 $ 97,923 $ 561,570 $ 624,713 $ 751,621 $
Total Expense 622,806 395,576 402,540 (6,964) 569,166 612,835 707,193 
Net Profit (Loss) 6,279 $ 1,763 $ 92,722 $ 90,959 $ (7,596)$ 11,878 $ 44,428 $








Add to September Board agenda svp 
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 550 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  


  


 
From: Paul Conway  


Sent: August-09-16 9:58 AM 


To: 'Anne Wallace'; 'Janet McKay' 
Cc: 'Dolores Herman'; Dolores Herman; Dolores Herman; 'ADRIC - Barbara Gilbert'; M. Scott Siemens; 


'ADRIO - Susette Clunis'; dhowes@highclouds.ca; 'Michelle Simpson'; Joanne Munro; 'Gayle Desmeules'; 
Tammy Borowiecki; 'Wendy Hassen' 


Subject: RE: ADRIC National Professional Development Program  


 
Anne/Janet - I believe we will come up with an Alberta for this committee as well. 
 
Your questions, however, begs the question of "Should the course accreditation process migrate from 
ADRIO to ADRIC?"  
 
In the interest of transparency, I've raised this question in conversation with Suzette at ADRIO.   
 
With institutions and private ADR trainers criss-crossing the country, and with designation approvals 
administered by the Affiliates on behalf of the national body, it no longer makes sense to vest this 
function solely in the hands of a single Affiliate.  While Suzette has indicated that course accreditation 
revenue only represents 1-2% of the ADRIO budget, it does represent revenue that ADRIO would have to 
replace.  Currently there is no incentive for other Affiliates to pursue this revenue stream - there are too 
few out-of-Ontario institutions, many of them cross provincial borders, we're not "selling" access to a 
national ADRIC listing, and most Affiliates have minimal staff (to chase so few dollars).  As things are, we 
have no assurances that the training accepted or accredited by one Affiliate will be accepted by 
another.  JIBC operates in Alberta.  ADRIA accepts all institutions and courses listed by ADRIO (as do 
most other Affiliates I believe).  The Aga Khan's CAB training is international, and delivered in various 
provinces.  ADRIA has evaluated the CAB training and accepted it as an equivalent 40-hour evaluated 
mediation course, but there are Regional CABs in other provinces.  How should ADRIA respond if we 
start receiving  membership and designation applications from other provinces because we have started 
to accept the CAB training?   
 
These realities and questions suggest  that the list of accredited and accepted training courses should be 
a national listing - held and maintained by ADRIC.  This would motivate ADRIA, for example, to suggest 
ADRIC accreditation to Mount Royal University.  ADRIBC could approach JIBC, etc, etc.  ADRIA has no 
objections to a revenue sharing or revenue distribution system that favours the province in which an 
institution or trainer is based - which might alleviate ADRIO's revenue concerns.   
 



http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:dhowes@highclouds.ca





Sent to stimulate discussion, particularly as this committee begins to form.   
 
Paul Conway | Executive Director  


 
The Professional Association for Mediators,  
 Arbitrators & ADR Practitioners in Alberta. 


   Over 550 members and still growing! 


               (780) 433-4881 ext. 111 


CChheecckk  oouutt  AADDRRIIAA''ss  nneeww  VViissiioonn,,  LLooggoo  &&  WWeebbssiittee!!  


                  NNoo  AAllbbeerrttaann  FFeeaarrss  CCoonnfflliicctt..  
            Visit: www.adralberta.com  


  


 
From: Anne Wallace [mailto:anne.wallace@sasktel.net]  


Sent: August-07-16 11:10 AM 


To: Joanne Munro; 'Michelle Simpson'; dhowes@highclouds.ca 
Cc: 'Dolores Herman'; Dolores Herman; 'Janet McKay'; Paul Conway; 'ADRIC - Barbara Gilbert'; M. Scott 


Siemens 
Subject: RE: ADRIC National Professional Development Program  


 
PS – Dolores and Paul, we would also like to have someone from AB on the Course Accreditation 
Committee. Please let us know who you recommend for that role as well. 
 
Thanks. 
 
Anne 
 
Anne M. Wallace, Q.C. 
LL.B., C.Arb., C.Med., CTAJ, IMI Cert.  
Anne Wallace Legal Professional Corporation * PO Box 22114 RPO Wildwood * Saskatoon, SK  Canada S7H 5P1 


Phone: (306) 373-0273 * Fax: (306) 373-0672 * E-mail: anne.wallace@sasktel.net * www.adrweb.ca/anne-wallace  


GO HUSKIES! GO RIDERS! 


Everyone you meet is fighting a battle you know nothing about. Be kind. Always.  


This message is intended only for the addressee. It may contain privileged or confidential information. If you have received this message in error, 
please notify us immediately so that we may correct our internal records. Then please delete the original message. Thank you.  


 
From: Anne Wallace [mailto:anne.wallace@sasktel.net]  
Sent: August-07-16 10:53 AM 


To: 'Joanne Munro'; 'Michelle Simpson'; 'dhowes@highclouds.ca' 
Cc: 'Dolores Herman'; 'Dolores Herman'; 'Janet McKay'; 'Paul Conway'; 'ADRIC - Barbara Gilbert'; M. 


Scott Siemens (Scott.Siemens@cra-arc.gc.ca) 


Subject: ADRIC National Professional Development Program  


 


Joanne, Michelle and Deborah,  
 
This is to follow up on Paul’s email of July 27 with respect to the National Professional 
Development Program. The Program is a work in progress and I have been working 
with staff to develop the framework for moving forward. I am attaching for your 
information the latest draft of the Program Terms of Reference.  



http://www.adralberta.com/

mailto:anne.wallace@sasktel.net

mailto:dhowes@highclouds.ca

mailto:anne.wallace@sasktel.net

http://www.adrweb.ca/anne-wallace

mailto:anne.wallace@sasktel.net

mailto:Scott.Siemens@cra-arc.gc.ca





 
I have already been in touch with Deborah and I would like her to chair the 
Development Committee and be the Vice-Chair or a Co-Chair of Oversight. 
 
Joanne, right now we have several people who are interested in being on the Mediation 
Course Committee, but we don’t have anyone who is prepared to chair that Committee. 
Would you be prepared to be chair?  
 
Michelle, for the time being at least until the Arbitration Course revisions are completed, 
I will be Chair of the Arbitration Course Committee. As someone who has taught the 
course, however, we would very much like to have you on that Committee. Please let 
me know if you are prepared to serve. 
 
I have reached out to the other regions to participation in the program as well and will 
follow up with them further once I have responses from you. 
 
I look forward to hearing at your early convenience.  
 
Thank you.  
 
Anne 
 
Anne M. Wallace, Q.C. 
LL.B., C.Arb., C.Med., CTAJ, IMI Cert.  
Anne Wallace Legal Professional Corporation * PO Box 22114 RPO Wildwood * Saskatoon, SK  Canada S7H 5P1 


Phone: (306) 373-0273 * Fax: (306) 373-0672 * E-mail: anne.wallace@sasktel.net * www.adrweb.ca/anne-wallace  


GO HUSKIES! GO RIDERS! 


Everyone you meet is fighting a battle you know nothing about. Be kind. Always.  


This message is intended only for the addressee. It may contain privileged or confidential information. If you have received this message in error, 
please notify us immediately so that we may correct our internal records. Then please delete the original message. Thank you.  


 



mailto:anne.wallace@sasktel.net

http://www.adrweb.ca/anne-wallace



